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A Fresh Start

When 58-year-old Yoshinori of Wakayama, Japan  

underwent a standard physical examination, his doc-

tors discovered that one of his coronary arteries was 

obstructed. The next step: Discover the severity of the 

blockage and determine appropriate treatment.

Yoshinori underwent a simple diagnostic procedure 

using the St. Jude Medical ILUMIEN™ OPTIS™  

PCI Optimization™ System. The ILUMIEN OPTIS sys-

tem is the first imaging system to use fractional flow 

reserve (FFR) along with real-time, 3-D optical coher-

ence tomography (OCT) for a panoramic view inside  

the artery to provide the doctor with a better under-

standing of his artery.
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The ILUMIEN™ OPTIS™ PCI Optimization™ 
System, approved for use in Japan, 
European Union countries and the U.S., is 
a next-generation technology designed to 
help physicians make personalized stenting 
decisions based on each patient’s unique 
anatomy and disease state. The ILUMIEN 
OPTIS system enhancements include 
first-of-its kind stent planning software tools 

and real-time, 360-degree 
panoramic view of the arteries  
in 3-D. The ILUMIEN platform 
integrates both fractional flow 
reserve technology to measure 
pressure inside the coronary 
arteries and intravascular optical 
coherence tomography imaging 
technology in one system.

Actual patient story. The patient story above is the experience of this individual only. 
Although this patient did not experience complications, there can be risks and  
potential complications associated with the use of this device. If you are interested  
in learning more about the device, please consult your physician. Information related  
to indications, contraindications, and precautions can be found at sjm.com. 1

FFR is a technology to measure pressure inside the 

coronary arteries to determine the extent to which an 

artery is blocked. OCT is a visual tool that helps physi-

cians better understand the characteristics of the 

blockage. The combined system allows for individual 

decision making and precise guidance of stent 

placement.

With proper diagnosis, Yoshinori received a stent to 

open his artery in January 2013. His doctors are pleased  

with the success of the procedure and his recovery.

Recently retired, Yoshinori now enjoys life with his wife 

and avidly runs, bikes and weight trains. A clean bill of 

health is Yoshinori’s new beginning.

http://www.sjm.com


Daniel J. Starks
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

 Delivering on an Innovation- 
 Based Growth Strategy
Our success depends on our ability to invent medical devices 

that help improve patient outcomes and reduce the cost of 

health care. St. Jude Medical invests more than 12 percent of 

revenue in medical device innovation every year. Our product 

portfolio reflects a cumulative investment in medical device 

innovation totaling more than $10 billion.

This commitment to investing in innovation helped return our 

business to growth during 2013. St. Jude Medical turned our 

business from a 3 percent decline in constant currency, 

year-over-year sales in the first quarter to a 6 percent increase 

in sales in the fourth quarter. We increased adjusted earnings 

per share* 12 percent on a constant currency, year-over-year 

basis for full-year 2013. We were able to do so in spite of a 
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* Including the impact of currency changes, our adjusted diluted earnings 
per share increased 8%. Adjusted earnings per share is a non-GAAP 
measure and excludes certain charges. See page 8 for a reconciliation.

Our vision is to transform  
the treatment of expensive  
epidemic diseases. 

We do this by creating  
cost-effective medical technologies 
that save and improve lives.

To Our

Shareholders



new medical device tax, new regulatory expenses, lower 

average selling prices, and other significant challenges. We 

attribute this improvement in part to delivering on our 

commitment to launch approximately 20 new products across 

our business during the year.

Our return to growth during 2013 can also be attributed to the 

organizational changes we began implementing in August 

2012. Prior to 2012, St. Jude Medical operated in a highly 

decentralized environment characterized by six divisions 

organized according to priorities of different physician 

specialty groups or by geography. By 2012, it was clear that 

customer priorities were changing and we needed to change 

with our customers to stay competitive.

We therefore began transforming the company into a more 

centralized organization and have improved alignment on our 

highest priorities, captured new synergies, increased produc-

tivity, and reduced costs in many key functions of the 

company. We could not have accomplished this transforma-

tion without the support of our employees and I sincerely 

appreciate all of their efforts as we continue to work through 

these significant organizational changes. We estimate that 

more than $100 million in cost savings have been generated 

as a result of our restructuring.

Our Approach to Innovation
Medical device companies cannot keep doing the same things 

and expect to keep up with the burdens facing health care 

today. We need to work more efficiently to improve patient 

care and be a resource for reducing the cost of health care. 

Many of the most complex and costly health care problems 

fall in the cardiovascular disease states. St. Jude Medical is 

focused on providing high quality, cost-effective treatment 

solutions that address several of the major types of cardiovas-

cular diseases such as coronary artery disease, heart failure, 

and heart rhythm disorders like atrial fibrillation. As the 

population continues to age, cardiovascular disease will 

become more common and more costly. It is estimated that 

cardiovascular disease will soon cost economies more than  

$1 trillion globally.

Another area of significant focus is chronic pain – particularly 

back pain. Low back pain is a leading cause for a doctor visit, 

second only to the common cold. Our health care system 

cannot continue to treat this debilitating condition with the 

same drugs and procedures of the last several decades.

In each disease state where St. Jude Medical is focused, we 

haven’t just developed a product, but have developed 

innovative, comprehensive solutions to costly and complex 

problems. However, we recognize that the development of 

pioneering technologies presents special challenges and 

start-up expenses before generating meaningful revenue. As a 

result, we are focused on delivering a balanced portfolio of 

sustaining and pioneering technologies that will provide  

St. Jude Medical with both near-term and long-term revenue 

growth. During 2013, we introduced several of these impor-

tant additions to our product portfolio.

Nanostim™ Leadless Pacemaker

In 2013, St. Jude Medical added the world’s first leadless 

pacemaker to its product portfolio, representing one of the 

most important advances in the history of pacing technology.
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This innovation reduces costly lead- and pocket-related 

complications, while improving patient satisfaction, through 

catheter-based delivery of the Nanostim leadless pacemaker.

The Nanostim non-surgical, leadless pacemaker is less than 

10 percent the size of a conventional pacemaker and is the 

least invasive pacing technology available today. The small size 

of the device and lack of a surgical pocket, coupled with the 

exclusion of a lead, improves patient comfort and may reduce 

complications, including device pocket-related infection and 

lead failure. The elimination of the visible lump and scar at a 

conventional pacemaker’s implant site, in addition to the 

removal of patient activity restrictions that are routinely put in 

place in an attempt to prevent dislodgement or damage to a 

conventional lead, will potentially improve the quality of life for 

patients with this technology by allowing most to continue 

living active, uninhibited lifestyles.

St. Jude Medical launched the Nanostim leadless pacemaker 

in Europe at the end of 2013 and has begun the LEADLESS II 

pivotal clinical trial to evaluate the device for U.S. Food and 

Drug Administration (FDA) approval.

TactiCath™ Quartz Contact Force Ablation Catheter

In August 2013, we announced the acquisition of Endosense 

SA, a Switzerland-based company that has pioneered contact 

force measurement in catheter ablation. Endosense developed 

the TactiCath Quartz contact force ablation catheter to give 

physicians a real-time, objective measure of the force they 

apply to the heart wall during a catheter ablation procedure. 

Without contact-force data, physicians can only estimate the 

amount of force applied to the heart wall during an ablation. If 

too little force is applied, there is a risk of incomplete lesion 

formation that could result in AF recurrence, potentially 

requiring additional treatments. If too much force is applied, 

there is a risk of tissue injury, which can lead to serious 

procedure-related complications.

At the end of 2013, St. Jude Medical launched the TactiCath 

Quartz catheter in Europe. We look forward to a U.S. launch 

after FDA approval. The acquisition of Endosense further 

strengthens our industry leading portfolio of products to treat 

patients with cardiac arrhythmias, and provides an opportu-

nity to accelerate our market share capture in a global cardiac 

ablation catheter market that is expected to reach approxi-

mately $1 billion in size in 2014.
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Quadra 
Assura MP

Quadra Assura™ CRT-D MultiPoint™ Pacing

In 2009, St. Jude Medical led the industry by bringing 

quadripolar lead technology to the market. Since then, 

quadripolar pacing technology has become the standard of 

care for many physicians, and is supported by more than 100 

publications that provide broad clinical evidence of its 

advantages. We have continued to invest in this technology 

and are pleased to now offer the industry’s first MultiPoint 

Pacing (MPP) system, which provides a new set of options to 

address patients who are non-responders to traditional cardiac 

resynchronization therapy (CRT) pacing, potentially decreas-

ing hospitalizations and lowering the economic burden of 

heart failure.

Launched in Europe during 2013, the Quadra Assura MP 

cardiac resynchronization therapy defibrillator (CRT-D) is 

designed to work with the Quartet™ Lead, which has four 

electrodes to offer maximum flexibility for different pacing 

configurations. The new MPP capability allows physicians  

to program simultaneous or sequential delivery of two left 

ventricular (LV) pulses per pacing cycle, rather than the 

standard single pacing pulse. The capability to deliver two  

LV pulses per cycle allows physicians to tailor CRT pacing  

for each patient, potentially leading to more effective out-

comes compared to single site pacing. This device is not yet 

approved for use in the U.S but is undergoing an FDA 

approved clinical study.

Summarizing our Success in 2013
With the achievement of our 2013 goals, we are executing on 

our promise to deliver technologies that reduce costs and 

improve patient outcomes. Our strong performance was 

recognized with a 76 percent increase in our stock price. Our 

performance also allowed us to increase our dividend by  

9 percent for the second year in a row. I want to sincerely 

thank our Board of Directors for their support and confidence 

in our ability to return St. Jude Medical to sustainable growth.

As St. Jude Medical continues to evolve, we are confident that 

we can deliver EPS leverage in 2014 as we also invest in 

innovative products that meet the evolving needs of our 

customers, who are balancing how to practice medicine in 

challenging economic conditions while continuously improving 

patient care. We believe St. Jude Medical is best positioned to 

deliver an innovation-based growth program that will transform 

the treatment of expensive epidemic diseases.

Sincerely,

Daniel J. Starks

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer 

St. Jude Medical, Inc.

March 10, 2014
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Heart Failure
Heart failure management is one of the most 
costly disease states in the world. In the U.S. 
alone, more than $31 billion is spent annually 
on heart failure, with over half of these costs 
spent on hospitalizations.1 St. Jude Medical is 
pioneering heart failure disease 
management with innovative 
solutions that help reduce 
hospitalizations and improve 
patient quality of life.

Vascular Disease
Coronary artery disease is the  
most common form of heart 
disease. It impacts the health of 
millions of individuals worldwide 
and continues to account for 
hundreds of billions of dollars 
in health care expenditures 
annually.2 Our breakthrough 
technologies guide health care 
providers in their treatment 
decisions to improve patient 
outcomes and provide opportuni- 
ties to reduce costs.

Structural Heart Disease
Heart defects vary from congenital  
– with 40,000 children born each year in 
the U.S. with structural heart defects1 – to 
conditions that progress over time – aortic 
stenosis is the most commonly acquired 
valve disease in the world. St. Jude Medical 
is a proven leader in structural heart disease. 
Focused on ease of use and life-saving 
products, our catheter-based and surgical 
solutions provide physicians with a full range  
of options for treating heart defects and  
valvular disease.

Addressing the treatment of the most expensive  
epidemic diseases  At St. Jude Medical, we are fueled by a passion to challenge the status quo. We 

discover solutions outside of convention that are transforming the way that the most expensive epidemic diseases  

are treated. The result is improved patient outcomes, reduced costs and saved lives. These are the six key disease 

states that we focus on – touching the lives of hundreds of millions of people every day.

Heart Rhythm Disorders
An estimated 2.7 million people have atrial 
fibrillation in the U.S. and as many as 12 million 
people will have the condition by 2050.3 Our 
unparalleled product portfolio provides the 
integrated diagnostic and therapeutic solutions 
needed to treat the full spectrum of heart 
rhythm disorders.

Neurological Diseases
Parkinson’s, Dystonia and other 
neurological diseases take 
a devastating emotional and 
economic toll on patients  
and their families. As pioneers 
in the field, St. Jude Medical 
has developed cutting-edge  
neuromodulation technologies 
for the treatment of neurological  
disorders. In Europe, our deep 
brain stimulation therapy helps 
patients and their families 
manage the symptoms of 
Parkinson’s disease and 
Dystonia so they can regain 
their independence and peace 
of mind.

Chronic Pain
Chronic pain affects approximately 1.5 billion 
people worldwide4 – more than heart disease, 
cancer and diabetes combined. In the U.S., 
estimated costs include 515 million workdays 
lost and 40 million doctor visits annually.5 
Today, patients around the world benefit from 
transformational pain management technologies 
from St. Jude Medical that enable them to return 
to work and live fuller, more satisfying lives.

1American Heart Association, 2World Health Organization, 3CDC Atrial Fibrillation Fact Sheet,  
4U.S. National Library of Medicine, 5American Academy of Pain Medicine
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$4.68
$5.16

$5.61 $5.50 $5.50

Net sales
(in billions)

1312111009

$1.11

$1.28

$1.12 $1.10 $1.05

Operating profit
(in billions)

1312111009

$2.26

$2.75
$2.52

$2.39 $2.49

Diluted net earnings  
per share
(in dollars)

1312111009

$560

$631

$705
$676 $691

Research and  
development expense
(in millions)

51%

24%

17%

8%
2013 Net sales by division
■ Cardiac Rhythm Management

■ Cardiovascular

■ Atrial Fibrillation

■ Neuromodulation

53%
47%

2013 Net sales by geography
■ International

■ United States



Five-year Summary Financial Data (in millions, except per share amounts)

  2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Summary of Operations for the Fiscal Year:
Net sales   $  5,501 $5,503 $5,612 $5,164 $4,681

Gross profit  3,927 3,965 4,079 3,754 3,428

 Percent of net sales  71.4% 72.1% 72.7% 72.7% 73.2%

Operating profit  1,051 1,100 1,115 1,276 1,113

 Percent of net sales  19.1% 20.0% 19.9% 24.7% 23.8%

Net earnings attributable to St. Jude Medical, Inc.  $     723 $   752 $   826 $   907 $   777

 Percent of net sales  13.1% 13.7% 14.7% 17.6% 16.6%

Diluted net earnings per share attributable to St. Jude Medical, Inc. $    2.49(a) $  2.39(b) $  2.52 $  2.75 $   2.26

Cash dividends declared per share(c)  $    1.00 $  0.92 $  0.84 $       – $       –

Financial Position at Year End:
Cash and cash equivalents  $  1,373 $1,194 $   986 $   500 $   393

Working capital(d)  2,530 1,776 2,323 1,895 1,493

Total assets  10,248 9,271 9,118 8,566 6,426

Total debt(e)  3,580 3,080 2,796 2,512 1,922

Shareholders’ equity  $  4,404 $4,094 $4,475 $4,372 $3,325

Other Data:
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding  290.6 314.8 327.1 330.5 344.4

(a)  2013 diluted net earnings per share include after-tax special charges of $242 million related to the Company’s realignment of its product divisions into two new operating 
divisions: the Cardiovascular and Ablation Technologies Division (CATD) (combining the legacy Cardiovascular and Atrial Fibrillation divisions) and the Implantable Electronic 
Systems Division (IESD) (combining the legacy Cardiac Rhythm Management and Neuromodulation divisions), including the centralization of certain support functions, as well 
as ongoing restructuring actions in the Company’s legacy cardiac rhythm management business and sales and selling support organizations ($176 million), intangible asset 
impairment charges ($27 million), IESD litigation and field action costs ($25 million) and a license dispute settlement charge ($14 million). The Company also recognized other 
after-tax charges of $150 million related to debt retirement costs primarily associated with make-whole redemption payments and the write-off of unamortized debt issuance 
costs ($101 million) and acquisition-related charges ($49 million). The Company also recognized an income tax benefit related to the 2012 tax year extension of the federal 
research and development tax credit in the first quarter of 2013 ($21 million). See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the Financial Report for further detail. The 
impact of these items on 2013 net earnings was $371 million, or $1.27 per diluted share. Excluding these items, 2013 adjusted net earnings (non-GAAP) was $1,094 million, or 
$3.76 per diluted share.

(b)  2012 diluted net earnings per share include after-tax special charges of $275 million related to the Company’s realignment of its product divisions into two new operating 
divisions, as discussed previously ($122 million), ongoing restructuring actions in the Company’s legacy cardiac rhythm management business and sales and selling support 
organizations ($75 million), IESD litigation and field action costs ($27 million), a license dispute settlement charge ($25 million) and intangible asset impairment charges and 
inventory write-offs ($26 million). Additionally, the Company recognized $46 million of additional income tax expense related to a settlement reserve for certain prior year tax 
positions. See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the Financial Report for further detail. The impact of these items on 2012 net earnings was $321 million, or 
$1.02 per diluted share. The Company’s 2012 adjusted net earnings (non-GAAP) of $1,095 million, or $3.48 per diluted share, excludes the impact of these items and includes 
the $22 million income tax benefit, or $0.07 per diluted share, for the 2012 tax year benefit associated with the federal research and development tax credit.

(c) Beginning in fiscal year 2011, the Company began declaring and paying cash dividends. The Company did not declare or pay any cash dividends during 2009 or 2010. 

(d)  Total current assets less total current liabilities. Working capital fluctuations can be significant based on the maturity dates of the Company’s debt obligations. The Company’s 
current debt obligations included in current liabilities were $62 million (2013), $530 million (2012), $83 million (2011), $80 million (2010) and $335 million (2009).

(e)  Total debt consists of current debt obligations and long-term debt. 

Quarterly Net Sales Summary (in millions)

  First Second Third Fourth  
  Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total

2013 Net sales   $1,338 $1,403 $1,338 $1,422 $5,501

2012 Net sales   $1,395 $1,410 $1,326 $1,372 $5,503

2013 Reported sales growth  (4)% –% 1% 4% –%

2013 Currency impact on net sales  $    (17) $    (31) $    (26) $    (27) $  (101)

2013 Currency impact on net sales growth  (1)% (2)% (2)% (2)% (2)%

2013 Constant currency impact on net sales growth  (3)% 2% 3% 6% 2%

8
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

Overview

Our business is focused on the development, manufacture and 
distribution of cardiovascular medical devices for the global 
cardiac rhythm management, cardiovascular and atrial fibrilla-
tion therapy areas and implantable neurostimulation medical 
devices for the management of chronic pain. We sell our prod-
ucts in more than 100 countries around the world. Our largest 
geographic markets are the United States, Europe, Japan and 
Asia Pacific. On August 30, 2012, we announced the realign-
ment of our product divisions into two new business units (or 
divisions): the Implantable Electronic Systems Division (com-
bining our legacy Cardiac Rhythm Management and 
Neuromodulation product divisions) and the Cardiovascular 
and Ablation Technologies Division (combining our legacy 
Cardiovascular and Atrial Fibrillation product divisions). In 
addition, we centralized certain support functions, including 
information technology, human resources, legal, business 
development and certain marketing functions. The organiza-
tional changes were part of a comprehensive plan to accelerate 
our growth, reduce costs and leverage economies of scale. We 
began reporting under the new organizational structure as of 
the beginning of fiscal year 2013.

Our principal products in each business unit are as follows: 
Implantable Electronic Systems Division (IESD) – tachycardia 
implantable cardioverter defibrillator systems (ICDs), bradycar-
dia pacemaker systems (pacemakers) and neurostimulation 
products (spinal cord and deep brain stimulation devices); and 
Cardiovascular and Ablation Technologies Division (CATD) – 
vascular products (vascular closure products, pressure mea-
surement guidewires, optical coherence tomography (OCT) 
imaging products, vascular plugs and other vascular accesso-
ries), structural heart products (heart valve replacement and 
repair products and structural heart defect devices) and atrial 
fibrillation (AF) products (electrophysiology (EP) introducers 
and catheters, advanced cardiac mapping, navigation and 
recording systems and ablation systems). References to 
“St. Jude Medical,” “St. Jude,” “the Company,” “we,” “us” and 
“our” are to St. Jude Medical, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

Our industry has undergone significant consolidation in the last 
decade and is highly competitive. Our strategy requires signifi-
cant investment in research and development in order to intro-
duce new products. We are focused on improving our operating 
margins through a variety of techniques, including the produc-
tion of high quality products, the development of leading edge 
technology, the enhancement of our existing products and con-
tinuous improvement of our manufacturing processes. We 
expect competitive pressures in the industry, global economic 
conditions, cost containment pressure on healthcare systems 
and the implementation of U.S. healthcare reform legislation to 
continue to place downward pressure on prices for our prod-
ucts, impact reimbursement for our products and potentially 

reduce medical procedure volumes. In effort to continue to 
drive growth while managing our costs, on January 28, 2014, 
we announced further organizational changes to combine our 
IESD and CATD operating divisions, resulting in an integrated 
research and development organization and a consolidation of 
manufacturing and supply chain operations worldwide. This 
integration will be conducted in a phased approach throughout 
2014. Our continuing global restructuring efforts are focused on 
streamlining our organization to improve productivity, reduce 
costs and leverage our scale to drive additional growth. We will 
continue to report under our existing reportable segment struc-
ture for internal management financial forecasting and reporting 
purposes into fiscal year 2014 until the organizational changes 
and the related financial reporting structure is finalized.

In March 2010, significant U.S. healthcare reform legislation, 
the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (PPACA) along 
with the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010, 
was enacted into law. As a U.S. headquartered company with 
significant sales in the United States, this health care reform 
law will materially impact us. Certain provisions of this health 
care reform law are not yet effective and there are many pro-
grams and requirements for which the details have not yet 
been fully established or consequences not fully understood, 
and it is unclear what the full impact will be from the legisla-
tion. The law levies a 2.3% excise tax on all U.S. medical 
device sales, which we began paying effective January 1, 2013. 
The law also focuses on a number of Medicare provisions 
aimed at improving quality and decreasing costs. It is uncertain 
at this point what impact these provisions will have on patient 
access to new technologies. The Medicare provisions also 
include value-based payment programs, increased funding of 
comparative effectiveness research, reduced hospital payments 
for avoidable readmissions and hospital acquired conditions, 
and pilot programs to evaluate alternative payment methodolo-
gies that promote care coordination (such as bundled physi-
cian and hospital payments). Additionally, the law includes a 
reduction in the annual rate of inflation for hospitals that began 
in 2011 and the establishment of an independent payment 
advisory board to recommend ways of reducing the rate of 
growth in Medicare spending beginning in 2014. We cannot 
predict what healthcare programs and regulations will be ulti-
mately implemented at the federal or state level, or the effect of 
any future legislation or regulation. However, any changes that 
lower reimbursement for our products or reduce medical pro-
cedure volumes could adversely affect our business and results 
of operations.

We participate in several different medical device markets, 
each of which has its own expected growth rate. A significant 
portion of our consolidated net sales are comprised of cardiac 
rhythm management devices – ICDs and pacemakers. During 
2011, the ICD market in the United States was negatively 
impacted by a decline in implant volumes and pricing resulting 
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from the publication of an ICD utilization article in January 
2011 in the Journal of the American Medical Association 
(JAMA), subsequent hospital investigations by the U.S. 
Department of Justice (DOJ) and a significant increase in hos-
pital ownership of physician practices. The negative impacts of 
these circumstances continued in subsequent years, and we 
estimated that in 2011 and 2012 the U.S. ICD market con-
tracted at a mid single-digit percentage rate each year. 
Recently, however, the U.S. ICD market appears to be stabiliz-
ing, as 2013 was relatively flat compared to 2012; in fact, we 
estimated the U.S. ICD market grew at a low single-digit per-
centage rate during the last half of 2013. Management remains 
focused on increasing our worldwide market share, as we are 
one of three principal manufacturers and suppliers in the 
global cardiac rhythm management market. We are also invest-
ing in our other therapy areas – cardiovascular, atrial fibrillation 
and neuromodulation – with the goal to increase our market 
share and grow sales through continued market penetration.

In August 2013, we acquired Endosense S.A. (Endosense) for 
net cash consideration of $171 million plus an additional con-
sideration payment upon U.S. Food and Drug Administration 
(FDA) approval. This acquisition expands the product offerings 
under our AF therapy area to include the TactiCath® irrigated 
ablation catheter, which has force-sensing technology that is 
CE Mark-approved for AF and supra ventricular tachycardia 
ablation. In October 2013, we acquired Nanostim, Inc. 
(Nanostim) for net cash consideration of $121 million plus 
additional consideration payments upon the achievement of 
certain revenue-based milestones. Nanostim has developed the 
first leadless, miniaturized cardiac pacemaker system, which 
received CE Mark approval in August 2013.

We utilize a 52/53-week fiscal year ending on the Saturday 
nearest December 31st. Fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011 
consisted of 52 weeks and ended on December 28, 2013, 
December 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.

Net sales of $5,501 million in 2013 was flat compared to 2012. 
Foreign currency translation unfavorably impacted our 2013 
net sales by $101 million, or 2%, partially offset by net sales 
benefits primarily in our AF business due to the continued 
increase in EP catheter ablation procedures, further market 
penetration of our EnSite® Velocity System and related connec-
tivity tools as well as our intracardiac echocardiography imag-
ing product offerings. IESD 2013 net sales decreased 2% to 
$3,209 million compared to 2012. Although the ICD market 
contracted during 2013 and we experienced unfavorable for-
eign currency translation of $38 million compared to 2012, we 
have begun to benefit from our recent 2013 product launches 
including our next-generation Ellipse™ and Assura™ devices 
(FDA approved in June 2013 and CE Mark-approved in May 
2013), our Accent MRI™ Pacemaker and the Tendril MRI™ lead 

(Japan regulatory approved in June 2013) and our Allure 
Quadra™ Cardiac Resynchronization Therapy Pacemaker (CRT-
P) (CE Mark-approved in April 2013). We have also experi-
enced incremental net sales due to our exclusive distribution of 
Spinal Modulation, Inc.’s (Spinal Modulation) Axium™ 
Neurostimulator System, a targeted therapy for chronic pain. 
CATD 2013 net sales increased 3% to $2,292 million com-
pared to 2012, led by net sales benefits in our AF business, 
discussed previously, as well as net sales associated with our 
Fractional Flow Reserve (FFR) technology products and OCT 
imaging products, Trifecta™ pericardial stented tissue valve and 
our AMPLATZER™ occluder products. Foreign currency transla-
tion had a $63 million unfavorable impact on 2013 CATD net 
sales compared to 2012.

Net sales of $5,503 million in 2012 decreased 2% from 2011 
as unfavorable foreign currency translation decreased our net 
sales by $137 million, or 2%. IESD 2012 net sales decreased 
5% to $3,277 million compared to 2011 as a result of contrac-
tion in the cardiac rhythm management market and unfavor-
able foreign currency translation of $81 million. CATD 2012 net 
sales increased 3% to $2,226 million compared to 2011 pri-
marily due to the continued increase in EP catheter ablation 
procedures and the continued market penetration of our 
EnSite® Velocity System and related connectivity tools. Foreign 
currency translation had a $56 million unfavorable impact on 
2012 CATD net sales compared to 2011. Refer to the Segment 
Performance section for a more detailed discussion of our net 
sales results by reportable segment for both 2013 and 2012.

Net earnings in 2013 of $723 million decreased 4% and 
diluted net earnings per share of $2.49 increased 4% com-
pared to 2012 net earnings of $752 million and diluted net 
earnings per share of $2.39, respectively. Our 2013 net earn-
ings were negatively impacted by after-tax charges of $392 mil-
lion, or $1.34 per diluted share, related to our 2012 
realignment plan announced in August 2012, ongoing restruc-
turing charges related to the 2011 restructuring plan, debt 
retirement costs, intangible asset impairment charges, IESD liti-
gation and field action costs, a license dispute settlement 
charge and acquisition-related charges. These charges were 
partially offset by a $21 million income tax benefit related to the 
2012 federal research and development tax credit extended in 
the first quarter of 2013, retroactive to the beginning of our 
2012 tax year. In 2012, our net earnings were impacted by 
after-tax charges of $275 million, or $0.87 per diluted share, 
related to our 2012 realignment plan, ongoing restructuring 
charges related to the 2011 restructuring plan, IESD litigation 
and field action costs, a license dispute settlement charge, 
intangible asset impairment charges and inventory write-offs. 
Additionally, we recognized $46 million, or $0.15 per diluted 
share, of additional income tax expense related to a settlement 
reserve for certain prior year tax positions. Refer to the Results 
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of Operations section for a more detailed discussion of these 
charges. The impact of these after-tax charges to our 2013 
diluted net earnings per share was partially offset by share 
repurchases resulting in lower outstanding shares in 2013 
compared to 2012.

Net earnings in 2012 of $752 million and diluted net earnings 
per share of $2.39 decreased compared to 2011 net earnings 
of $826 million and diluted net earnings per share of $2.52. 
Our 2012 net earnings were negatively impacted by after-tax 
charges of $275 million, or $0.87 per diluted share, primarily 
related to our 2012 realignment and 2011 restructuring plan, 
as discussed previously, as well as a $46 million, or $0.15 per 
diluted share, tax settlement. In 2011, our net earnings were 
impacted by after-tax charges of $154 million, or $0.47 per 
diluted share, related to restructuring charges to realign certain 
activities in our legacy cardiac rhythm management business 
and our sales and selling support organizations, intangible 
asset impairment charges and in-process research and devel-
opment (IPR&D) charges. We also recognized $47 million of 
after-tax accounts receivable allowance charges, or $0.14 per 
diluted share, for increased collection risks associated with 
customers in Europe. Refer to the Results of Operations section 
for a more detailed discussion of these charges. The impact of 
these after-tax charges to our 2012 diluted net earnings per 
share was partially offset by share repurchases resulting in 
lower outstanding shares in 2012 compared to 2011.

We generated $961 million of operating cash flows during 
2013, compared to $1,335 million of operating cash flows 
during 2012 due to payment timing differences of working cap-
ital accounts. We ended the year with $1,373 million of cash 
and cash equivalents and $3,580 million of total debt. We also 
repurchased 18.3 million shares of our common stock for $808 
million at an average repurchase price of $43.97 per share and 
our Board of Directors authorized 2013 quarterly cash dividend 
payments of $0.25 per share, representing a 9% per share 
increase over the 2012 quarterly cash dividends. During 2012, 
we repurchased 27.7 million shares of our common stock for 
$1.1 billion at an average repurchase price of $38.23 
per share.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Certain new accounting standards may become effective for us 
in fiscal year 2014 and future periods upon finalization. 
Information regarding new accounting pronouncements that 
impacted 2013 or our historical consolidated financial state-
ments and related disclosures is included in Note 1 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Critical Accounting Policies  
and Estimates

Preparation of our consolidated financial statements in accor-
dance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States (U.S. GAAP) requires us to adopt various 
accounting policies and to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and 
accompanying notes. Our significant accounting policies are 
disclosed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and assump-
tions, including those related to our accounts receivable allow-
ance for doubtful accounts; inventory reserves; goodwill and 
other intangible assets; income taxes; litigation reserves and 
insurance receivables; and stock-based compensation. We 
base our estimates on historical experience and various other 
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the cir-
cumstances, and the results form the basis for making judg-
ments about the reported values of assets, liabilities and 
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. We 
believe that the following represent our most critical accounting 
estimates:

Accounts Receivable Allowance for Doubtful Accounts: We 
grant credit to customers in the normal course of business, and 
generally do not require collateral or any other security to sup-
port our accounts receivable. We maintain an allowance for 
doubtful accounts for potential credit losses, which primarily 
consists of reserves for specific customer balances that we 
believe may not be collectible. We determine the adequacy of 
this allowance by regularly reviewing the age of accounts 
receivable, customer financial conditions and credit histories, 
and current economic conditions. In some developed markets 
and in many emerging markets, payment of certain accounts 
receivable balances are made by the individual countries’ 
healthcare systems for which payment is dependent, to some 
extent, upon the political and economic environment within 
those countries. For example, in Greece we sold our products 
through a distributor through early 2012. The Greek govern-
ment bond curtailment, potential risk of government default 
and related austerity measures negatively impacted the sol-
vency and liquidity of our Greece distributor in 2011, raising 
significant doubt regarding the collectability of our outstanding 
receivable balance. As a result, we recognized a $57 million 
accounts receivable allowance charge in the consolidated 
financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 
2011 related to this distributor, which was subsequently written 
off in 2012. We also recognized a $9 million accounts receiv-
able allowance charge during 2013 in connection with a dis-
tributor termination in Europe and an additional $9 million 
accounts receivable allowance charge in 2011 for increased 
collection risk associated with a customer in Europe. No signifi-
cant accounts receivable allowance charges were recognized 
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during fiscal year 2012. As of December 28, 2013 and 
December 29, 2012, the allowance for doubtful accounts was 
$45 million and $47 million, respectively. Although we consider 
our allowance for doubtful accounts to be adequate, if the 
financial condition of our customers or the individual countries’ 
healthcare systems were to deteriorate and impair their ability 
to make payments to us, additional allowances may be 
required in future periods.

Inventory Reserves: We value inventory at the lower of cost or 
market, with cost determined using the first-in, first-out 
method. We maintain reserves for excess and obsolete inven-
tory based on forecasted product sales, new product introduc-
tions by us or our competitors, product expirations and 
historical experience. The inventory reserves we recognize are 
based on our estimates of how these factors are expected to 
impact the amount and value of inventory we expect to sell. 
The markets in which we operate are highly competitive and 
characterized by rapid product development and technological 
change putting our products at risk of losing market share and/
or becoming obsolete. We monitor our inventory reserves on an 
ongoing basis, and although we consider our inventory reserves 
to be adequate, we may be required to recognize additional 
inventory reserves if future demand or market conditions are 
less favorable than we have estimated.

Intangible Assets, Goodwill and Contingent Consideration: 
When we acquire a business, the purchase price is allocated, 
as applicable, between identifiable intangible assets, tangible 
assets and goodwill. Determining the portion of the purchase 
price allocated to intangible assets requires us to make signifi-
cant estimates.

Our intangible assets consist of purchased technology and pat-
ents, IPR&D, customer lists and relationships, trademarks and 
tradenames, licenses and distribution agreements. IPR&D and 
certain trademark assets related to our AGA Medical, Inc. (AGA 
Medical) acquisition have been classified as indefinite-lived 
intangible assets. All other identifiable intangible assets are 
being amortized using the straight-line method over their esti-
mated useful lives, ranging from three to 20 years. We review 
our other intangible assets annually for impairment or if changes 
in circumstance or the occurrence of events suggest the carry-
ing value may not be recoverable. Intangible assets, net of accu-
mulated amortization, were $911 million at December 28, 2013 
and $804 million at December 29, 2012, respectively.

IPR&D is an intangible asset attributable to those projects for 
which the related products have not yet reached technological 
feasibility and have no future alternative use. The primary basis 
for determining the technological feasibility of these projects at 
the time of acquisition is obtaining regulatory approval to mar-
ket the underlying products in an applicable geographic region. 
IPR&D acquired in a business acquisition is subject to 
Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (FASB) Accounting 

Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 805, Business 
Combinations (ASC Topic 805), which requires the fair value of 
IPR&D to be capitalized as an indefinite-lived intangible asset 
until completion of the IPR&D project or abandonment. Upon 
completion of the development project (generally when regula-
tory approval to market the product is obtained), acquired 
IPR&D assets are amortized over their estimated useful life. If 
the IPR&D projects are abandoned, the related IPR&D assets 
would likely be impaired and written down to fair value.

We use the income approach to establish the fair value of iden-
tifiable intangible assets, including IPR&D, as of the acquisition 
date. This approach establishes fair value by estimating the 
after-tax cash flows attributable to a project or intangible asset 
over its estimated useful life and discounting these after-tax 
cash flows back to a present value. We base our revenue 
assumptions on estimates of relevant market sizes, expected 
market growth and trends in technology as well as anticipated 
product introductions by competitors. In arriving at the value of 
an IPR&D project, we consider, among other factors, the stage 
of completion, the complexity of the work to complete, the 
costs incurred, the projected cost of completion, the contribu-
tion of core technologies and other acquired assets, the 
expected introduction date and the estimated useful life of the 
technology. The discount rate used is determined at the time of 
acquisition and includes consideration of the assessed risk of 
the project not being developed to commercial feasibility. In 
arriving at the value of an intangible asset we consider the 
underlying products and estimated useful life of the technology, 
projected future product sales, legal agreements, patent litiga-
tion and anticipated product introductions by competitors. The 
discount rate used is determined at the time of acquisition and 
includes consideration of the assessed risk of the underlying 
products future sales.

At the time of acquisition, we expect all acquired IPR&D will 
reach technological feasibility, but there can be no assurance 
that the commercial viability of these projects will actually be 
achieved. The nature of the efforts to develop the acquired 
technologies into commercially viable products consists princi-
pally of planning, designing and conducting clinical trials nec-
essary to obtain regulatory approvals. The risks associated with 
achieving commercialization include, but are not limited to, 
delay or failure to obtain regulatory approvals to conduct clini-
cal trials, failure of clinical trials, delay or failure to obtain 
required market clearances and patent litigation. If commercial 
viability is not achieved, we would not realize the original esti-
mated financial benefits expected for these projects. We fund 
all costs to complete IPR&D projects with internally generated 
cash flows.

Our indefinite-lived intangible assets include trademarks and 
tradenames and our acquired IPR&D (discussed previously), 
which are assessed for impairment annually or more frequently 
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if changes in circumstance or the occurrence of events suggest 
impairment exists. The assessment for impairment requires us 
to make several judgments about fair value, which include the 
consideration of qualitative factors such as macroeconomic 
conditions, industry and market considerations, cost factors, 
financial performance, entity specific events, changes in net 
assets and sustained decrease in share price. Additional judg-
ment may also be required, including the consideration of pro-
jected future cash flows and the use of an appropriate 
risk-adjusted discount rate. Our indefinite-lived intangible 
assets were $297 million and $158 million at December 28, 
2013 and December 29, 2012, respectively. Of these amounts, 
$262 million and $109 million was capitalized as indefi-
nite-lived IPR&D intangible assets, respectively.

Goodwill recognized in connection with a business acquisition 
represents the excess of the aggregate purchase price over the 
fair value of net assets acquired. Goodwill is assessed for 
impairment annually or more frequently if changes in circum-
stance or the occurrence of events suggest impairment exists. 
The assessment for impairment requires us to make several 
judgments about fair value, which include the consideration of 
qualitative factors such as macroeconomic conditions, industry 
and market considerations, cost factors, financial performance, 
entity specific events, changes in net assets and sustained 
decrease in share price. Our judgments associated with the 
goodwill impairment assessment are considered critical due to 
the amount of goodwill recorded on our consolidated balance 
sheets. Additional judgment may also be required, including 
the consideration of projected future cash flows and the use of 
an appropriate risk-adjusted discount rate. Goodwill was 
$3,524 million and $2,961 million at December 28, 2013 and 
December 29, 2012, respectively.

Contingent consideration is recorded at the estimated fair value 
of the contingent milestone payment(s) on the acquisition date. 
The acquisition date fair value is measured based on the con-
sideration expected to be transferred (probability-weighted), 
discounted back to present value. The discount rate used is 
determined at the time of measurement in accordance with 
accepted valuation methods. The fair value of the contingent 
milestone consideration is remeasured at the estimated fair 
value at each reporting period with the change in fair value rec-
ognized in selling, general and administrative expense in our 
Consolidated Statements of Earnings. As a result, any changes 
in the fair value of the contingent consideration will impact our 
earnings in such reporting periods, thereby resulting in poten-
tial variability in our earnings until the contingencies are 
resolved. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consider-
ation liability can result from changes in discount rates and 
periods as well as changes in the timing and amount of reve-
nue estimates or in the timing or likelihood of achieving the 
milestones which trigger payment. Using different valuation 
assumptions including revenue or cash flow projections, growth 

rates, discount rates or probabilities of achieving the milestones 
could result in different purchase price allocations, amortiza-
tion expense and contingent consideration expense in the cur-
rent or future periods.

Income Taxes: As part of the process of preparing our consoli-
dated financial statements, we are required to estimate our 
income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. 
This process involves estimating the actual current tax expense 
as well as assessing temporary differences in the treatment of 
items for tax and financial accounting purposes. These timing 
differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which 
are included in our consolidated balance sheets. We assess the 
likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be recovered from 
future taxable income, and if it is considered more-likely-than-
not that we will not realize some portion of our deferred tax 
assets, a valuation allowance is recognized to reduce the carry-
ing value of the deferred tax assets. Gross deferred tax assets 
were $1,025 million at December 28, 2013 and $778 million at 
December 29, 2012. We have established valuation allowances 
of $368 million and $228 million at December 28, 2013 and 
December 29, 2012, respectively, to reduce deferred tax assets 
associated with net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards 
because we do not believe it is more-likely-than-not that these 
assets will be fully realized.

We have not provided U.S. income taxes on certain of our non-
U.S. subsidiaries’ undistributed earnings, as such amounts are 
intended to be reinvested outside the United States indefinitely. 
However, should we change our business and tax strategies in 
the future and decide to repatriate a portion of these earnings 
to one of our U.S. subsidiaries, including cash maintained by 
these non-U.S. subsidiaries, additional U.S. tax liabilities would 
be recognized. It is not practical to estimate the amount of 
additional U.S. tax liabilities we would incur.

We record our income tax provisions based on our knowledge 
of all relevant facts and circumstances, including the existing 
tax laws, our experience with previous settlement agreements, 
the status of current tax audits and examinations and our 
understanding of how the tax authorities view certain relevant 
industry and commercial matters. We recognize liabilities for 
anticipated tax audit issues in the United States and other tax 
jurisdictions based on our estimate of whether, and the extent 
to which, additional taxes will be due. Although we recognize 
income tax liabilities in accordance with ASC 740, Income 
Taxes, regarding uncertainty in income taxes, our accruals rep-
resent accounting estimates that are subject to the inherent 
uncertainties associated with the tax audit process, and there-
fore include certain contingencies. The finalization of the tax 
audit process across the various tax authorities, including fed-
eral, state and foreign, often takes many years. We adjust our 
income tax liabilities in light of changing facts and circum-
stances; however, due to the complexity of some of these 
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uncertainties, the ultimate resolution may result in a payment 
that is materially different from our current estimate of the tax 
liabilities. If our estimate of tax liabilities proves to be less than 
the ultimate assessment, an additional income tax expense 
would result. Specifically in 2012, we recognized $46 million of 
additional income tax expense related to a settlement reserve 
for certain prior year tax positions related to the 2002 through 
2009 tax years. At December 28, 2013, our liability for unrec-
ognized tax benefits was $315 million and our accrual for inter-
est and penalties was $37 million. At December 29, 2012, our 
liability for unrecognized tax benefits was $314 million and our 
accrual for interest and penalties was $69 million.

Litigation Reserves and Insurance Receivables: We operate in 
an industry that is susceptible to significant product liability 
and intellectual property claims. As a result, we are involved in 
a number of legal proceedings, the outcomes of which are not 
in our complete control and may not be known for extended 
periods of time. In accordance with ASC Topic 450, 
Contingencies, we record a liability in our consolidated financial 
statements for costs related to claims, including future legal 
costs, settlements and judgments where we have assessed that 
a loss is probable and an amount can be reasonably estimated. 
Product liability claims may be brought by individuals seeking 
relief for themselves or, increasingly, by groups seeking to rep-
resent a class. In addition, claims may be asserted against us 
in the future related to events that are not known to us at the 
present time. Our significant legal proceedings are discussed in 
detail in Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
While it is not possible to predict the outcome for most of the 
legal proceedings discussed in Note 5, the costs associated 
with such proceedings could have a material adverse effect on 
our consolidated earnings, financial position or cash flows of a 
future period.

We record a receivable from our legacy product liability insur-
ance carriers for amounts expected to be recovered. This 
includes amounts for legal matters where we have incurred 
defense costs or where we have recognized a liability for proba-
ble and estimable future legal costs, settlements or judgments. 
We record a receivable for the amount of insurance we expect 
to recover based on our assessment of the specific insurance 
policies, the nature of the claim, our experience with similar 
claims and our assessment of collectability based on our insur-
ers’ financial condition. To the extent our insurance carriers 
ultimately do not reimburse us, either because such costs are 
deemed to be outside the scope of our product liability insur-
ance policies or because our insurers may not be able to meet 
their payment obligations to us, the related losses we incur 
relating to these unreimbursed costs could have a material 
adverse effect on our consolidated earnings or cash flows.  
Our receivable from legacy product liability insurance carriers 
was $1 million at December 28, 2013 and $3 million at 
December 29, 2012.

Stock-Based Compensation: Under the fair value recognition 
provisions of ASC Topic 718, Compensation – Stock 
Compensation (ASC Topic 718), we measure stock-based com-
pensation expense at the grant date based on the fair value of 
the award and recognize the compensation expense over the 
requisite service period (vesting period) into cost of sales, 
research and development expense or selling, general and 
administrative expense in the Consolidated Statements 
of Earnings.

We use the Black-Scholes standard option pricing model (Black-
Scholes model) to determine the grant date fair value of stock 
options and employee stock purchase rights. The awards’ grant 
date fair value using the Black-Scholes model is affected by our 
stock price as well as assumptions of other variables, including 
projected employee stock option exercise behaviors (expected 
option life), risk-free interest rate, expected dividend yield and 
expected volatility of our stock price in future periods. The grant 
date fair value of restricted stock units and restricted stock 
awards is based on the closing stock price on the grant date. 

We analyze historical employee exercise and termination data 
to estimate the expected life assumption. We believe that his-
torical data currently represents the best estimate of the 
expected life of a new employee option. We also stratify our 
employee population based upon distinctive exercise behavior 
patterns. The risk-free interest rate we use is based on the U.S. 
Treasury zero-coupon yield curve on the grant date for a matu-
rity similar to the expected life of the options. Our dividend 
yield assumption is based on the expected annual dividend 
yield on the grant date. We calculate our expected volatility 
assumption by equally weighting historical and implied volatil-
ity. We believe that future volatility experience over the 
expected life of the option may differ from short-term volatility 
experience and therefore we utilize an equal weighting of both 
historical and implied volatility to provide the best estimate of 
expected volatility over the expected life of the option.

The amount of stock-based compensation expense we recog-
nize during a period is based on the portion of the awards that 
are ultimately expected to vest. We estimate pre-vesting award 
forfeitures at the time of grant by analyzing historical data and 
revising those estimates in subsequent periods if actual forfei-
tures differ from those estimates. Ultimately, the total expense 
recognized over the vesting period will equal the fair value of 
awards that actually vest.

If factors change and we employ different assumptions for esti-
mating stock-based compensation expense in future periods or 
if we decide to use a different option pricing model, the 
expense in future periods may differ significantly from what we 
have recorded in the current period and could materially affect 
our net earnings and net earnings per share of a future period.
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Business Combinations

On August 19, 2013, we acquired all the outstanding shares of 
Endosense for the equivalent of $171 million (160 million Swiss 
Francs) in net cash consideration. Endosense is based in 
Geneva, Switzerland and develops, manufactures and markets 
the TactiCath® irrigated ablation catheter to provide physicians 
a real-time, objective measure of the force to apply to the heart 
wall during a catheter ablation procedure. The Endosense 
force-sensing technology is CE Mark-approved for atrial fibrilla-
tion and supra ventricular tachycarida ablation. Under the 
terms of the acquisition agreement, we are obligated to make 
an additional cash payment of up to 150 million Swiss Francs 
(approximately $167 million at December 28, 2013), contin-
gent upon both the achievement and timing of FDA approval. 
The business combination expanded our atrial fibrillation prod-
uct portfolio and future product pipeline, including the potential 
to integrate the force-sensing technology to offer a MediGuide™-
enabled force-sensing ablation catheter and incorporate 
force-sensing data into our EnSite Velocity™ Mapping System.

On October 11, 2013, we exercised our exclusive purchase 
option and acquired all the outstanding shares of Nanostim for 
$121 million in net cash consideration. We previously held an 
investment in Nanostim, which provided us an 18% voting 
equity interest. Nanostim is based in Sunnyvale, California and 
has the first leadless, miniaturized cardiac pacemaker system, 
which received CE mark approval in August 2013. The 
Nanostim™ leadless pacemaker also received FDA conditional 
approval for its Investigational Device Exemption application 
and pivotal clinical trial protocol to begin evaluating the tech-
nology in the U.S. Under the terms of the acquisition agree-
ment, we are obligated to make additional cash payments of up 
to $65 million, contingent upon the achievement and timing of 
certain revenue-based milestones. The Nanostim acquisition 
expanded our cardiac rhythm management product portfolio 
and provides the potential for future product indications.

On June 7, 2013, we made an equity investment of $40 million 
in Spinal Modulation, a privately-held company that is focused 
on the development of an intraspinal neuromodulation therapy 
that delivers spinal cord stimulation targeting the dorsal root 
ganglion to manage chronic pain. The investment agreement 
resulted in a 19% voting equity interest and provided us the 
exclusive right, but not the obligation, to acquire Spinal 
Modulation for payments of up to $300 million during the 
period that extends through the completion of certain regula-
tory milestones. If we acquire Spinal Modulation, the contin-
gent acquisition agreement also provides for additional 
consideration payments contingent upon the achievement of 
certain revenue-based milestones. In connection with the 
investment and contingent acquisition agreement, we also 
entered into an exclusive international distribution agreement 
and obtained significant decision-making rights over Spinal 

Modulation’s operations and economic performance. We also 
committed to providing additional debt financing to Spinal 
Modulation of up to $15 million. Accordingly, effective June 7, 
2013, in accordance with ASC Topic 810, Consolidations (ASC 
Topic 810), we determined that Spinal Modulation was a vari-
able interest entity (VIE) for which St. Jude Medical was the 
primary beneficiary. Therefore, as of June 7, 2013, the finan-
cial condition and results of operations of Spinal Modulation 
were included in St. Jude Medical’s consolidated financial 
statements. The investment and exclusive international distri-
bution agreement provide strategic opportunities for growing 
our neuromodulation chronic pain portfolio.

During 2010, we made an equity investment of $60 million in 
CardioMEMS, Inc. (CardioMEMS), a privately-held company 
that is focused on the development of a wireless monitoring 
technology that can be placed directly into the pulmonary 
artery to assess cardiac performance via measurement of pul-
monary artery pressure. The investment agreement resulted in 
a 19% voting equity interest and provided us the exclusive 
right, but not the obligation, to acquire CardioMEMS for an 
additional payment of $375 million less any net debt payable to 
St. Jude Medical under a separate loan agreement entered into 
between CardioMEMS and the Company. In the first quarter of 
2013, we obtained significant decision-making rights over 
CardioMEMS’ operations and provided debt financing of $28 
million to CardioMEMS which was collateralized by substantially 
all the assets of CardioMEMS, including its intellectual property. 
In July 2013, we provided $9 million of additional debt financ-
ing to CardioMEMS. In accordance with ASC Topic 810, we 
reconsidered our arrangements with CardioMEMS and deter-
mined that effective February 27, 2013 CardioMEMS was a VIE 
for which St. Jude Medical is the primary beneficiary. As a 
result, as of February 27, 2013, the financial condition and 
results of operations of CardioMEMS were included in our con-
solidated financial statements. The investment agreement pro-
vides strategic opportunities for growing our cardiac rhythm 
management and heart failure therapy product portfolio.

Segment Performance

Our reportable segments consist of our Implantable Electronic 
Systems Division (IESD) and our Cardiovascular and Ablation 
Technologies Division (CATD). Our principal products in each 
segment are as follows: IESD – tachycardia implantable cardio-
verter defibrillator systems (ICDs), bradycardia pacemaker sys-
tems (pacemakers) and neurostimulation products (spinal cord 
and deep brain stimulation devices); and CATD – vascular 
products (vascular closure products, pressure measurement 
guidewires, optical coherence tomography (OCT) imaging prod-
ucts, vascular plugs and other vascular accessories), structural 
heart products (heart valve replacement and repair products 
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and structural heart defect devices) and AF products (EP intro-
ducers and catheters, advanced cardiac mapping, navigation 
and recording systems and ablation systems).

Net sales of our reportable segments include end-customer 
revenues from the sale of products they each develop and 
manufacture or distribute. The costs included in each of the 
reportable segments’ operating results include the direct costs 
of the products sold to customers and operating expenses 
managed by each of the reportable segments. Certain 
expenses managed by our selling and corporate functions, 
including all stock-based compensation expense, impairment 
charges, certain acquisition-related expenses, IPR&D charges, 
excise tax expense, special charges and centralized support 
groups’ operating expenses are not recorded in the IESD and 
CATD reportable segments. As a result, reportable segment 
operating profit is not representative of the operating profit of 
the products in these reportable segments.

The following table presents net sales and operating profit by 
reportable segment (in millions):

 IESD CATD Other Total

Fiscal Year 2013
Net sales   $3,209 $2,292 $        – $5,501
Operating profit  2,138 1,349 (2,436) 1,051

Fiscal Year 2012
Net sales   $ 3,277 $ 2,226 $         – $ 5,503

Operating profit  2,274 1,326 (2,500) 1,100

Fiscal Year 2011
Net sales   $ 3,453 $ 2,159 $         – $ 5,612

Operating profit  2,240 1,211 (2,336) 1,115

The following discussion of the changes in our net sales is pro-
vided by significant product categories within our reportable 
segments, which is the primary focus of our sales activities.

Implantable Electronic Systems Division

         2013 vs. 2012 vs. 
         2012 % 2011 % 
(in millions) 2013 2012 2011 Change Change

ICD systems $1,741 $1,743 $1,824 (0.1)% (4.4)%

Pacemaker systems 1,042 1,111 1,210 (6.2)% (8.2)%

Neuromodulation  
 products 426 423 419 0.7% 1.0%

      $3,209 $3,277 $3,453 (2.1)% (5.1)%

IESD 2013 net sales decreased 2% to $3,209 million com-
pared to 2012. Foreign currency translation had a $38 million 
(1 percentage point) unfavorable impact on 2013 net sales 
compared to the prior year.

2013 ICD net sales of $1,741 million were flat compared to 
2012. Although the ICD market has been experiencing low to 
mid-single digit percentage rate declines in average selling 
prices, we have experienced a sales volume benefit from our 
next-generation Ellipse™ and Assura™ devices (June 2013 FDA 
approval) featuring DynamicTx™ Over-Current Detection 
Algorithm, which automatically adjusts shock configurations 
and utilizes a new low friction coating on the device can to 
reduce the risk of lead-to-can abrasion. As a result, our U.S. 
2013 ICD net sales of $1,027 million increased 1% compared 
to 2012. Internationally, our 2013 ICD net sales of $714 million 
decreased 2% compared to the prior year primarily driven by 
unfavorable foreign currency translation of $16 million (2 per-
centage points), from the strengthening of the U.S. Dollar 
against the Japanese Yen. Going forward, we expect to con-
tinue to benefit from our next-generation Ellipse™ and Assura™ 
devices featuring DynamicTx™ Over-Current Detection 
Algorithm, which also received CE Mark approval in May 2013.

Pacemaker systems 2013 net sales of $1,042 million 
decreased 6% compared to 2012. The decrease was primarily 
driven by overall market declines in average selling prices and 
unfavorable foreign currency translation. In the United States, 
our pacemaker systems 2013 net sales of $424 million 
decreased 6% compared to 2012. Internationally, our 2013 
pacemaker systems net sales of $618 million decreased 6% 
compared to the prior year. Foreign currency translation had a 
$22 million (4 percentage points) unfavorable impact on inter-
national pacemaker systems net sales during 2013 compared 
to 2012. Partially offsetting the impact of average selling price 
declines and unfavorable foreign currency translation, our 
international pacemaker sales have begun to benefit from our 
July 2013 launch of our Accent MRI™ Pacemaker and the 
Tendril MRI™ lead, which received regulatory approval from the 
Japanese Ministry of Health, Labor and Welfare in June 2013, 
and from sales of our Allure Quadra™ CRT-P, which received CE 
Mark approval in April 2013.

Neuromodulation products 2013 net sales increased 1% to 
$426 million compared to 2012. The increase in net sales was 
driven by the net sales benefit from the Spinal Modulation 
Axium™ Neurostimulator System, for which we are the exclusive 
distributor. The Axium™ Neurostimulator System provides a 
more targeted therapy for patients suffering with chronic pain 
and is available for sale in Europe and Australia. Additionally, 
we continued to benefit from our deep brain stimulation busi-
ness for patients suffering from Parkinson’s disease, essential 
tremor or dystonia, as we continue to penetrate the interna-
tional market. Foreign currency translation did not have a sig-
nificant impact on 2013 Neuromodulation products net sales 
compared to the prior year.
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IESD 2012 net sales decreased 5% to $3,277 million com-
pared to 2011 as a result of contraction in the cardiac rhythm 
management market and unfavorable foreign currency transla-
tion. Foreign currency translation had an $81 million (2 per-
centage points) unfavorable impact on 2012 net sales 
compared to the prior year.

2012 ICD net sales of $1,743 million decreased 4% compared 
to 2011 primarily driven by unfavorable foreign currency trans-
lation and a decline in the U.S. ICD market which contracted at 
a mid single-digit percentage rate from the 2011 comparable 
period. Since the January 2011 publication of an ICD utilization 
article in the JAMA, subsequent hospital investigations by the 
DOJ and a significant increase in hospital ownership of physi-
cian practices, the U.S ICD market was negatively impacted in 
2012 by a decline in implant volumes and pricing. Partially off-
setting the U.S. ICD market contraction, we experienced a ben-
efit from sales of our Unify Quadra® Cardiac Resynchronization 
Therapy Defibrillator (CRT-D) and Quartet® Left Ventricular 
Quadripolar Pacing Lead, which was approved by the FDA in 
November 2011 and is the industry’s first quadripolar pacing 
system. Sales of our Assura™ portfolio of ICDs and CRT-Ds as 
well as our Ellipse™ ICD, which were approved by the FDA in 
May 2012, also provided a benefit to our 2012 net sales. 
Internationally, 2012 ICD net sales of $727 million decreased 
6% compared to 2011 due to $41 million of unfavorable for-
eign currency translation (5 percentage points) primarily due to 
the strengthening of the U.S. Dollar against the Euro.

Pacemaker systems 2012 net sales decreased 8% to $1,111 
million compared to 2011. In the United States, our 2012 
pacemaker net sales of $451 million decreased 10% compared 
to 2011. Internationally, our 2012 pacemaker net sales of $660 
million decreased 7% compared to 2011. Foreign currency 
translation had a $33 million (5 percentage points) unfavorable 
impact during 2012 compared to 2011. Our pacemaker sys-
tems 2012 net sales also decreased as a result of competitive 
pressures from a continued market progression towards 
implanting more MRI compatible pacemakers, particularly in 
the U.S. and Japan. Additionally, the market has experienced a 
slowdown in implant procedures, particularly in Europe with its 
economic disruptions negatively impacting procedural volumes. 
We introduced the AccentMRI® pacemaker family in Europe 
and certain markets in Asia during 2011 and launched our 
AccentMRI® pacemaker in Japan in July 2013.

Neuromodulation products 2012 net sales increased 1% to 
$423 million during 2012 due to continued market acceptance 
of our products and sales growth in our neurostimulation 
devices that help manage chronic pain. Foreign currency 
translation had a $7 million (2 percentage points) unfavorable 
impact on neuromodulation products net sales during 2012 
compared to 2011.

Cardiovascular and Ablation  
Technologies Division
         2013 vs. 2012 vs. 
         2012 % 2011 % 
(in millions) 2013 2012 2011 Change Change

Atrial fibrillation (AF)  
 products $   957 $   898 $   822 6.6% 9.2%

Vascular products 704 716 740 (1.7)% (3.2)%

Structural heart  
 products 631 612 597 3.1% 2.5%

      $2,292 $2,226 $2,159 3.0% 3.1%

CATD 2013 net sales increased 3% to $2,292 million com-
pared to 2012. Foreign currency translation had a $63 million 
(3 percentage points) unfavorable impact on 2013 CATD net 
sales compared to the prior year.

AF products 2013 net sales increased 7% to $957 million  
compared to the prior year due to the continued increase in EP 
catheter ablation procedures, the continued market penetration 
of our EnSite® Velocity System and related connectivity tools 
(EnSite Connect™, EnSite Courier™ and EnSite Derexi™ mod-
ules) and our intracardiac echocardiography imaging product 
offerings, which provide physicians a clear picture of the inner 
workings of the heart through an ultrasound probe. Foreign 
currency translation had a $25 million (3 percentage points) 
unfavorable impact on AF products 2013 net sales compared 
to 2012. Going forward we expect to continue to benefit from 
our recent European launch of our TactiCath® irrigated ablation 
catheter, acquired through our Endosense acquisition in 
August 2013. The TactiCath® irrigated ablation catheter pro-
vides physicians a real-time, objective measure of the force to 
apply to the heart wall during a catheter ablation procedure.

Vascular products 2013 net sales decreased 2% to $704 mil-
lion compared to 2012 primarily due to unfavorable foreign 
currency translation of $25 million (4 percentage points) and 
net sales declines related to our third party products we distrib-
ute in Japan compared to the prior year. As a result of the eco-
nomic pressures and average selling price declines in the 
Japan market, many third party manufacturers have migrated 
to a direct selling model with end customers, which resulted in 
a revenue decrease during 2013 compared to 2012. This 
decrease was partially offset by increased revenues in our 
Fractional Flow Reserve (FFR) technology products and OCT 
imaging products during 2013 compared to the prior year. 
Additionally, we experienced a net sales benefit from our recent 
European launch of our next-generation EnligHTN™ Renal 
Denervation System for treating patients with drug-resistant, 
uncontrolled hypertension, which received CE Mark approval in 
late August 2013.

Structural heart products 2013 net sales increased 3% to $631 
million compared to 2012. The 2013 net sales increase was 
primarily driven by sales of our Trifecta™ pericardial stented 
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tissue valve and our AMPLATZER™ occluder products, partially 
offset by a net sales decrease in our mechanical heart valves 
due to a market preference for tissue heart valves. Additionally, 
foreign currency translation had a $13 million (2 percentage 
points) unfavorable impact on structural heart products 2013 
net sales compared to the prior year.

CATD 2012 net sales increased 3% to $2,226 million com-
pared to 2011. Foreign currency translation had a $56 million 
(3 percentage points) unfavorable impact on 2012 CATD net 
sales compared to the prior year.

AF products 2012 net sales increased 9% to $898 million 
compared to 2011 due to the continued increase in EP cathe-
ter ablation procedures, the continued market penetration of 
our EnSite® Velocity System and related connectivity tools and 
our intracardiac echocardiography imaging technique. Foreign 
currency translation had a $20 million (2 percentage points) 
unfavorable impact on AF products net sales during 2012 
compared to 2011.

Vascular products 2012 net sales decreased 3% to $716 mil-
lion compared to 2011 primarily due to the termination of a 
distribution contract in Japan which negatively impacted our 
2012 vascular product net sales by 7%. Foreign currency 
translation also unfavorably impacted vascular products 2012 
net sales by $17 million (2 percentage points) compared to 
2011. These decreases were partially offset by increases in 
sales of our OCT products, led by our Ilumien™ hardware plat-
form, which combines both OCT and FFR capabilities into a 
single system, as well as sales volume increases in our FFR 
technology products as we continue to penetrate the market.

Structural heart products net sales increased 3% to $612 mil-
lion during 2012 compared to 2011 driven by an increase in 
our tissue heart valve sales volumes, led by our Trifecta™ prod-
uct line of pericardial stented tissue valves. Overall tissue heart 
valve sales volumes increased 20% during 2012 compared to 
2011. Foreign currency translation unfavorably impacted struc-
tural heart products net sales by $19 million (3 percentage 
points) during 2012 compared to 2011.

Results of Operations

Net Sales
         2013 vs. 2012 vs. 
         2012 % 2011 % 
(in millions) 2013 2012 2011 Change Change

Net sales  $5,501 $5,503 $5,612 –% (1.9)%

Overall, 2013 net sales were flat compared to 2012. Foreign 
currency translation had an unfavorable impact of $101 mil-
lion, or 2%, on 2013 net sales compared to 2012 due primarily 
to the strengthening of the U.S. Dollar against the Japanese 

Yen. Partially offsetting the unfavorably foreign currency 
impact, we experienced net sales benefits primarily in our AF 
business due to the continued increase in EP catheter ablation 
procedures, further market penetration of our EnSite® Velocity 
System and related connectivity tools as well as our intracar-
diac echocardiography imaging product offerings.

Overall, 2012 net sales decreased 2% compared to 2011. 
Foreign currency translation had an unfavorable impact of 
$137 million, or 2%, on 2012 net sales compared to 2011 due 
primarily to the strengthening of the U.S. Dollar against the 
Euro. Net sales in 2012 also decreased due to the contraction 
of the ICD and pacemaker markets world-wide. These 
decreases were partially offset by our AF products net 
sales increases.

Foreign currency translation relating to our international opera-
tions can have a significant impact on our operating results 
from year to year. The two main currencies influencing our 
operating results are typically the Euro and the Japanese Yen. 
As discussed previously, foreign currency translation had a 
$101 million unfavorable impact on 2013 net sales compared 
to 2012 and a $137 million unfavorable impact on 2012 net 
sales compared to 2011. These impacts to net sales are not 
indicative of the net earnings impact of foreign currency trans-
lation due to partially offsetting foreign currency translation 
impacts on cost of sales and operating expenses.

Net sales by geographic location of the customer were as fol-
lows (in millions):

Net Sales  2013 2012 2011

United States   $2,596 $2,594 $2,648

International

 Europe    1,473 1,432 1,559

 Japan     567 665 641

 Asia Pacific   490 456 416

 Other     375 356 348

        2,905 2,909 2,964

        $5,501 $5,503 $5,612

Gross Profit
(in millions)  2013 2012 2011

Gross profit   $3,927 $3,965 $4,079

Percentage of net sales  71.4% 72.1% 72.7%

Gross profit for 2013 totaled $3,927 million, or 71.4% of net 
sales, compared to $3,965 million, or 72.1% of net sales in 
2012. Our 2013 gross profit percentage (or gross margin) was 
negatively impacted by special charges of $45 million, or 0.8 
percentage points, related to our previously announced 2012 
business realignment plan and IESD field action costs. Special 
charges in 2012 negatively impacted gross profit by $93 mil-
lion, or 1.6 percentage points, due to our previously announced 
realignment and restructuring plans, IESD litigation and field 
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action costs and inventory write-offs. Refer to “Special 
Charges” within the Results of Operations section for a more 
detailed discussion of these charges. Compared to prior years, 
our 2013 gross margin includes U.S. medical device and 
Puerto Rico excise taxes assessed on the sale of our products, 
negatively impacting our 2013 gross margin by 0.9 percent-
age points.

Gross profit for 2012 totaled $3,965 million, or 72.1% of net 
sales, compared to $4,079 million, or 72.7% of net sales in 
2011. Special charges in 2012 negatively impacted gross profit 
by $93 million, or 1.6 percentage points, due to our previously 
announced realignment and restructuring plans, IESD litigation 
and field action costs and inventory write-offs. Special charges 
of $47 million in 2011 negatively impacted our gross profit by 
0.8 percentage points due to our 2011 restructuring actions 
discussed previously. Additionally, U.S. GAAP requires inven-
tory acquired in a business acquisition to be recorded at fair 
value, which closely approximates normal end-customer selling 
price. This resulted in higher cost of sales for AGA Medical and 
LightLab Imaging, Inc. products sold in both 2011 and 2010, 
which negatively impacted our 2011 gross profit by approxi-
mately 0.5 percentage points.

Selling, General and Administrative  
(SG&A) Expense
(in millions)  2013 2012 2011

Selling, general and  
 administrative expense  $1,884 $1,891 $2,084

Percentage of net sales  34.2% 34.4% 37.1%

SG&A expense for 2013 totaled $1,884 million, or 34.2% of net 
sales, compared to $1,891 million, or 34.4% of net sales in 
2012. The decrease in our 2013 SG&A expense as a percent of 
net sales compared to 2012 was primarily driven by cost sav-
ings initiatives, resulting from the realignment plan initiated in 
August 2012. Partially offsetting this decrease, we recognized 
$9 million of accounts receivable allowance charges for the 
increased collection risk associated with a certain distributor 
account receivable in Europe, unfavorably impacting SG&A 
expense as a percent of net sales by approximately 0.1 per-
centage point.

SG&A expense for 2012 totaled $1,891 million, or 34.4% of net 
sales, compared to $2,084 million, or 37.1% of net sales in 
2011. The decrease in our 2012 SG&A expense as a percent of 
net sales compared to 2011 was primarily driven by cost sav-
ings initiatives associated with our 2012 realignment plan. 
Additionally, our 2011 SG&A expense included $25 million of 
contract termination and international integration charges 
related to our AGA Medical acquisition, $15 million of contribu-
tions made to the St. Jude Medical Foundation and $66 million 
of accounts receivable allowance charges for the increased 

collection risk associated with certain customer accounts 
receivables in Europe for a combined SG&A impact of 1.9 per-
centage points.

Research and Development (R&D) Expense
(in millions)  2013 2012 2011

Research and  development expense $691 $676 $705

Percentage of net sales  12.6% 12.3% 12.6%

R&D expense in 2013 totaled $691 million, or 12.6% of net 
sales, compared to $676 million, or 12.3% of net sales in 
2012 and $705 million, or 12.6% of net sales in 2011. R&D 
expense as a percent of net sales has remained relatively con-
sistent, reflecting our continuing commitment to fund future 
long-term growth opportunities. We will continue to balance 
delivering short-term results with our investments in long-term 
growth drivers.

Purchased In-Process Research and 
Development (IPR&D) Charges
(in millions)  2013 2012 2011

Purchased in-process research  
 and development charges  $ – $ – $4

During 2011, we recorded IPR&D charges of $4 million in con-
nection with the purchase of cardiac rhythm management-re-
lated intellectual property. As the related technological 
feasibility had not yet been reached and such technology had 
no future alternative use, the purchase of the intellectual prop-
erty assets was expensed as IPR&D.

Special Charges
(in millions)  2013 2012 2011

Cost of sales special charges  $  45 $  93 $  47

Special charges   301 298 171

        $346 $391 $218

We recognize certain transactions and events as special 
charges in our consolidated financial statements. These 
charges (such as restructuring charges, impairment charges 
and certain settlement or litigation charges) result from facts 
and circumstances that vary in frequency and impact on our 
results of operations. In order to enhance segment comparabil-
ity and reflect management’s focus on the ongoing operations, 
special charges are not reflected in the individual reportable 
segments operating results.

2012 Business Realignment Plan: During 2012, we incurred 
charges of $185 million from the realignment of our product 
divisions into two new operating divisions: IESD (combining our 
legacy Cardiac Rhythm Management and Neuromodulation 
product divisions) and CATD (combining our legacy 
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Cardiovascular and Atrial Fibrillation product divisions). In 
addition, we centralized certain support functions, including 
information technology, human resources, legal, business 
development and certain marketing functions. The organiza-
tional changes were part of a comprehensive plan to accelerate 
growth, reduce costs and leverage economies of scale. Of the 
$185 million recorded as special charges, $24 million was rec-
ognized in cost of sales. In connection with the realignment, we 
recognized $109 million of severance costs and other termina-
tion benefits after management determined that such sever-
ance and benefit costs were probable and estimable. The 2012 
business realignment plan reduced our workforce by approxi-
mately 5%. We also recognized $17 million of inventory write-
offs associated with discontinued CATD product lines and $41 
million of incremental depreciation charges and fixed asset 
write-offs primarily related to information technology assets no 
longer expected to be utilized or with a limited remaining useful 
life. Additionally, we recognized $18 million of other restructur-
ing costs which included $7 million of contract termination 
costs and $11 million of other costs.

During 2013, we incurred additional charges totaling $220 mil-
lion related to the realignment plan initiated during 2012. Of 
the $220 million recorded as special charges, $35 million was 
recorded in cost of sales. We also recognized severance costs 
and other termination benefits of $75 million after management 
determined that such severance and benefit costs were proba-
ble and estimable. Additionally, we recorded $30 million of 
inventory write-offs primarily associated with discontinued 
CATD product lines, $13 million of fixed asset write-offs primar-
ily related to information technology assets no longer expected 
to be utilized and $102 million of other restructuring costs. Of 
the $102 million in other restructuring costs, $64 million was 
associated with distributor and other contract termination costs 
and office consolidation costs, including a $23 million charge 
related to the termination of a research agreement, and $38 
million was associated with other costs, all as part of our con-
tinued integration efforts.

2011 Restructuring Plan: During 2011, we incurred charges 
totaling $162 million related to restructuring actions to realign 
certain activities in our legacy cardiac rhythm management 
business and sales and selling support organizations. These 
actions included phasing out cardiac rhythm management 
manufacturing and R&D operations in Sweden, reductions in 
our workforce and rationalizing product lines. Of the $162 mil-
lion recorded as special charges, $47 million was recognized in 
cost of sales. In connection with the staged phase-out of the 
manufacturing and R&D operations in Sweden, we began rec-
ognizing severance costs and other termination benefits for 
over 650 employees totaling $82 million during 2011. 

Additionally, we recognized $20 million of inventory obsoles-
cence charges primarily associated with the rationalization  
of product lines across our business. We also recorded  
$26 million of impairment and incremental depreciation 
charges, of which $12 million related to an impairment charge 
to write-down our manufacturing facility in Sweden to its fair 
value. Additionally, we recognized $34 million of other restruc-
turing charges primarily associated with the cardiac rhythm 
management business’ restructuring actions ($13 million of 
pension settlement charges associated with the termination of 
Sweden’s defined benefit pension plan and $4 million of idle 
facility costs related to transitioning manufacturing operations 
out of Sweden) as well as $7 million of contract termination 
costs and $10 million of other costs.

During 2012, we incurred additional charges totaling $102 mil-
lion related to the restructuring actions initiated during 2011. 
Of the $102 million recorded as special charges, $44 million 
was recorded in cost of sales. We recognized severance costs 
and other termination benefits of $38 million for an additional 
100 employees after management determined that such sever-
ance and benefit costs were probable and estimable. We also 
recognized $13 million of inventory obsolescence charges pri-
marily related with the rationalization of product lines in our 
IESD division. Additionally, we recognized $51 million of other 
restructuring charges which included $37 million of restructur-
ing related charges associated with our legacy cardiac rhythm 
management business and selling support organizations (of 
which $13 million related to idle facility costs in Sweden). The 
remaining charges included $8 million of contract termination 
costs and $6 million of other costs.

During 2013, we recognized additional charges totaling $24 
million related to the restructuring actions initiated during 
2011. Of the $24 million recorded as special charges, we rec-
ognized severance costs and other termination benefits of $5 
million after management determined that such severance and 
benefit costs were probable and estimable. We also recognized 
$1 million of fixed write-offs and $18 million of other restructur-
ing costs, primarily associated with idle facility costs in Sweden.

Other Special Charges:  
Intangible Asset Impairment Charges – During 2013, we recog-
nized impairment charges of $29 million to write-down certain 
CATD indefinite-lived tradename and IPR&D assets to fair 
value. The impairments were due primarily to our revised 
expectations, including an increase in the cost and length of 
time to bring the related products to market through U.S. regu-
latory approval. During 2012, we recognized a $23 million 
impairment charge for certain developed technology intangible 
assets, as our updated expectations for the future cash flows of 
the related neuromodulation product lines decreased, ulti-
mately resulting in the related assets’ fair value falling below 
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carrying value. We also discontinued certain CATD product 
lines and recognized $8 million of impairment charges to fully 
impair the related developed technology intangible assets.

During 2013, 2012 and 2011, we recognized $13 million,  
$2 million and $52 million, respectively, of intangible asset 
impairments primarily related to our customer relationship 
intangible assets acquired in connection with legacy acquisi-
tions of businesses involved in the distribution of our products. 
Due to the changing dynamics of the U.S. healthcare market, 
specifically as it relates to hospital purchasing practices, we 
determined that these intangible assets had no future discrete 
cash flows and were fully impaired.

Settlement Charges – During 2013, we agreed to settle a  
dispute on licensed technology associated with certain CATD 
products lines. In connection with the settlement, which 
resolved all disputed claims, we recognized a $22 million set-
tlement expense. During 2012, we agreed to settle a dispute 
on licensed technology for our Angio-Seal™ vascular closure 
devices. In connection with this settlement, which resolved all 
disputed claims and included a fully-paid perpetual license, 
we recognized a $28 million settlement expense. During 2011, 
we recognized a $4 million legal settlement charge after reach-
ing an agreement with the Office of Inspector General of the 
Department of Health and Human Services to settle a previ-
ously disclosed investigation initiated in December 2008 
related to allegations that we failed to properly apply certain 
warranty credits.

Litigation Charges – During 2013 and 2012, we recognized  
$28 million and $16 million, respectively, of litigation charges 
for future probable and estimable legal costs related to out-
standing matters associated with IESD field actions.

Field Action Charges – During 2013, we recognized special 
charges of $10 million, which was recorded to cost of sales, for 
additional costs related to the voluntary field action initiated in 
late 2012 associated with certain neuromodulation implantable 
pulse generator charging systems. During 2012, we recognized 
special charges of $27 million, of which $25 million was 
charged to cost of sales, for costs primarily related to the neu-
romodulation 2012 field action.

Other Expense, Net
(in millions)  2013 2012 2011

Interest income   $   (5) $ (5) $ (4)

Interest expense   81 73 70

Other      191 27 30

Other expense, net   $267 $95 $96

During 2013, we redeemed the full $700 million principal 
amount of 5-year, 3.75% unsecured senior notes originally due 
in 2014 (2014 Senior Notes) and the full $500 million principal 
amount of 10-year, 4.875% unsecured senior notes originally 
due in 2019 (2019 Senior Notes). In connection with the 
redemption of these notes prior to their scheduled maturities, 
we recognized a $161 million debt retirement charge to other 
expense associated primarily with make-whole redemption pay-
ments and the write-off of unamortized debt issuance costs. 
Additionally, in connection with the initial February 2013 con-
solidation of CardioMEMS, we recognized a $29 million loss to 
other expense related to a fair value remeasurement adjust-
ment during 2013 to adjust the carrying value of our 
CardioMEMS equity investment and fixed price pur-
chase option.

Income Taxes
(as a percent of pre-tax income)  2013 2012 2011

Effective tax rate   11.7% 25.2% 19.0%

Our effective tax rate differs from our U.S. federal statutory 
35% tax rate due to our international operations that are sub-
ject to foreign tax rates that are lower from the U.S. federal 
statutory rate, state and local taxes and domestic tax incen-
tives. Our effective tax rate is also impacted by discrete factors 
or events such as special charges, non-deductible charges, tax 
law changes or the resolution of audits by tax authorities.

Our effective tax rate was 11.7% in 2013 compared to 25.2% 
in 2012 and 19.0% in 2011. Debt redemption charges and 
special charges favorably impacted our 2013 effective tax rate 
by 7.7 percentage points. Additionally, our 2013 effective tax 
rate includes the full year 2012 benefit of the federal research 
and development tax credit (R&D tax credit), which was 
extended for 2012 in January 2013. As a result, our effective 
tax rate for 2013 was favorably impacted by 1.6 percentage 
points and our 2012 effective tax rate was negatively impacted 
by 1.6 percentage points as a result of the late extension. 
Additionally, during 2012 we resolved certain prior year tax 
positions with the IRS and recognized a $46 million settlement 
reserve to income tax expense, negatively impacting our 2012 
effective tax rate by 4.6 percentage points. Special charges, 
however, favorably impacted our 2012 effective tax rate by 2.6 
percentage points. During 2011, special charges, non-deduct-
ible IPR&D charges and accounts receivable allowance 
charges favorably impacted the 2011 effective tax rate by 2.5 
percentage points. Refer to Purchased in-process research and 
development charges and Special charges sections for further 
details regarding these charges.
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Net Earnings Attributable to  
St. Jude Medical, Inc.
         2013 vs.  2012 vs. 
(in millions, except    2012 % 2011 % 
per share amounts) 2013 2012 2011 Change Change

Net earnings $723 $752 $826 (3.9)% (9.0)%

Diluted net earnings  
 per share $2.49 $2.39 $2.52 4.2% (5.2)%

Our 2013 net earnings of $723 million decreased 4% and 
diluted net earnings per share of $2.49 increased 4% com-
pared to 2012 net earnings of $752 million and diluted net 
earnings per share of $2.39, respectively. Our 2013 net earn-
ings were negatively impacted by after-tax special charges of 
$242 million, or $0.83 per diluted share, related to our previ-
ously discussed business realignment and restructuring plans, 
intangible asset impairment charges, IESD litigation and field 
action costs and a license dispute settlement charge. 
Additionally, we recognized after-tax debt retirement charges of 
$101 million primarily related to make-whole redemption pay-
ments and the write-off of unamortized debt issuance costs 
and after-tax charges of $49 million associated with transaction 
costs and other acquisition-related charges, including a $29 
million after-tax remeasurement loss to adjust the carrying 
value of our pre-existing CardioMEMS equity investment and 
fixed price purchase option to fair value. These charges were 
partially offset by a $21 million income tax benefit related to the 
2012 federal research and development tax credit extended in 
the first quarter of 2013, retroactive to the beginning of our 
2012 tax year, resulting in a net after-tax impact of $371 mil-
lion, or $1.27 per diluted share. Our 2012 net earnings were 
negatively impacted by after-tax special charges of $275 million 
and discrete income tax expense of $46 million for a combined 
impact of $321 million, or $1.02 per diluted share. The special 
charges related to our 2012 realignment plan announced in 
August 2012, ongoing restructuring charges related to the 
2011 restructuring plan, IESD litigation and field action costs, a 
license dispute settlement charge, intangible asset impairment 
charges and inventory write-offs. The discrete income tax 
expense related to a settlement reserve for certain prior year 
tax positions. The impact of the after-tax charges to diluted net 
earnings per share were partially offset by share repurchases, 
resulting in lower outstanding shares during 2013 compared 
to 2012.

Net earnings were $752 million in 2012, a 9% decrease over 
2011 net earnings of $826 million. Diluted net earnings per 
share were $2.39 in 2012, a 5% decrease over 2011 diluted 
earnings per share of $2.52. Our 2012 net earnings were nega-
tively impacted by after-tax special charges of $275 million and

discrete income tax expense of $46 million for a combined 
impact of $321 million, or $1.02 per diluted share, discussed 
previously. During 2011, our net earnings were negatively 
impacted by after-tax special charges of $151 million and after-
tax accounts receivable allowance charges of $47 million for a 
combined impact of $198 million, or $0.61 per diluted share. 
The impact of the after-tax charges to diluted net earnings per 
share were partially offset by share repurchases, resulting in 
lower outstanding shares during 2012 compared to 2011.

Liquidity

We believe that our existing cash balances, future cash gener-
ated from operations and available borrowing capacity under 
our $1.5 billion long-term committed credit facility (Credit 
Facility) and related commercial paper program will be suffi-
cient to fund our operating needs, working capital requirements, 
R&D opportunities, capital expenditures, debt service require-
ments and shareholder dividends (see Dividends section) over 
the next 12 months and in the foreseeable future thereafter.

We believe that our earnings, cash flows and balance sheet 
position will permit us to obtain additional debt financing or 
equity capital should suitable investment and growth opportuni-
ties arise. Our credit ratings are investment grade. We monitor 
capital markets regularly and may raise additional capital when 
market conditions or interest rate environments are favorable.

At December 28, 2013, substantially all of our cash and cash 
equivalents were held by our non-U.S. subsidiaries. A portion 
of these foreign cash balances are associated with earnings 
that are permanently reinvested and which we plan to use to 
support our continued growth plans outside the United States 
through funding of operating expenses, capital expenditures 
and other investment and growth opportunities. The majority of 
these funds are only available for use by our U.S. operations if 
they are repatriated into the United States. The funds repatri-
ated would be subject to additional U.S. taxes upon repatria-
tion; however, it is not practical to estimate the amount of 
additional U.S. tax liabilities we would incur. We currently have 
no plans to repatriate funds held by our non-U.S. subsidiaries.

We use two primary measures that focus on accounts receiv-
able and inventory – days sales outstanding (DSO) and days 
inventory on hand (DIOH). We use DSO as a measure that 
places emphasis on how quickly we collect our accounts 
receivable balances from customers. We use DIOH, which can 
also be expressed as a measure of the estimated number of 
days of cost of sales on hand, as a measure that places 
emphasis on how efficiently we are managing our inventory lev-
els. These measures may not be computed the same as simi-
larly titled measures used by other companies. Our DSO 
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(ending net accounts receivable divided by average daily sales 
for the most recently completed quarter) increased from 89 
days at December 29, 2012 to 91 days at December 28, 2013. 
Our DIOH (ending net inventory divided by average daily cost 
of sales for the most recently completed six months) increased 
from 143 days at December 29, 2012 to 158 days at 
December 28, 2013. Special charges recognized in cost of 
sales in the last half of 2013 reduced our December 28, 2013 
DIOH by 5 days. Special charges recognized in cost of sales in 
the second half of 2012 reduced our December 29, 2012 
DIOH by 11 days.

A summary of our cash flows from operating, investing and 
financing activities is provided in the following table (in 
millions):

  2013 2012 2011

Net cash provided by (used in):

 Operating activities   $ 961 $1,335 $1,287

 Investing activities   (522) (313) (337)

 Financing activities   (257) (813) (456)

Effect of currency exchange  
 rate changes on cash and  
 cash equivalents   (3) (1) (8)

Net increase in cash  
 and cash equivalents  $ 179 $   208 $   486

Operating Cash Flows
Cash provided by operating activities was $961 million for 2013 
compared to $1,335 million for 2012 and $1,287 million for 
2011. Operating cash flows can fluctuate significantly from 
period to period due to payment timing differences of working 
capital accounts such as accounts receivable, accounts pay-
able, accrued liabilities and income taxes payable. During 
2013, we made a $106 million payment to the IRS to suspend 
interest charges on prior period tax positions related to our 
2002 through 2009 tax years.

Investing Cash Flows
Cash used in investing activities was $522 million in 2013 
compared to $313 million in 2012 and $337 million in 2011. 
Our purchases of property, plant and equipment, which totaled 
$222 million, $280 million and $307 million in 2013, 2012 and 
2011, respectively, reflect our continued investment in our 
product growth platforms currently in place. Additionally, 
during 2013, we acquired Endosense for $171 million in net 
cash consideration and we acquired Nanostim for $121 million 
in net cash consideration.

Financing Cash Flows

Cash used in financing activities was $257 million in 2013 
compared to $813 million in 2012 and $456 million in 2011. 
Our financing cash flows can fluctuate significantly depending 
upon our liquidity needs and the amount of stock option exer-
cises and the extent of our common stock repurchases. A sum-
mary of our financing cashflows is provided in the following 
table (in millions):

  2013 2012 2011

Stock issued under employee  
 stock plans, net of tax benefit  $ 458 $ 120 $ 311

Common stock repurchases  (833) (992) (809)

Dividends paid   (282) (284) (205)

Debt borrowings, net   554 321 247

Other, net    (154) 22 –

Net cash used in financing activities $(257) $(813) $(456)

During 2013, we issued $900 million principal amount of 
10-year, 3.25% unsecured senior notes (2023 Senior Notes) 
and $700 million principal amount of 30-year, 4.75% unse-
cured senior notes (2043 Senior Notes). We used the majority 
of the proceeds to redeem both our $700 million principal 
amount 2014 Senior Notes and our $500 million principal 
amount 2019 Senior Notes. We used the remaining proceeds 
from the issuance of our 2023 Senior Notes and 2043 Senior 
Notes for general corporate purposes. We also entered into a 
2-year, $500 million unsecured term loan and used the pro-
ceeds for general corporate purposes. Our repurchases of our 
common stock during fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011 was 
funded from cash generated from operations and issuances of 
commercial paper.

Debt and Credit Facilities

Total debt increased to $3,580 million at December 28, 2013 
from $3,080 million at December 29, 2012. Our weighted aver-
age effective interest rate on outstanding long-term debt, inclu-
sive of interest rate swaps, was 2.2% at both December 28, 
2013 and December 29, 2012.

In June 2013, we entered into a 2-year, $500 million unse-
cured term loan, the proceeds of which were used for general 
corporate purposes, including the repayment of outstanding 
commercial paper borrowings. These borrowings bear interest 
at LIBOR plus 0.5%, subject to adjustment in the event of a 
change in our credit ratings. We may make principal payments 
on the outstanding borrowings any time after June 26, 2014.
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In December 2010, we issued our $500 million principal 
amount 5-year, 2.50% unsecured senior notes (2016 Senior 
Notes). The majority of the net proceeds from the issuance of 
the 2016 Senior Notes was used for general corporate pur-
poses. Interest payments are required on a semi-annual basis. 
We may redeem the 2016 Senior Notes at any time at the 
applicable redemption price. The 2016 Senior Notes are senior 
unsecured obligations and rank equally with all of our existing 
and future senior unsecured indebtedness.

Concurrent with the issuance of the 2016 Senior Notes, we 
entered into a 5-year, $500 million notional amount interest 
rate swap designated as a fair value hedge of the changes in 
fair value of our fixed-rate 2016 Senior Notes. In June 2012, 
we terminated the interest rate swap and received a cash pay-
ment of $24 million. The gain from terminating the interest rate 
swap agreement is reflected as an increase to the carrying 
value of the debt and is being amortized as a reduction of inter-
est expense over the remaining life of the 2016 Senior Notes.

In April 2013, we issued $900 million principal amount of 
2023 Senior Notes and $700 million principal amount of 2043 
Senior Notes. We used a portion of the proceeds to redeem our 
$700 million principal amount of 2014 Senior Notes and our 
$500 million principal amount of 2019 Senior Notes. We intend 
to use the remaining proceeds for general corporate purposes. 
Interest payments are required on a semi-annual basis. We 
may redeem the 2023 Senior Notes or the 2043 Senior Notes 
at any time at the applicable redemption prices. Both the 2023 
Senior Notes and 2043 Senior Notes are senior unsecured 
obligations and rank equally with all of our existing and future 
senior unsecured indebtedness.

In March 2010, we issued $450 million principal amount of 
3-year, 2.20% senior notes that matured on September 15, 
2013, which we paid in full utilizing our commercial paper bor-
rowings and cash generated from operations.

In April 2010, we issued 10-year, 2.04% unsecured senior 
notes in Japan (2.04% Yen Notes) totaling 12.8 billion 
Japanese Yen (the equivalent of $122 million at December 28, 
2013) and 7-year, 1.58% unsecured senior notes in Japan 
(1.58% Yen Notes) totaling 8.1 billion Japanese Yen (the equiv-
alent of $78 million at December 28, 2013). We used the pro-
ceeds from these issuances to retire outstanding debt 
obligations. Interest payments on the 2.04% Yen Notes and 
1.58% Yen Notes are required on a semi-annual basis and the 
principal amounts recorded on the balance sheet fluctuate 
based on the effects of foreign currency translation.

In March 2011, we borrowed 6.5 billion Japanese Yen under 
uncommitted credit facilities with two commercial Japanese 
banks that provide for borrowings up to a maximum of 11.25 
billion Japanese Yen. The outstanding 6.5 billion Japanese Yen 

balance was the equivalent of $62 million at December 28, 
2013. The principal amount reflected on the balance sheet 
fluctuates based on the effects of foreign currency translation. 
Half of the borrowings bear interest at the Yen LIBOR plus 
0.25% and mature in March 2014, and the other half of the 
borrowings bear interest at the Yen LIBOR plus 0.275% and 
mature in June 2014. The maturity dates of each credit facility 
automatically extend for a one-year period, unless we elect to 
terminate the credit facility.

During 2013, we entered into a long-term $1.5 billion commit-
ted Credit Facility used to support our commercial paper pro-
gram and for general corporate purposes. The Credit Facility 
expires in May 2018. Borrowings under this facility bear inter-
est initially at LIBOR plus 0.8%, subject to adjustment in the 
event of a change in our credit ratings. Commitment fees under 
this Credit Facility are not material. The Credit Facility replaces 
our previous $1.5 billion credit facility that was scheduled to 
expire in February 2015. There were no outstanding borrow-
ings under either facility as of December 28, 2013 or 
December 29, 2012.

Our commercial paper program provides for the issuance of 
short-term, unsecured commercial paper with maturities up to 
270 days. At December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012 we 
had an outstanding commercial paper balance of $714 million 
and $593 million, respectively. During 2013 and 2012, our 
weighted average effective interest rate on our outstanding 
commercial paper borrowings was 0.24% and 0.23%, respec-
tively. Any future commercial paper borrowings would bear 
interest at the applicable then-current market rates. Our pre-
dominant historical practice has been to issue commercial 
paper (up to the amount backed by our available borrowing 
capacity under the Credit Facility), as our commercial paper 
has historically been issued at lower interest rates.

Our Credit Facility and Yen Notes contain certain operating and 
financial covenants. Specifically, the Credit Facility requires 
that we have a leverage ratio (defined as the ratio of total debt 
to EBITDA (net earnings before interest, income taxes, depreci-
ation and amortization)) not exceeding 3.5 to 1.0. The Yen 
Notes require that we have a ratio of total debt to total capital-
ization not exceeding 60% and a ratio of consolidated EBIT 
(net earnings before interest and income taxes) to consolidated 
interest expense of at least 3.0 to 1.0. Under the Credit Facility, 
our senior notes and Yen Notes we also have certain limitations 
on how we conduct our business, including limitations on addi-
tional liens or indebtedness and limitations on certain acquisi-
tions, mergers, investments and dispositions of assets. We 
were in compliance with all of our debt covenants as of 
December 28, 2013.
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Share Repurchases

On December 9, 2013, our Board of Directors authorized a 
share repurchase program of up to $700 million of our out-
standing common stock. We began repurchasing shares on 
December 11, 2013 and completed the repurchases under the 
program on January 17, 2014, repurchasing 11.1 million 
shares for $700.0 million at an average repurchase price of 
$63.07 per share. From December 11, 2013 through 
December 28, 2013, we repurchased 4.4 million shares for 
$266 million at an average repurchase price of $60.18 
per share.

On November 29, 2012, our Board of Directors authorized a 
share repurchase program of up to $1.0 billion of our outstand-
ing common stock. We began repurchasing shares on 
December 5, 2012 and completed the repurchases under the 
program on February 1, 2013, repurchasing 26.8 million 
shares for $1.0 billion at an average repurchase price of 
$37.27 per share. From December 5, 2012 through December 
29, 2012, we repurchased 12.9 million shares for $458 million 
at an average repurchase price of $35.60 per share. From 
December 30, 2012 through February 1, 2013, we repur-
chased 13.9 million shares for $542 million at an average 
repurchase price of $38.83 per share.

On October 17, 2012, our Board of Directors authorized a 
share repurchase program of up to $300 million of our out-
standing common stock. We began repurchasing shares on 
October 19, 2012 and completed the repurchases under the 
program on November 6, 2012, repurchasing 7.7 million 
shares for $300 million at an average repurchase price of 
$38.97 per share.

On December 12, 2011, our Board of Directors authorized a 
share repurchase program of up to $300 million of our out-
standing common stock. We began repurchasing shares on 
January 27, 2012 and completed the repurchases under the 
program on February 8, 2012, repurchasing 7.1 million shares 
for $300 million at an average repurchase price of $42.14 
per share.

On August 2, 2011, our Board of Directors authorized a share 
repurchase program of up to $500 million of our outstanding 
common stock. We completed the repurchases under the pro-
gram on August 29, 2011, repurchasing 11.7 million shares for 
$500 million at an average repurchase price of $42.79 
per share.

On October 15, 2010, our Board of Directors authorized a 
share repurchase program of up to $600 million of our out-
standing common stock. On October 21, 2010, our Board of 
Directors authorized an additional $300 million of share 

repurchases as part of this share repurchase program. We 
completed the repurchases under the program on January 20, 
2011, repurchasing a total of 22.0 million shares for $900 mil-
lion at an average repurchase price of $40.87 per share. From 
January 2, 2011 through January 20, 2011, we repurchased 
6.6 million shares for $275 million at an average repurchase 
price of $41.44 per share.

Dividends

Cash dividends totaled $0.25 per share for each quarter in fis-
cal year 2013 for a total of $286 million, $0.23 per share for 
each quarter in fiscal year 2012 for a total of $284 million and 
$0.21 per share for each quarter in fiscal year 2011 for a total 
of $272 million. On February 22, 2014 our Board of Directors 
authorized a cash dividend of $0.27 per share payable on April 
30, 2014 to shareholders of record as of March 31, 2014. We 
expect to continue to pay quarterly cash dividends in the fore-
seeable future, subject to Board approval.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements  
and Contractual Obligations

We believe that our off-balance sheet arrangements do not have 
a material current or anticipated future effect on our consoli-
dated earnings, financial position or cash flows. Our off-balance 
sheet arrangements principally consist of operating leases for 
various facilities and equipment and purchase commitments.

In the normal course of business, we periodically enter into 
agreements that require us to indemnify customers or suppliers 
for specific risks, such as claims for injury or property damage 
arising out of our products or the negligence of our personnel 
or claims alleging that our products infringe third-party patents 
or other intellectual property. In addition, under our bylaws and 
indemnification agreements we have entered into with our 
executive officers and directors, we may be required to indem-
nify our executive officers and directors for losses arising from 
their conduct in an official capacity on behalf of St. Jude 
Medical. We may also be required to indemnify officers and 
directors of certain companies that we have acquired for losses 
arising from their conduct on behalf of their companies prior to 
the closing of our acquisition. Our maximum exposure under 
these indemnification obligations cannot be estimated, and we 
have not accrued any liabilities within our consolidated finan-
cial statements or included any indemnification provisions in 
our commitments table. Historically, we have not experienced 
significant losses on these types of indemnification obligations.
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Market Risk

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk
We are exposed to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations 
due to transactions denominated primarily in Euros, Japanese 
Yen, Canadian Dollars, Australian Dollars, Brazilian Reals, 
Argentine Peso, British Pounds and Swedish Kronor. When the 
U.S. Dollar weakens against foreign currencies, the dollar value 
of sales denominated in foreign currencies increases. When the 
U.S. Dollar strengthens against foreign currencies, the dollar 
value of sales denominated in foreign currencies decreases. A 
hypothetical 10% change in the value of the U.S. Dollar in rela-
tion to our foreign currency denominated sales would have an 
impact of approximately $269 million on our 2013 net sales. This 
amount is not indicative of the hypothetical net earnings impact 
due to partially offsetting impacts on the related cost of sales and 
operating expenses in the applicable foreign currencies.

Derivative Financial Instrument Risk
During 2013, 2012 and 2011, we hedged a portion of our for-
eign currency transaction risk through the use of forward 
exchange contracts. We use forward exchange contracts to 
manage foreign currency exposures related to intercompany 
receivables and payables arising from intercompany purchases 

of manufactured products. These forward contracts are not 
designated as qualifying hedging relationships under ASC Topic 
815, Derivatives and Hedging (ASC Topic 815). We measure 
our foreign currency exchange rate contracts at fair value on a 
recurring basis. The fair value of all outstanding contracts was 
immaterial at December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012. 
During 2013, 2012 and 2011, we recognized net gains of $15 
million and $7 million and a net loss of $3 million, respectively, 
to other expense, net for our forward currency exchange con-
tracts not designated as hedging instruments under ASC Topic 
815. The net gains and losses were almost entirely offset by 
corresponding net losses and gains on the foreign currency 
exposures being managed. We do not enter into contracts for 
trading or speculative purposes. Our policy is to enter into 
hedging contracts with major financial institutions that have at 
least an “A” (or equivalent) credit rating. Although we are 
exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by coun-
terparties on our outstanding derivative contracts, we do not 
anticipate nonperformance by any of the counterparties. We 
continue to evaluate our foreign currency exchange rate risk 
and the different mechanisms for use in managing such risk, 
including using derivative financial instruments and operational 
hedges, such as international manufacturing operations. Our 
derivative financial instruments accounting policy is discussed 
in detail in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

A summary of contractual obligations and other minimum commercial commitments as of December 28, 2013 is as follows (in millions):

   Payments Due by Period

   Less than 1-3 3-5 More than 
  Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years

Contractual obligations related  
 to off-balance sheet arrangements:
 Operating leases  $     96 $  30 $     37 $  25 $       4

 Purchase commitments(a)  463 404 45 12 2

  Total   559 434 82 37 6

Contractual obligations reflected in the balance sheet:
 Debt obligations(b)  4,905 141 1,148 927 2,689

 Contingent consideration(c)  245 178 27 40 –

  Total   5,150 319 1,175 967 2,689

Grand Total(d)  $5,709 $575 $1,230 $964 $2,695

(a)  These amounts include commitments for inventory purchases and capital expenditures that do not exceed our projected requirements and are in the normal course of business. The 
purchase commitment amounts do not represent the entire anticipated purchases and capital expenditures in the future, but only those for which we are contractually obligated.

(b)  Includes current debt obligations, scheduled maturities of long-term debt and scheduled interest payments. See Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional 
information on our debt obligations.

(c)  These amounts include contingent commitments to acquire various businesses involved in the distribution of our products and other contingent acquisition consideration 
payments. In connection with certain acquisitions, we may agree to provide additional consideration payments upon the achievement of certain product development milestones, 
which may include but are not limited to: successful levels of achievement in clinical trials and certain product regulatory approvals. We may also provide for additional 
consideration payments to be made upon the achievement of certain levels of future product sales. While it is not certain if and/or when these payments will be made, we 
have included the payments in the table based on our best estimates of the dates when we expect the milestones and/or contingencies will be met. Contingent consideration 
arrangements with variable interest entities have been excluded from the table, as we have the exclusive right, but not the obligation, to acquire these companies. See Note 2 to 
the Consolidated Financial Statements for further detail.

(d)  The table does not include $315 million of unrecognized tax benefits and $37 million of associated accrued interest and penalties as of December 28, 2013, as we are uncertain 
as to if or when such amounts may be paid. Additionally, the table does not include other liabilities of $282 million pertaining to non-qualified deferred compensation because 
the timing of the future cash payments is uncertain.
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Although we have not entered into any derivative hedging con-
tracts to hedge the net asset exposure of our foreign subsidiar-
ies, we have elected to use natural hedging strategies in certain 
geographies. We have naturally hedged a portion of our Yen-
denominated net asset exposure by issuing long-term Yen-
denominated debt.

Fair Value Risk
We are also exposed to fair value risk on our Senior Notes and 
Yen Notes. As of December 28, 2013, the aggregate fair value 
of our Senior Notes (measured using quoted prices in active 
markets) was $2,236 million compared to the aggregate carry-
ing value of $2,304 million (inclusive of the terminated interest 
rate swaps). Our 2043 Senior Notes have a fixed interest rate of 
4.75%, our 2023 Senior Notes have a fixed rate of interest of 
3.25% and our 2016 Senior Notes have a fixed rate of interest 
of 2.50%. A hypothetical one-percentage point change in the 
interest rates would have an impact of approximately $165 mil-
lion to $195 million on the fair value of our Senior Notes. As of 
December 28, 2013, the fair value of our yen-denominated 
notes (2.04% Yen Notes and 1.58% Yen Notes), both of which 
have a fixed interest rate, approximated their carrying value. A 
hypothetical one-percentage point change in the interest rates 
would have an aggregate impact of approximately $10 million 
on the fair value of the yen-denominated notes.

Our variable-rate debt consists of our commercial paper bor-
rowings in the United States and our yen-denominated credit 
facilities in Japan. Assuming average outstanding borrowings of 
$1,276 million during 2013, a hypothetical one-percentage 
point change in the interest rates would have an impact of 
approximately $13 million on our 2013 interest expense.

We are also exposed to equity market risk on our marketable 
equity security investments. We hold certain marketable equity 
securities of publically-traded companies. Our investments in 
these companies had a fair value of $35 million at December 
28, 2013, which are subject to the underlying price risk of the 
public equity markets.

Concentration of Credit Risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentra-
tions of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equiva-
lents, derivative financial instruments and accounts receivable. 
We invest our excess cash in bank deposits, commercial paper 
or money market funds and diversify the concentration of cash 
among different financial institutions. Counterparties to our 
derivative financial instruments are limited to major financial 
institutions. We perform periodic evaluations of the relative 
credit standings of these financial institutions and limit the 
amount of credit exposure with any one financial institution. 

While we do not require collateral or other security to be fur-
nished by the counterparties to our derivative financial instru-
ments, we minimize exposure to credit risk by dealing with a 
diversified group of major financial institutions and actively 
monitoring outstanding positions.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade accounts 
receivable are generally limited due to our large number of cus-
tomers and their diversity across many geographic areas. A 
portion of our trade accounts receivable outside the United 
States, however, include sales to government-owned or sup-
ported healthcare systems in several countries, which are sub-
ject to payment delays. Payment is dependent upon the 
financial stability and creditworthiness of those countries’ 
national economies. Deteriorating credit and economic condi-
tions in parts of Southern Europe, particularly in Italy, Spain, 
Portugal and Greece may continue to increase the average 
length of time it takes us to collect our accounts receivable or 
also increase our risk of fully collecting our accounts receivable 
in these countries.

We continually evaluate all government receivables for potential 
collection risks associated with the availability of government 
funding, reimbursement practices and economic conditions. 
During 2013 and 2011, we recognized $9 million and $66 mil-
lion of accounts receivable reserves for increased collection 
risk associated with certain accounts receivable in Europe. If 
the financial condition of customers or the countries’ health-
care systems deteriorate such that their ability to make pay-
ments is uncertain, additional allowances may be required in 
future periods. Our aggregate accounts receivable balance, net 
of the allowance for doubtful accounts, as of December 28, 
2013 and December 29, 2012 in Italy, Spain, Portugal and 
Greece was approximately $317 million and $344 million, 
respectively, which made up 22% and 26%, respectively, of 
our consolidated net accounts receivable balance. No signifi-
cant accounts receivable allowance charges were recognized 
in 2012.

Cautionary Statements

In this discussion and in other written or oral statements made 
from time to time, we have included and may include state-
ments that constitute “forward-looking statements” with respect 
to the financial condition, results of operations, plans, objec-
tives, new products, future performance and business of St. 
Jude Medical, Inc. and its subsidiaries. Statements preceded 
by, followed by or that include words such as “may,” “will,” 
“expect,” “anticipate,” “continue,” “estimate,” “forecast,” 
“project,” “believe” or similar expressions are intended to iden-
tify some of the forward-looking statements within the meaning 
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and are 
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included, along with this statement, for purposes of complying 
with the safe harbor provisions of that Act. These forward-look-
ing statements involve risks and uncertainties. By identifying 
these statements for you in this manner, we are alerting you to 
the possibility that actual results may differ, possibly materially, 
from the results indicated by these forward-looking statements. 
We undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking 
statements. Actual results may differ materially from those con-
templated by the forward-looking statements due to, among 
others, the risks and uncertainties discussed in the previous 
section entitled Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and 
Contractual Obligations, Market Risk and Competition and 
Other Considerations and in Part I, Item 1A, Risk Factors of our 
Annual Report on Form 10-K as well as the various factors 
described below. Since it is not possible to foresee all such fac-
tors, you should not consider these factors to be a complete list 
of all risks or uncertainties. We believe the most significant fac-
tors that could affect our future operations and results are set 
forth in the following list.

 1.  Competition, including product introductions by competi-
tors that have advanced technology, better features or 
lower pricing.

 2.  Safety, performance or efficacy concerns about our prod-
ucts, many of which are expected to be implanted for many 
years, some of which may lead to recalls and/or advisories 
with the attendant expenses and declining sales.

 3.  A reduction in the number of procedures using our devices 
caused by cost-containment pressures, publication of 
adverse study results, initiation of investigations of our cus-
tomers related to our devices or the development of or pref-
erences for alternative technologies or therapies.

 4.  Declining industry-wide sales caused by product quality 
issues or recalls or advisories by us or our competitors that 
result in loss of physician and/or patient confidence in the 
safety, performance or efficacy of sophisticated medical 
devices in general and/or the types of medical devices 
recalled in particular.

 5.  Governmental legislation, including the Patient Protection 
and Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and 
Education Reconciliation Act, and/or regulation that signifi-
cantly impacts the healthcare system in the United States 
or in international markets and that results in lower reim-
bursement for procedures using our products or denies 

coverage for such procedures, reduces medical procedure 
volumes or otherwise adversely affects our business and 
results of operations, including the imposition of any medi-
cal device excise tax.

 6.  Any changes to the U.S. Medicare or Medicaid systems or 
international reimbursement systems that significantly 
reduces reimbursement for procedures using our medical 
devices or denies coverage for such procedures, as well as 
adverse decisions relating to our products by administra-
tors of such systems on coverage or reimbursement issues.

 7.  Changes in laws, regulations or administrative practices 
affecting government regulation of our products, such as 
FDA regulations, including those that decrease the proba-
bility or increase the time and/or expense of obtaining 
approval for products or impose additional burdens on the 
manufacture and sale of medical devices.

 8.  Consolidation and other healthcare industry changes lead-
ing to demands for price concessions and/or limitations 
on, or the elimination of, our ability to sell in significant 
market segments.

 9.  Failure to successfully complete, or unfavorable data from, 
clinical trials for our products or new indications for our 
products and/or failure to successfully develop markets for 
such new indications.

 10.  Conditions imposed in resolving, or any inability to timely 
resolve, any regulatory issues raised by the FDA, including 
Form 483 observations or warning letters, as well as risks 
generally associated with our health, safety and environ-
mental regulatory compliance and quality systems.

 11.  Assertion, acquisition or grant of key patents by or to others 
that have the effect of excluding us from market segments 
or requiring us to pay royalties.

 12.  Adverse developments in litigation, including product liabil-
ity litigation, patent or other intellectual property litigation, 
qui tam litigation or shareholder litigation.

 13.  Our ability to fund future product liability losses related to 
claims made subsequent to becoming self-insured.

 14.  Economic factors, including inflation, contraction in capital 
markets, changes in interest rates and changes in foreign 
currency exchange rates.
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 15.  Disruptions in the financial markets or changes in economic 
conditions that adversely impact the availability and cost of 
credit and customer purchasing and payment patterns, 
including the collectability of customer accounts receivable.

 16.  The loss of, or price increases by, suppliers of key compo-
nents, some of which are sole-sourced.

 17.  Inability to successfully integrate the businesses that we 
have acquired in recent years and that we plan to acquire.

 18.  Risks associated with our substantial international opera-
tions, including economic and political instability, currency 
fluctuations, changes in customs, tariffs and other trade 
restrictions and compliance with foreign laws.

 19.  Our inability to realize the expected benefits from our 
restructuring initiatives and continuous improvement efforts 
and the negative unintended consequences such activity 
could have.

 20.  Adverse developments in investigations and governmental 
proceedings.

 21.  Regulatory actions arising from concern over Bovine 
Spongiform Encephalopathy, sometimes referred to as 
“mad cow disease,” that have the effect of limiting our abil-
ity to market products using bovine collagen, such as 
Angio-Seal™, or products using bovine pericardial material, 
such as our Biocor®, Epic™, or and Trifecta™ tissue heart 
valves, or that impose added costs on the procurement of 
bovine collagen or bovine pericardial material.

 22.  Severe weather or other natural disasters that can 
adversely impact customer purchasing patterns and/or 
patient implant procedures or cause damage to the facili-
ties of our critical suppliers or one or more of our facilities, 
such as an earthquake affecting our facilities in California 
and Costa Rica or a hurricane affecting our facilities in 
Puerto Rico and Malaysia.

 23.  Our inability to maintain, protect and enhance our existing 
information and manufacturing systems and our products 
that incorporate information technology or to develop new 
systems and products.

 24.  Changes in accounting rules or tax laws that adversely affect 
our results of operations, financial position or cash flows.
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Report of Management

Management’s Report on the 
Financial Statements

We are responsible for the preparation, integrity and objectivity 
of the accompanying financial statements. The financial state-
ments were prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States and include amounts 
which reflect management’s best estimates based on its 
informed judgment and consideration given to materiality. We 
are also responsible for the accuracy of the related data in the 
annual report and its consistency with the financial statements.

Audit Committee Oversight

The adequacy of our internal accounting controls, the account-
ing principles employed in our financial reporting and the 
scope of independent and internal audits are reviewed by the 
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, consisting solely of 
independent directors. The independent registered public 
accounting firm meets with, and has unrestricted access to, 
the Audit Committee to discuss the results of its audit work.

Management’s Report on Internal 
Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term 
is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Under the supervi-
sion and with the participation of the Company’s management, 
we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal 
control over financial reporting based on criteria established in 
Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission (1992 framework). Based on this evaluation, we 
concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was 
effective as of December 28, 2013. Ernst & Young LLP, our 
independent registered public accounting firm, has also 
audited the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over 
financial reporting as of December 28, 2013 as stated in its 
report which is included herein.

Daniel J. Starks 
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Donald J. Zurbay 
Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and 
Shareholders of St. Jude Medical, Inc.

We have audited St. Jude Medical, Inc.’s internal control over 
financial reporting as of December 28, 2013, based on criteria 
established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued 
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission (1992 framework) (the COSO criteria). St. Jude 
Medical, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining 
effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its 
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over finan-
cial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s 
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s inter-
nal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of 
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective 
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all 
material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understand-
ing of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the 
risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that 
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a pro-
cess designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that: (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reason-
able detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as neces-
sary to permit preparation of financial statements in accor-
dance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only 
in accordance with authorizations of management and direc-
tors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acqui-
sition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over finan-
cial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods 
are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compli-
ance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, St. Jude Medical, Inc. maintained, in all mate-
rial respects, effective internal control over financial reporting 
as of December 28, 2013, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the 
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), 
the consolidated balance sheets of St. Jude Medical, Inc. as of 
December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012, and the related 
consolidated statements of earnings, comprehensive income, 
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years 
in the period ended December 28, 2013, and our report dated 
February 25, 2014, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Minneapolis, Minnesota 
February 26, 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and 
Shareholders of St. Jude Medical, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheets of St. Jude Medical, Inc. as of December 28, 2013 and 
December 29, 2012, and the related consolidated statements 
of earnings, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity and 
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 28, 2013. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on 
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of 
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finan-
cial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and sig-
nificant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above pres-
ent fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial 
position of St. Jude Medical, Inc. at December 28, 2013 and 
December 29, 2012, and the consolidated results of its opera-
tions and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period 
ended December 28, 2013, in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the 
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), 
St. Jude Medical, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting 
as of December 28, 2013, based on criteria established in 
Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission (1992 framework) and our report dated February 
25, 2014, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Minneapolis, Minnesota 
February 26, 2014
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Consolidated Statements of Earnings (in millions, except per share amounts)

Fiscal Year Ended December 28, 2013 December 29, 2012 December 31, 2011

Net sales   $5,501 $5,503 $5,612
Cost of sales:
 Cost of sales before special charges 1,529 1,445 1,486
 Special charges 45 93 47

Total cost of sales 1,574 1,538 1,533

 Gross profit 3,927 3,965 4,079

Selling, general and administrative expense 1,884 1,891 2,084
Research and development expense 691 676 705
Purchased in-process research and development charges – – 4
Special charges 301 298 171

 Operating profit 1,051 1,100 1,115

Other expense, net 267 95 96

 Earnings before income taxes and noncontrolling interest 784 1,005 1,019

Income tax expense 92 253 193

Net earnings before noncontrolling interest 692 752 826
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest (31) – –

Net earnings attributable to St. Jude Medical, Inc. $   723 $   752 $   826

Net earnings per share attributable to St. Jude Medical, Inc.:
 Basic   $  2.52 $  2.40 $  2.55
 Diluted  $  2.49 $  2.39 $  2.52

Cash dividends declared per share: $  1.00 $  0.92 $  0.84

Weighted average shares outstanding:
 Basic   287.0 313.3 324.3
 Diluted  290.6 314.8 327.1

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (in millions)

Fiscal Year Ended December 28, 2013 December 29, 2012 December 31, 2011

Net earnings before noncontrolling interest $692 $752 $826
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
 Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities, net of taxes of  
  $2 million, $1 million and $2 million, respectively 5 10 3
 Reclassification of realized gain on available-for-sale securities,  
  net of taxes of $5 million and $6 million, respectively (8) (8) –
 Unrealized gain on derivative financial instruments, net of taxes 3 – –
 Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of taxes – 28 (71)

Other comprehensive income (loss) – 30 (68)

Total comprehensive income before noncontrolling interest 692 782 758
Total comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling interest (31) – –

Total comprehensive income attributable to St. Jude Medical, Inc. $723 $782 $758

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets (in millions, except par value and share amounts)

  December 28, 2013 December 29, 2012

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  $  1,373 $ 1,194
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts  1,422 1,349
Inventories   708 610
Deferred income taxes, net  229 220
Other current assets  178 178

 Total current assets  3,910 3,551

Property, Plant and Equipment
Land, building and improvements  651 602
Machinery and equipment  1,674 1,603
Diagnostic equipment  474 424

Property, plant and equipment at cost  2,799 2,629
Less accumulated depreciation  (1,389) (1,204)

 Net property, plant and equipment  1,410 1,425

Goodwill    3,524 2,961
Intangible assets, net  911 804
Deferred income taxes, net  116 130
Other assets   377 400

Total assets   $10,248 $ 9,271

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities
Current debt obligations  $       62 $    530
Accounts payable  247 254
Dividends payable  72 68
Income taxes payable  32 142
Employee compensation and related benefits  312 299
Other current liabilities  655 482

 Total current liabilities  1,380 1,775

Long-term debt  3,518 2,550
Deferred income taxes, net  240 323
Other liabilities  706 529

 Total liabilities  5,844 5,177

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 5)  – –

Shareholders’ Equity
Preferred stock ($1.00 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; none outstanding)  – –
Common stock ($0.10 par value; 500,000,000 shares authorized;  
 289,117,352 and 295,648,327 shares issued and outstanding at  
 December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012, respectively)  29 30
Additional paid-in capital  220 –
Retained earnings  3,936 4,018
Accumulated other comprehensive income  46 46

 Total shareholders’ equity before noncontrolling interest  4,231 4,094
Noncontrolling interest  173 –

 Total shareholders’ equity  4,404 4,094

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity  $10,248 $ 9,271

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity (in millions, except share amounts)

    Accumulated   
 Common Stock Additional  Other  Total
 Number of  Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Noncontrolling Shareholders’ 
 Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income Interest Equity

Balance at January 1, 2011 329,018,166 $33 $  156 $ 4,099 $84 $     – $ 4,372
Net earnings     826  – 826
Other comprehensive loss     (68) – (68)
Cash dividends declared    (272)   (272)
Repurchases of common stock (18,314,774) (2) (504) (269)   (775)
Stock-based compensation   76    76
Common stock issued under  
 employee stock plans  
 and other, net 8,912,573 1 302    303
Tax benefit from stock plans   13    13

Balance at December 31, 2011 319,615,965 32 43 4,384 16 – 4,475
Net earnings     752  – 752
Other comprehensive income     30 – 30
Cash dividends declared    (284)   (284)
Repurchases of common stock (27,670,874) (3) (221) (834)   (1,058)
Stock-based compensation   69    69
Common stock issued under  
 employee stock plans  
 and other, net 3,703,236 1 118    119
Tax shortfall from stock plans   (9)    (9)

Balance at December 29, 2012 295,648,327 30 – 4,018 46 – 4,094
Net earnings     723  (31) 692
Other comprehensive income     – – –
Cash dividends declared    (286)   (286)
Repurchases of common stock (18,385,436) (2) (287) (519)   (808)
Stock-based compensation   65    65
Common stock issued under  
 employee stock plans  
 and other, net 11,854,461 1 442    443
Additions in noncontrolling  
 ownership interests      204 204
Balance at December 28, 2013 289,117,352 $29 $ 220 $3,936 $46 $173 $4,404

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (in millions)

Fiscal Year Ended December 28, 2013 December 29, 2012 December 31, 2011

Operating Activities
Net earnings  $    692 $   752 $   826
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash from operating activities:
 Depreciation and amortization 297 284 296
 Amortization of debt premium, net (6) (11) (5)
 Inventory step-up amortization 4 – 30
 Contingent consideration fair value adjustment, net 1 – –
 Stock-based compensation 65 69 76
 Excess tax benefits from stock issued under employee stock plans (15) (1) (9)
 Gain on sale of investments (13) (14) –
 Loss on retirement of long-term debt 161 – –
 Purchased in-process research and development charges – – 4
 Deferred income taxes, net (124) (77) (65)
 Other, net  75 106 78
 Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of business acquisitions:
  Accounts receivable (100) 13 (55)
  Inventories (99) 13 10
  Other current assets 13 4 48
  Accounts payable and accrued expenses 31 29 39
  Income taxes payable (21) 168 14

Net cash provided by operating activities 961 1,335 1,287

Investing Activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (222) (280) (307)
Business acquisition payments, net of cash acquired (292) – –
Proceeds from sale of investments 10 19 –
Other investing activities, net (18) (52) (30)

Net cash used in investing activities (522) (313) (337)

Financing Activities
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and stock issued, net 443 119 302
Excess tax benefits from stock issued under employee stock plans 15 1 9
Common stock repurchased, including related costs (833) (992) (809)
Dividends paid (282) (284) (205)
Issuances of commercial paper borrowings, net 121 321 247
Borrowings under debt facilities 2,092 – 78
Payments under debt facilities (1,659) – (78)
Other financing activities, net (154) 22 –

Net cash used in financing activities (257) (813) (456)

Effect of currency exchange rate changes on cash  
 and cash equivalents (3) (1) (8)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 179 208 486
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 1,194 986 500

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 1,373 $1,194 $   986

Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Cash paid during the year for:
 Income taxes $    246 $   177 $   203
 Interest  $      95 $     69 $     68
Noncash investing and financing activities:
 Additions in noncontrolling ownership interests $    204 $       – $       –
 Fair value of acquisition contingent consideration $    188 $       – $       –

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Note 1
Summary of Significant  
Accounting Policies

Company Overview: St. Jude Medical, Inc., together with its 
subsidiaries (St. Jude Medical or the Company) develops, man-
ufactures and distributes cardiovascular medical devices for 
the global cardiac rhythm management, cardiovascular and 
atrial fibrillation therapy areas and implantable neurostimula-
tion devices for the management of chronic pain. On August 
30, 2012, the Company announced the realignment of its 
product divisions into two new business units (or divisions): the 
Implantable Electronic Systems Division (combining its legacy 
Cardiac Rhythm Management and Neuromodulation product 
divisions) and the Cardiovascular and Ablation Technologies 
Division (combining its legacy Cardiovascular and Atrial 
Fibrillation product divisions). In addition, the Company cen-
tralized certain support functions, including information tech-
nology, human resources, legal, business development and 
certain marketing functions. The organizational changes were 
part of a comprehensive plan to accelerate its growth, reduce 
costs and leverage economies of scale. The Company began 
reporting under the new organizational structure as of the 
beginning of fiscal year 2013.

The Company’s principal products in each division are as fol-
lows: Implantable Electronic Systems Division (IESD) – tachy-
cardia implantable cardioverter defibrillator systems (ICDs), 
bradycardia pacemaker systems (pacemakers) and neurostim-
ulation products (spinal cord and deep brain stimulation 
devices); and Cardiovascular and Ablation Technologies 
Division (CATD) – vascular products (vascular closure prod-
ucts, pressure measurement guidewires, optical coherence 
tomography (OCT) imaging products, vascular plugs and other 
vascular accessories), structural heart products (heart valve 
replacement and repair products and structural heart defect 
devices) and atrial fibrillation (AF) products (EP introducers 
and catheters, advanced cardiac mapping, navigation and 
recording systems and ablation systems). The Company mar-
kets and sells its products primarily through a direct sales 
force. The principal geographic markets for the Company’s 
products are the United States, Europe, Japan and 
Asia Pacific.

On January 28, 2014, the Company announced further organi-
zational changes to combine its IESD and CATD operating divi-
sions, resulting in an integrated research and development 
organization and a consolidation of manufacturing and supply 
chain operations worldwide. The integration will be conducted 

in a phased approach throughout 2014. The Company’s con-
tinuing global restructuring efforts are focused on streamlining 
its organization to improve productivity, reduce costs and lever-
age its scale to drive additional growth. The Company will con-
tinue to report under the existing reportable segment structure 
for internal management financial forecasting and reporting 
purposes into fiscal year 2014 until the organizational changes 
and the related financial reporting structure is finalized.

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial state-
ments include the accounts of the Company and its wholly 
owned subsidiaries and entities for which St. Jude Medical has 
a controlling financial interest. Intercompany transactions and 
balances have been eliminated in consolidation. For variable 
interest entities (VIEs), the Company assesses the terms of its 
interest in the entity to determine if St. Jude Medical is the pri-
mary beneficiary. Variable interests are ownership, contractual 
or other interests in an entity that change with increases or 
decreases in the fair value of the VIE’s net assets exclusive of 
variable interests. The entity that consolidates the VIE is con-
sidered the primary beneficiary, and is defined as the party with 
(1) the power to direct activities of the VIE that most signifi-
cantly affect the VIE’s economic performance and (2) the obli-
gation to absorb losses of the VIE or the right to receive benefits 
from the VIE. In the first quarter of 2013, the Company deter-
mined that CardioMEMS, Inc. (CardioMEMS) was a VIE for 
which the Company is the primary beneficiary and began con-
solidating their results effective February 27, 2013. 
Additionally, during the second quarter of 2013, the Company 
entered into a $40 million equity investment, contingent acqui-
sition agreement and exclusive distribution agreement with 
Spinal Modulation, Inc. (Spinal Modulation) and determined it 
also was a VIE for which the Company is the primary benefi-
ciary. The Company began consolidating Spinal Modulation’s 
results effective June 7, 2013 (see Note 2).

Fiscal Year: The Company utilizes a 52/53-week fiscal year 
ending on the Saturday nearest December 31st. Fiscal year 
2013, 2012 and 2011 consisted of 52 weeks and ended on 
December 28, 2013, December 29, 2012 and December 31, 
2011, respectively.

Reclassifications: Certain prior period amounts have been 
reclassified to conform to current year presentation (see 
Note 15).

Use of Estimates: Preparation of the Company’s consolidated 
financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States (U.S. GAAP) requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
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the reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements 
and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from  
those estimates.

Cash Equivalents: The Company considers highly liquid invest-
ments with an original maturity of three months or less to be 
cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which 
approximates fair value. The Company’s cash equivalents 
include bank certificates of deposit, money market funds and 
instruments and commercial paper investments. The Company 
performs periodic evaluations of the relative credit standing of 
the financial institutions and issuers of its cash equivalents and 
limits the amount of credit exposure with any one issuer.

Marketable Securities: Marketable securities consist of public-
ly-traded equity securities that are classified as available-for-
sale securities and investments in mutual funds that are 
classified as trading securities. On the balance sheet, available-
for-sale securities and trading securities are classified as other 
current assets and other assets, respectively.

The following table summarizes the components of the balance 
of the Company’s available-for-sale securities at December 28, 
2013 and December 29, 2012 (in millions):

  December 28, December 29, 
  2013 2012

Adjusted cost   $  7 $  9

Gross unrealized gains   28 32

Fair value    $35 $41

Available-for-sale securities are reported at fair value based 
upon quoted market prices (see Note 13). Unrealized gains 
and losses, net of related incomes taxes, are recognized in 
accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders’ 
equity. Upon the sale of an available-for-sale security, the unre-
alized gain (loss) is reclassified out of accumulated other com-
prehensive income and reflected as a realized gain (loss) in net 
earnings. Realized gains (losses) are computed using the spe-
cific identification method and recognized as other expense, 
net. During both 2013 and 2012, the Company sold available-
for-sale securities, recognizing pre-tax gains of $13 million and 
$14 million, respectively (see Note 10). There were no realized 
gains (losses) from the sale of available-for-sale securities 
recorded during fiscal year 2011. Additionally, when the fair 
value of an available-for-sale security falls below its original cost 
and the Company determines that the corresponding unreal-
ized loss is other-than-temporary, it recognizes an impairment 
loss to net earnings in that period. There were no available-for-
sale impairment losses recognized in fiscal years 2013, 2012 
or 2011.

The Company’s investments in mutual funds are reported at 
fair market value based upon quoted market prices (see Note 
13) and are held in a rabbi trust, which is not available for gen-
eral corporate purposes and is subject to creditor claims in the 
event of insolvency. These investments are specifically desig-
nated as available to the Company solely for the purpose of 
paying benefits under the Company’s deferred compensation 
plan (see Note 12).

Accounts Receivable: The Company grants credit to customers 
in the normal course of business, but generally does not 
require collateral or any other security to support its receiv-
ables. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful 
accounts for potential credit losses. During 2013, the Company 
recognized a $9 million accounts receivable allowance charge 
in connection with a distributor termination in Europe. During 
2011, the Company recognized a $57 million accounts receiv-
able allowance charge with a distributor in the Greece market. 
In February 2012, an agreement was reached between the 
Greek government and the European Union and International 
Monetary Fund whereby creditors would swap existing Greek 
government bonds for new bonds with a significant reduction 
in face value, a longer term and lower interest rates. This 
agreement, among other macroeconomic and factors specific 
to the distributor, negatively impacted the solvency and liquidity 
of the Company’s Greece distributor, raising significant doubt 
regarding the collectability of the Company’s outstanding 
receivable balance. As a result, the Company recognized the 
$57 million accounts receivable allowance charge in the con-
solidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2011, which was subsequently written off during 
2012. The Company also recognized an additional $9 million 
accounts receivable allowance charge in 2011 for increased 
collection risk associated with a customer in Europe. No signifi-
cant accounts receivable allowance charges were recognized in 
2012. The Company’s total allowance for doubtful accounts 
was $45 million and $47 million at December 28, 2013 and 
December 29, 2012, respectively.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mar-
ket with cost determined using the first-in, first-out method. 
Inventories consisted of the following (in millions):

  December 28, December 29, 
  2013 2012

Finished goods   $494 $416

Work in process   52 50

Raw materials   162 144

        $708 $610
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Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, plant and equip-
ment are recorded at cost and are depreciated using the 
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, ranging 
from 15 years to 39 years for buildings and improvements, 
three to 15 years for machinery and equipment, including capi-
talized development costs for internal-use software, and three 
to seven years for diagnostic equipment. Diagnostic equipment 
primarily consists of programmers that are used by physicians 
and healthcare professionals to program and analyze data from 
ICDs and pacemakers. Diagnostic equipment also includes 
other capital equipment provided by us to customers for use in 
diagnostic and surgical procedures. The estimated useful lives 
of this equipment are based on anticipated usage by physi-
cians and healthcare professionals and the timing and impact 
of expected new technology platforms and rollouts by the 
Company. Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using 
accelerated methods for income tax purposes. During 2013, 
2012 and 2011, depreciation expense was $218 million, $196 
million, and $203 million, respectively.

Goodwill: Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair 
value of identifiable net assets of a business acquired. Goodwill 
for each reporting unit is reviewed for impairment at least 
annually. The Company assesses goodwill impairment by con-
sidering qualitative factors such as macroeconomic conditions, 
industry and market considerations, cost factors, financial per-
formance, entity specific events, changes in net assets and 
sustained decrease in share price. If the qualitative assess-
ment results in a determination that the fair value of a reporting 
unit is more-likely-than-not (“likely” meaning having a likeli-
hood of more than 50%) greater than its carrying amount, no 
additional testing is considered necessary. However, if the 
Company determines the fair value is more-likely-than-not 
below the carrying value of a reporting unit, the Company per-
forms the two-step goodwill impairment test required by the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (FASB) Accounting 
Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 350, Intangibles – Goodwill 
and Other. In the first step, the Company compares the fair 
value of each reporting unit, as computed primarily by present 
value cash flow calculations, to its book carrying value, includ-
ing goodwill. If the carrying value exceeds the fair value, the 
goodwill of the reporting unit is potentially impaired and the 
Company would complete step 2 in order to measure the 
potential impairment loss. In step 2, the Company calculates 
the implied fair value of goodwill by deducting the fair value of 
all tangible and intangible net assets (including unrecognized 
intangible assets) of the reporting unit from the fair value of the 

reporting unit (as determined in step 1). If the implied fair 
value of goodwill is less than the carrying value of goodwill, the 
Company would recognize an impairment loss equal to the dif-
ference. During the fourth quarters of 2013, 2012 and 2011, 
the Company concluded that it was more-likely-than-not that 
the fair value was more than its carry value based on its quali-
tative assessment.

Other Intangible Assets: Other intangible assets consist of pur-
chased technology and patents, in-process research and 
development (IPR&D) acquired in a business acquisition, cus-
tomer lists and relationships, trademarks and tradenames, 
licenses and distribution agreements. Definite-lived intangible 
assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated 
useful life ranging from three to 20 years. Certain trademark 
assets are considered indefinite-lived intangible assets and are 
not amortized.

The Company’s policy defines IPR&D as the value of technol-
ogy acquired for which the related products have not yet 
reached technological feasibility and have no future alternative 
use. The primary basis for determining the technological feasi-
bility of these projects is obtaining regulatory approval to mar-
ket the underlying products in an applicable geographic region. 
IPR&D acquired in a business acquisition is subject to ASC 
Topic 805, Business Combinations (ASC Topic 805), which 
requires the fair value of IPR&D to be capitalized as an indefi-
nite-lived intangible asset until completion of the IPR&D project 
or abandonment. Upon completion of the development project 
(generally when regulatory approval to market the product is 
obtained), the IPR&D is amortized over its estimated useful life. 
If the IPR&D projects are abandoned, the related IPR&D assets 
would likely be impaired and written down to fair value. The 
purchase of certain intellectual property assets relate to tech-
nology or products without regulatory approval is considered a 
purchase of assets rather than the acquisition of a business. 
For such purchases, rather than being capitalized, any IPR&D 
acquired in such asset purchases is expensed immediately.

The Company also reviews its indefinite-lived intangible assets 
for impairment regularly to determine if any adverse conditions 
exist that would indicate impairment or when impairment indi-
cators exist. The Company assesses its indefinite-lived intangi-
ble assets for impairment similar to goodwill by considering 
qualitative factors such as macroeconomic conditions, industry 
and market considerations, cost factors, financial performance, 
entity specific events and project-based performance toward 
regulatory approvals. Similar to the goodwill impairment 
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analysis, if the qualitative assessment results in a determination 
that the fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset is more-
likely-than-not (“likely” meaning having a likelihood of more 
than 50%) greater than its carrying amount, no additional test-
ing is considered necessary. However, if the Company deter-
mines the fair value of its indefinite-lived intangible assets is 
more-likely-than-not below the carrying value, impairment indi-
cators exist. During 2013, the Company performed a qualitative 
assessment of its indefinite-lived intangible assets by consider-
ing many of the above factors and subsequently determined 
that a quantitative impairment analysis was further necessary 
for certain CATD indefinite-lived tradename and IPR&D assets. 
The Company utilized a discounted cash flow model for each 
individual asset level under scrutiny and recognized an impair-
ment charge of $29 million to write-down the related assets to 
fair value. The impairments were due primarily to the 
Company’s revised expectations, including an increase in the 
cost and length of time to bring the related products to market 
through U.S. regulatory approval. The Company recognized no 
impairment charges on its indefinite-lived intangible assets 
during fiscal year 2012 or 2011.

The Company also reviews its definite-lived intangible assets for 
impairment when impairment indicators exist. When impair-
ment indicators exist, the Company determines if the carrying 
value of its definite-lived intangible assets exceeds the related 
undiscounted future cash flows. In cases where the carrying 
value exceeds the undiscounted cash flows, the carrying value 
is written down to fair value, which the Company determines 
using present value cash flow calculations. During 2012, the 
Company recognized impairment charges of $31 million asso-
ciated with purchased technology assets in the Company’s 
IESD and CATD segments, as their future expected discounted 
cash flows did not exceed the carrying value of the related 
assets. Additionally, during 2013, 2012 and 2011, the 
Company recognized $13 million, $2 million and $52 million, 
respectively, of intangible asset impairments primarily associ-
ated with customer relationship intangible assets acquired in 
connection with legacy acquisitions of businesses involved in 
the distribution of the Company’s products. Due to the chang-
ing dynamics of the U.S. healthcare market, specifically as it 
relates to hospital purchasing practices, these intangible assets 
were determined to have no future discrete cash flows and 
were fully impaired in the respective periods. See Note 9 for 
further detail regarding the intangible asset impairments recog-
nized during fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011.

Contingent Consideration: In connection with certain business 
combinations or purchases of intellectual property the 
Company may agree to provide future contingent consideration 
payments. Payment of the additional consideration is generally 
contingent on the acquired company reaching certain perfor-
mance milestones, including attaining specified revenue levels, 
achieving product development targets or receiving regulatory 
approvals to market products. Contingent consideration is rec-
ognized on the acquisition date at the estimated fair value of 
the contingent milestone payment(s). The acquisition date fair 
value is measured based on the consideration expected to be 
transferred (probability-weighted), discounted back to present 
value. The discount rate used is determined at the time of 
measurement in accordance with accepted valuation methods. 
The fair value of the contingent consideration is remeasured to 
its estimated fair value at each reporting period with the 
change in fair value recognized in selling, general and adminis-
trative expense in the Company’s Consolidated Statements 
of Earnings.

Product Warranties: The Company offers a warranty on various 
products, the most significant of which relate to pacemaker 
and ICD systems. The Company estimates the costs it expects 
to incur under its warranties and records a liability for such 
costs at the time the product is sold. Factors that affect the 
Company’s warranty liability include the number of units sold, 
historical and anticipated rates of warranty claims and cost per 
claim. The Company regularly assesses the adequacy of its 
warranty liabilities and adjusts the amounts as necessary.

Changes in the Company’s product warranty liability during fis-
cal years 2013 and 2012 were as follows (in millions):

   2013 2012

Balance at beginning of period   $38 $36

Warranty expense recognized   3 5

Warranty credits issued   (4) (3)

Balance at end of period   $37 $38

Product Liability: Based on historical loss trends and antici-
pated loss on products sold, the Company accrues for product 
liability claims through its self-insurance program in effort to 
adequately cover future losses. Additionally, the Company 
accrues for product liability claims when it is probable that a 
liability has been incurred and the amount of the liability can 
be reasonably estimated. Receivables for insurance recoveries 
from prior product liability insurance coverage are recognized 
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when it is probable that a recovery will be realized. We are cur-
rently the subject of product liability litigation proceedings and 
other proceedings described in more detail at Note 5.

Litigation: The Company accrues a liability for costs related to 
litigation, including future legal costs, settlements and judg-
ments where it has assessed that such costs are probable and 
an amount can be reasonably estimated.

Revenue Recognition: The Company sells its products to hospi-
tals primarily through a direct sales force. In certain international 
markets, the Company sells its products through independent 
distributors. The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive 
evidence of a sales arrangement exists, delivery of goods occurs 
through the transfer of title and risks and rewards of ownership, 
the selling price is fixed or determinable and collectability is rea-
sonably assured. A portion of the Company’s inventory is held by 
field sales representatives or consigned at hospitals. For such 
product inventory, revenue is recognized at the time the 
Company is notified that the inventory has been implanted or 
used by the customer. For products that are not consigned, rev-
enue recognition occurs upon shipment to the hospital or, in the 
case of distributors, when title transfers under the contract 
assuming all other revenue recognition criteria are met. The 
Company offers sales rebates and discounts to certain custom-
ers. The Company records such rebates and discounts as a 
reduction of net sales in the same period revenue is recognized. 
The Company estimates rebates based on customers’ con-
tracted terms and historical sales experience.

Excise Taxes: The Company incurs certain excise taxes in the 
distribution of its products, including a medical device excise tax 
assessed on U.S sales and an excise tax assessed on purchases 
from the Company’s Puerto Rico manufacturing subsidiary. The 
U.S. medical device excise tax is imposed on the first sale in the 
U.S. by the manufacturer, producer or importer of a medical 
device to either a third party or an affiliated distribution entity. 
The Company capitalizes the assessment of these excise taxes 
as part of inventory, which is then recognized as cost of sales 
when the related inventory is sold to a third party customer.

Research and Development: Research and development costs 
are expensed as incurred. Research and development costs 
include costs of all basic research activities, including engi-
neering and technical effort required to develop a new prod-
uct or make significant improvements to an existing product 
or manufacturing process. Research and development costs 
also include pre-approval regulatory costs and clinical 
research expenses.

Stock-Based Compensation: The Company accounts for stock-
based compensation in accordance with ASC Topic 718, 
Compensation – Stock Compensation (ASC Topic 718). Under 
the fair value recognition provisions of ASC Topic 718, the 
Company measures stock-based compensation cost at the 
grant date fair value and recognizes the compensation expense 
over the requisite service period, which is the vesting period, 
using a straight-line attribution method.

The amount of stock-based compensation expense recognized 
during a period is based on the portion of the awards that are 
ultimately expected to vest. The Company estimates pre-vesting 
award forfeitures at the time of grant by analyzing historical 
data and revises those estimates in subsequent periods if 
actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. Ultimately, the 
total expense recognized over the vesting period will only be for 
those awards that vest. The Company’s awards are not eligible 
to vest early in the event of retirement, however, the majority of 
the Company’s awards vest early in the event of a change in 
control. See Note 8 for further detail on the Company’s stock 
compensation plans.

Net Earnings Per Share Attributable to St. Jude Medical, 
Inc.: Basic net earnings per share is computed by dividing net 
earnings by the weighted average number of outstanding com-
mon shares during the period, exclusive of dilutive securities. 
Diluted net earnings per share is computed by dividing net 
earnings by the weighted average number of outstanding com-
mon shares and dilutive securities.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and 
diluted net earnings per share for fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 
2011 (in millions, except per share amounts):

  2013 2012 2011

Numerator:

 Net earnings attributable to  
  St. Jude Medical, Inc.  $  723 $   752 $   826

Denominator:

 Basic weighted average  
  shares outstanding  287.0 313.3 324.3

 Effect of dilutive securities:

  Stock options   3.2 1.3 2.6

  Restricted stock units  0.4 0.2 0.2

 Diluted weighted average  
  shares outstanding  290.6 314.8 327.1

Basic net earnings per share  $ 2.52 $  2.40 $  2.55

Diluted net earnings per share  $ 2.49 $  2.39 $  2.52
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Approximately 4.8 million, 18.9 million and 11.5 million shares 
of common stock subject to stock options and restricted stock 
units were excluded from the diluted net earnings per share 
computation because they were not dilutive during fiscal years 
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Foreign Currency Translation: Sales and expenses denomi-
nated in foreign currencies are translated at average exchange 
rates in effect throughout the year. Assets and liabilities of  
foreign operations are translated at period-end exchange  
rates with the impacts of foreign currency translation recog-
nized to cumulative translation adjustment, a component of 
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Foreign  
currency transaction gains and losses are included in other 
expense, net.

Derivative Financial Instruments: The Company follows the 
provisions of ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 
Topic 815) to account for its derivative instruments and hedg-
ing activities. ASC Topic 815 requires all derivative financial 
instruments to be recognized on the balance sheet at fair 
value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognized  
in net earnings or other comprehensive income depending  
on whether the derivative is designated as part of a qualifying 
hedge transaction.

The Company uses forward contracts to manage foreign cur-
rency exposures primarily related to intercompany receiv-
ables and payables arising from intercompany purchases of 
manufactured products. These forward contracts are not des-
ignated as qualifying hedges and therefore, the changes in 
the fair values of these derivatives are recognized in net earn-
ings and classified in other expense, net. The gains and 
losses on these forward contracts largely offset the losses or 
gains on the foreign currency exposures being managed. See 
Note 14 for further detail on the Company’s use of its deriva-
tive financial instruments.

New Accounting Pronouncements: In February 2013, the 
FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2013-02: 
Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income (ASU 2013-02), an update to 
Comprehensive Income (Topic 220). ASU 2013-02 requires an 
entity to present either on the face of the statement where net 
income is presented or in the notes to the financial statements, 
significant amounts reclassified out of accumulated other 

comprehensive income by the respective line items in the 
statement presenting net income. Additionally, disclosures 
about the changes in each component of accumulated other 
comprehensive income are also required. ASU 2013-02 
requires prospective application and is effective for all fiscal 
years and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2012. 
The Company adopted ASU 2013-02 in the first quarter of 
2013 and includes the required disclosures in Note 7.

Note 2
Business Combinations

Endosense S.A.: On August 19, 2013, the Company acquired 
all the outstanding shares of Endosense S.A. (Endosense) for 
the equivalent of $171 million (160 million Swiss Francs) in net 
cash consideration using available cash from outside the 
United States (U.S.). Endosense is based in Geneva, 
Switzerland and develops, manufactures and markets the 
TactiCath® irrigated ablation catheter to provide physicians a 
real-time, objective measure of the force to apply to the heart 
wall during a catheter ablation procedure. The Endosense 
force-sensing technology is CE Mark-approved for atrial fibrilla-
tion and supra ventricular tachycarida ablation. Under the 
terms of the acquisition agreement, the Company is obligated 
to make an additional cash payment of up to 150 million Swiss 
Francs (approximately $167 million at December 28, 2013), 
contingent upon both the achievement and timing of U.S. Food 
and Drug Administration (FDA) approval.

Consistent with the provisions of ASC Topic 805, the Company 
accrued the contingent payment on the date of acquisition 
after determining its fair value of $132 million in arriving at 
$303 million of total consideration, net of cash acquired. The 
contingent consideration liability is reflected in other current 
liabilities as of December 28, 2013 and continues to be remea-
sured to fair value at each reporting period with changes in fair 
value reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

The goodwill recorded as a result of the Endosense acquisition 
is not deductible for income tax purposes and was entirely allo-
cated to the CATD reportable segment. The goodwill represents 
the strategic opportunities for growing the Company’s atrial 
fibrillation product portfolio and the expected revenue growth 
from increased market penetration from future products and 
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customers. The Company now has the potential to integrate the 
force-sensing technology to offer a MediGuide™-enabled 
force-sensing ablation catheter and incorporate force-sensing 
data into its EnSite Velocity™ Mapping System. In connection 
with the acquisition of Endosense, the Company recognized 
$20 million of developed technology intangible assets that have 
an estimated useful life of 7 years and $33 million of IPR&D 
that was capitalized as an indefinite-lived intangible asset. 
Upon completion of the related development projects (when 
U.S. regulatory approval to market the product is obtained), the 
IPR&D will be amortized over its estimated useful life.

The results of Endosense since the date of acquisition and pro 
forma disclosures of the consolidated results of the Company 
with the full year effects of Endosense have not been separately 
presented since the impact to the Company’s results of opera-
tions was not material.

Nanostim, Inc.: On October 11, 2013, the Company exercised 
its exclusive purchase option and acquired all the outstanding 
shares of Nanostim, Inc. (Nanostim) for $121 million in net 
cash consideration. The Company previously held an invest-
ment in Nanostim, which provided the Company with an 18% 
voting equity interest. Nanostim is based in Sunnyvale, 
California and has developed the first leadless, miniaturized 
cardiac pacemaker system, which received CE Mark approval 
in August 2013. The Nanostim™ leadless pacemaker also 
received FDA conditional approval in September 2013 for its 
Investigational Device Exemption application and pivotal clini-
cal trial protocol to begin evaluating the technology in the U.S. 
The terms of the Company’s original investment agreement 
with Nanostim included an exclusive fixed price purchase 
option to acquire the remaining 82% equity interest in 
Nanostim. In accordance with ASC Topic 810, Consolidations 
(ASC Topic 810), the Company previously concluded that 
Nanostim was a VIE, but that St. Jude Medical was not the pri-
mary beneficiary as it did not retain power to direct the activi-
ties of Nanostim that most significantly impacted its economic 
performance. The Company previously reflected its investment 
in Nanostim as a cost method investment in other assets.

At the time of acquisition, the Company’s 18% voting equity 
interest in Nanostim was remeasured to fair value of $33 mil-
lion, which approximated its carrying value, and the related 
remeasurement gain was not material. Under the terms of the 
acquisition agreement, the Company is obligated to make addi-
tional cash payments of up to $65 million, contingent upon the 
achievement and timing of certain revenue-based milestones. 
Consistent with the provisions of ASC Topic 805, the Company 
accrued the contingent payment after determining its fair value 
of $56 million in arriving at $210 million of total consideration, 
net of cash acquired. The contingent consideration accrual is 
reflected in other liabilities as of December 28, 2013 and will 
be remeasured to fair value at each reporting period with 
changes in fair value reflected in the Consolidated Statements 
of Earnings. The purchase price allocation is preliminary sub-
ject to finalization of the fair value valuation.

The goodwill recorded as a result of the Nanostim acquisition is 
not deductible for income tax purposes and was entirely allo-
cated to the IESD reportable segment. The goodwill represents 
the strategic opportunities for growing the Company’s cardiac 
rhythm management business through expected revenue 
growth from increased market penetration and consumer pref-
erence for a miniaturized, leadless pacemaker as well as the 
potential for future product indications. In connection with the 
acquisition of Nanostim, the Company recognized $34 million 
of developed technology intangible assets that have an esti-
mated useful life of 10 years and $27 million of IPR&D that 
was capitalized as an indefinite-lived intangible asset. Upon 
completion of the related development projects, the IPR&D will 
be amortized over its estimated useful life.

The results of Nanostim since the date of acquisition and pro 
forma disclosures of the consolidated results of the Company 
with the full year effects of Nanostim have not been separately 
presented since the impact to the Company’s results of opera-
tions was not material.
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The following table summarizes the purchase price allocation of 
the estimated fair values of net assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed as a result of the Company’s acquisitions of Endosense 
and Nanostim during fiscal year 2013 as follows (in millions):

    
 Endosense Nanostim Total

Assets acquired:
Current assets  $    2 $    1 $    3

Goodwill   258 149 407

IPR&D    33 27 60

Other intangible assets  20 34 54

Other long-term assets  1 1 2

 Total assets acquired  314 212 526

Liabilities assumed:
Current liabilities  11 2 13

Net assets acquired  303 210 513

Cash paid   180 124 304

Cash acquired  (9) (3) (12)

Net cash consideration  171 121 292

Contingent consideration  132 56 188

Fair value of St. Jude Medical, Inc.’s  
 previously held interest  – 33 33

Total purchase consideration $303 $210 $513

Spinal Modulation, Inc.: On June 7, 2013, the Company 
made an equity investment of $40 million in Spinal Modulation, 
a privately-held company that is focused on the development of 
an intraspinal neuromodulation therapy that delivers spinal 
cord stimulation targeting the dorsal root ganglion to manage 
chronic pain. The investment agreement resulted in a 19% vot-
ing equity interest and provided the Company with the exclu-
sive right, but not the obligation, to acquire Spinal Modulation 
for payments of up to $300 million during the period that 
extends through the completion of certain regulatory mile-
stones. Additionally, in connection with the investment and 
contingent acquisition agreement, the Company also entered 
into an exclusive international distribution agreement, and 
obtained significant decision-making rights over Spinal 
Modulation’s operations and economic performance. The 
Company also committed to providing additional debt financing 
to Spinal Modulation of up to $15 million. Accordingly, effective 
June 7, 2013, the Company determined that Spinal Modulation 
was a VIE for which St. Jude Medical is the primary beneficiary. 
Therefore, as of June 7, 2013, the financial condition and 
results of operations of Spinal Modulation were included in  
St. Jude Medical’s consolidated financial statements. The 
Company has a 19% voting equity interest in Spinal Modulation 
and allocates the losses attributable to Spinal Modulation’s 
noncontrolling shareholders to noncontrolling interest in 
St. Jude Medical’s Consolidated Statements of Earnings  
and Consolidated Balance sheets.

The initial consolidation of a VIE that is determined to be a 
business is accounted for as a business combination. The fol-
lowing table summarizes the estimated fair values of Spinal 
Modulation’s assets and liabilities included in St. Jude 
Medical’s consolidated balance sheets as of the June 7, 2013 
consolidation date, and as of December 28, 2013 after elimina-
tion of all intercompany balances and transactions (in millions):

  June 7,  December 28, 
  2013 2013

Cash and cash equivalents  $  41 $  25

Other current assets   9 5

Goodwill    82 82

IPR&D     45 45

Other intangible assets   7 7

Other long-term assets   1 1

 Total assets   185 165

Current liabilities   6 5

Deferred income taxes, net  19 19

 Total liabilities   25 24

Non-controlling interest   $120 $104

The initial allocation of Spinal Modulation’s assets and liabilities 
included in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet is 
based upon preliminary valuations, and the estimated fair val-
ues of assets and liabilities are subject to change as the valua-
tions are finalized within the initial measurement period. During 
the third quarter of 2013, the Company reflected a preliminary 
fair value adjustment and recorded a $35 million decrease to 
goodwill, a $5 million decrease to acquired IPR&D, a $3 million 
decrease to purchased technology intangible assets, a $3 mil-
lion decrease to liabilities and a $40 million reduction to non-
controlling interest. These changes have been reflected 
retrospectively in the June 7, 2013 balances presented in the 
previous table.

The cash and cash equivalents balance of Spinal Modulation at 
June 7, 2013 includes $40 million of the Company’s equity 
investment proceeds. Assets recorded as a result of consolidat-
ing Spinal Modulation into the Company’s consolidated balance 
sheet do not represent additional assets that could be used to 
satisfy claims against the Company’s general assets. The credi-
tors of Spinal Modulation do not have any recourse to the gen-
eral credit of St. Jude Medical.

The goodwill recognized in connection with the Spinal 
Modulation transaction was not deductible for income tax pur-
poses and was allocated entirely to the Company’s IESD seg-
ment. The goodwill represents the strategic opportunities for 
growing the Company’s neuromodulation chronic pain portfolio 
as well as the expected revenue growth from increased market 
penetration. The Company recognized $45 million of indefi-
nite-lived IPR&D intangible assets. Upon completion of the 
related development project (generally when regulatory 
approval to market the product is obtained), the IPR&D will be 
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amortized over its estimated useful life. The Company also rec-
ognized $7 million of purchased technology intangible assets 
with an estimated useful life of 12 years.

If the Company acquires Spinal Modulation, the contingent 
acquisition agreement also provides for additional consider-
ation payments contingent upon the achievement of certain 
revenue-based milestones. In the event the Company acquires 
the noncontrolling interest of Spinal Modulation, the contingent 
payments would be recognized at the then-current fair value as 
an equity transaction.

CardioMEMS, Inc.: During 2010, the Company made an equity 
investment of $60 million in CardioMEMS, a privately-held 
company that is focused on the development of a wireless 
monitoring technology that can be placed directly into the pul-
monary artery to assess cardiac performance via measurement 
of pulmonary artery pressure. The investment agreement 
resulted in a 19% voting equity interest and provided the 
Company with the exclusive right, but not the obligation, to 
acquire CardioMEMS for an additional payment of $375 million 
less any net debt payable to St. Jude Medical under a separate 
loan agreement entered into between CardioMEMS and 
the Company.

In the first quarter of 2013, the Company obtained significant 
decision-making rights over CardioMEMS’ operations and pro-
vided debt financing of $28 million to CardioMEMS which was 
collateralized by substantially all the assets of CardioMEMS 
including its intellectual property. In July 2013, the Company 
provided $9 million of additional debt financing to 
CardioMEMS. In accordance with ASC Topic 810, the Company 
reconsidered its arrangements with CardioMEMS and deter-
mined that effective February 27, 2013 CardioMEMS was a VIE 
for which St. Jude Medical is the primary beneficiary. As a 
result, as of February 27, 2013, the financial condition and 
results of operations of CardioMEMS were included in St. Jude 
Medical’s consolidated financial statements. The Company rec-
ognized a $29 million loss associated with a fair value remea-
surement adjustment to other expense (see Note 10) to adjust 
the carrying value of its equity investment and fixed price pur-
chase option. The Company continues to hold a 19% voting 
equity interest in CardioMEMS and allocates the losses attribut-
able to CardioMEMS’ noncontrolling shareholders to noncon-
trolling interest in St. Jude Medical’s Consolidated Statements 
of Earnings and Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The initial consolidation of a VIE that is determined to be a busi-
ness is accounted for as a business combination. The following 
table summarizes the estimated fair values of CardioMEMS’ 
assets and liabilities included in St. Jude Medical’s consolidated 

balance sheets as of the February 27, 2013 consolidation date, 
and as of December 28, 2013 after elimination of all intercom-
pany balances and transactions (in millions):

  February 27, December 28, 
  2013 2013

Cash and cash equivalents  $  33 $  14

Other current assets   2 6

Goodwill    83 83

IPR&D     63 63

Other long-term assets   2 2

 Total assets   183 168

Current liabilities   13 7

Deferred income taxes, net  23 23

Other liabilities   5 4

 Total liabilities   41 34

Noncontrolling interest   $  84 $  68

The initial allocation of CardioMEMS’ assets and liabilities 
included in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet was 
based upon preliminary valuations, and the estimated fair values 
of assets and liabilities were subject to change as the valuations 
were finalized within the initial measurement period. During the 
third quarter of 2013, the Company finalized the valuations and 
allocation of the estimated fair values of CardioMEMS’ assets 
and liabilities and recorded a $1 million decrease to goodwill, a 
$6 million decrease to IPR&D, a $2 million decrease to liabilities 
and a $5 million reduction to noncontrolling interest. These 
changes have been reflected retrospectively in the February 27, 
2013 balances presented in the previous table.

The cash and cash equivalents balance of CardioMEMS at 
February 27, 2013 includes $28 million of the Company’s debt 
financing proceeds. Assets recorded as a result of consolidat-
ing CardioMEMS into the Company’s consolidated balance 
sheet do not represent additional assets that could be used to 
satisfy claims against the Company’s general assets. The other 
creditors of CardioMEMS do not have any recourse to the gen-
eral credit of St. Jude Medical.

The goodwill recognized in connection with the CardioMEMS 
transaction was not deductible for income tax purposes and 
was allocated entirely to the Company’s IESD segment. The 
goodwill represents the strategic opportunities for growing the 
Company’s cardiac rhythm management and heart failure ther-
apy product portfolio as well as the expected revenue growth 
from increased market penetration. The Company recognized 
$63 million of indefinite-lived IPR&D intangible assets. Upon 
completion of the related development projects (generally when 
regulatory approval to market the product is obtained), the 
IPR&D will be amortized over its estimated useful life.
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Note 3
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for each of the Company’s reportable segments (see Note 15) for the fiscal years 
ended December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012 were as follows (in millions):

    IESD CATD Total

Balance at December 31, 2011    $ 1,235 $ 1,718 $ 2,953

Foreign currency translation and other    (6) 14 8

Balance at December 29, 2012    1,229 1,732 2,961

Endosense S.A.    – 258 258

Nanostim, Inc.    149 – 149

Spinal Modulation, Inc.    82 – 82

CardioMEMS, Inc.    83 – 83

Foreign currency translation and other    (17) 8 (9)

Balance at December 28, 2013    $1,526 $1,998 $3,524

The following table provides the gross carrying amount of other intangible assets and related accumulated amortization (in millions):

   December 28, 2013 December 29, 2012

   Gross   Gross 
   Carrying  Accumulated  Carrying  Accumulated 
   Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

Definite-lived intangible assets:

 Purchased technology and patents   $   986 $393 $   947 $336

 Customer lists and relationships   20 13 57 36

 Trademarks and tradenames   22 11 22 10

 Licenses, distribution agreements and other   4 1 6 4

        $1,032 $418 $1,032 $386

Indefinite-lived intangible assets:

 Acquired IPR&D   $   262  $   109

 Trademarks and tradenames   35  49

        $   297  $   158

During 2013, the Company recognized impairment charges of $29 million associated with its indefinite-lived tradename and 
IPR&D assets in the Company’s CATD segment. Additionally, the Company recognized a $13 million impairment charge primarily 
associated with customer relationship intangible assets. See Note 9 for further details discussing these charges. The gross carry-
ing amounts and related accumulated amortization amounts for these impairment charges were written off accordingly.

Amortization expense was $79 million, $88 million and $93 million during fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The fol-
lowing table presents expected future amortization expense including amortization expense of expected indefinite-lived IPR&D 
amortization based on anticipated regulatory product approvals. Actual amounts of amortization expense may differ due to actual 
timing of regulatory approvals, additional intangible assets acquired and foreign currency translation impacts (in millions):

      After 
 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2018

Amortization expense $90 $95 $101 $93 $87 $410
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Note 4
Debt

The Company’s debt consisted of the following, including  
discounts and premiums (in millions):

  December 28, December 29, 
  2013 2012

Term loan due 2015   $   500 $       –

2.50% senior notes due 2016  512 518

3.25% senior notes due 2023  896 –

4.75% senior notes due 2043  696 –

3.75% senior notes due 2014  
 (redeemed May 2013)   – 699

4.875% senior notes due 2019  
 (redeemed May 2013)   – 496

2.20% senior notes due 2013  
 (retired September 2013)  – 454

1.58% Yen-denominated senior notes due 2017 78 95

2.04% Yen-denominated senior notes due 2020 122 149

Yen-denominated credit facilities  62 76

Commercial paper borrowings  714 593

Total debt    3,580 3,080

Less: current debt obligations  62 530

Long-term debt   $3,518 $2,550

Expected future minimum principal payments under the 
Company’s debt obligations are as follows: $62 million in 2014; 
$500 million in 2015; $500 million in 2016; $78 million in 
2017; $714 million in 2018; and $1,722 million in years 
thereafter.

Term Loan Due 2015: In June 2013, the Company entered 
into a 2-year, $500 million unsecured term loan that matures in 
June 2015, the proceeds of which were used for general cor-
porate purposes including the repayment of outstanding com-
mercial paper borrowings of the Company. These borrowings 
bear interest at LIBOR plus 0.5%, subject to adjustment in the 
event of a change in the Company’s credit ratings. The 
Company may make principal payments on the outstanding 
borrowings any time after June 26, 2014.

Senior Notes Due 2016: On December 1, 2010, the Company 
issued $500 million principal amount of 5-year, 2.50% unse-
cured senior notes (2016 Senior Notes) that mature in January 
2016. The majority of the net proceeds from the issuance of 
the 2016 Senior Notes was used for general corporate pur-
poses including the repurchase of the Company’s common 
stock. Interest payments are required on a semi-annual basis. 
The 2016 Senior Notes were issued at a discount, yielding an 
effective interest rate of 2.54% at issuance. The debt discount 

is being amortized as interest expense through maturity. The 
Company may redeem the 2016 Senior Notes at any time at 
the applicable redemption price.

Concurrent with the issuance of the 2016 Senior Notes, the 
Company entered into a 5-year, $500 million notional amount 
interest rate swap designated as a fair value hedge of the 
changes in fair value of the Company’s fixed-rate 2016 Senior 
Notes. On June 7, 2012, the Company terminated the interest 
rate swap and received a cash payment of $24 million. The 
gain from terminating the interest rate swap agreement has 
been reflected as an increase to the carrying value of the debt 
and is being amortized as a reduction of interest expense 
resulting in a net average interest rate of 1.3% that will be rec-
ognized over the remaining term of the 2016 Senior Notes.

Senior Notes Due 2023: In April 2013, the Company issued 
$900 million principal amount of 10-year, 3.25% unsecured 
senior notes (2023 Senior Notes) that mature in April 2023. 
Interest payments are required on a semi-annual basis. The 
2023 Senior Notes were issued at a discount, yielding an effec-
tive interest rate of 3.31% at issuance. The debt discount is 
being amortized as interest expense through maturity. The 
Company may redeem the 2023 Senior Notes at any time at 
the applicable redemption price.

Senior Notes Due 2043: In April 2013, the Company issued 
$700 million principal amount of 30-year, 4.75% unsecured 
senior notes (2043 Senior Notes) that mature in April 2043. 
Interest payments are required on a semi-annual basis. The 
2043 Senior Notes were issued at a discount, yielding an effec-
tive interest rate of 4.79% at issuance. The debt discount is 
being amortized as interest expense through maturity. The 
Company may redeem the 2043 Senior Notes at any time at 
the applicable redemption price.

In May 2013, the Company used the majority of the proceeds 
from the issuance of its 2023 Senior Notes and 2043 Senior 
Notes to redeem both $700 million principal amount of 5-year, 
3.75% unsecured senior notes originally due in 2014 (2014 
Senior Notes) and $500 million principal amount of 10-year, 
4.875% unsecured senior notes originally due in 2019 (2019 
Senior Notes). In connection with the redemption of these 
senior notes, the Company recognized an aggregate $161 mil-
lion debt retirement charge in the second quarter of 2013 pri-
marily associated with required make-whole redemption 
payments to noteholders from the senior notes being retired 
prior to their scheduled maturity as well as the write-off of 
unamortized debt issuance costs.
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Senior Notes Due 2013: On March 10, 2010, the Company 
issued $450 million principal amount of 3-year, 2.20% unse-
cured senior notes (2013 Senior Notes) that matured on 
September 15, 2013, which the Company paid in full  
utilizing commercial paper borrowings and cash generated 
from operations.

1.58% Yen-Denominated Senior Notes Due 2017: On April 
28, 2010, the Company issued 7-year, 1.58% unsecured 
senior notes in Japan (1.58% Yen Notes) totaling 8.1 billion 
Japanese Yen (the equivalent of $78 million at December 28, 
2013 and $95 million at December 29, 2012). The principal 
amount of the 1.58% Yen Notes recorded on the balance sheet 
fluctuates based on the effects of foreign currency translation. 
Interest payments are required on a semi-annual basis and the 
entire principal balance is due on April 28, 2017.

2.04% Yen-Denominated Senior Notes Due 2020: On April 
28, 2010, the Company issued 10-year, 2.04% unsecured 
senior notes in Japan (2.04% Yen Notes) totaling 12.8 billion 
Japanese Yen (the equivalent of $122 million at December 28, 
2013 and $149 million at December 29, 2012). The principal 
amount of the 2.04% Yen Notes recorded on the balance sheet 
fluctuates based on the effects of foreign currency translation. 
Interest payments are required on a semi-annual basis and the 
entire principal balance is due on April 28, 2020.

Yen–Denominated Credit Facilities: In March 2011, the 
Company borrowed 6.5 billion Japanese Yen (the equivalent  
of $62 million at December 28, 2013 and $76 million at 
December 29, 2012) under uncommitted credit facilities with 
two commercial Japanese banks that provide for borrowings  
up to a maximum of 11.25 billion Japanese Yen. The principal 
amount reflected on the balance sheet fluctuates based on the 
effects of foreign currency translation. Half of the borrowings 
bear interest at Yen LIBOR plus 0.25% and mature in March 
2014 and the other half of the borrowings bear interest at  
Yen LIBOR plus 0.275% and mature in June 2014. The matu-
rity dates of each credit facility automatically extend for a  
one-year period, unless the Company elects to terminate the 
credit facility.

Other Available Borrowings: In May 2013, the Company 
entered into a $1.5 billion unsecured committed credit facility 
(Credit Facility) that it may draw on for general corporate pur-
poses and to support its commercial paper program. The Credit 
Facility expires in May 2018. Borrowings under the Credit 
Facility bear interest initially at LIBOR plus 0.8%, subject to 
adjustment in the event of a change in the Company’s credit 
ratings. The Credit Facility replaces the Company’s previous 
$1.5 billion credit facility that was scheduled to expire in 

February 2015. As of December 28, 2013 and December 29, 
2012, the Company had no outstanding borrowings under 
either credit facility.

The Company’s commercial paper program provides for the 
issuance of short-term, unsecured commercial paper with 
maturities up to 270 days. As of December 28, 2013 and 
December 29, 2012, the Company’s commercial paper borrow-
ings were $714 million and $593 million, respectively. During 
2013, the Company’s weighted average effective interest rate 
on its commercial paper borrowings was approximately 0.24%. 
Any future commercial paper borrowings would bear interest at 
the applicable then-current market rates. The Company classi-
fies all of its commercial paper borrowings as long-term debt, 
as the Company has the ability to repay any short-term maturity 
with available cash from its existing long-term, committed 
Credit Facility.

Note 5
Commitments and Contingencies

Leases
The Company leases various facilities and equipment under 
non-cancelable operating lease arrangements. Future mini-
mum lease payments under these leases are as follows: $30 
million in 2014; $22 million in 2015; $15 million in 2016; $15 
million in 2017; $10 million in 2018; and $4 million in years 
thereafter. Rent expense under all operating leases was $36 
million, $44 million and $45 million in fiscal years 2013, 2012 
and 2011, respectively.

Product Liability Litigation
Riata® Litigation: In April 2013, a lawsuit seeking a class 
action was filed against the Company in the U.S. District Court 
for the Western District of Washington by plaintiffs alleging they 
suffered injuries caused by Riata® and Riata® ST Silicone 
Defibrillation Leads. This matter has been resolved and the 
case has been dismissed.

As of February 21, 2014, the Company is aware of 44 lawsuits 
from plaintiffs alleging injuries caused by, and asserting prod-
uct liability claims concerning, Riata® and Riata® ST Silicone 
Defibrillation Leads. Most of the lawsuits have been brought by 
single plaintiffs, but some of them name multiple individuals as 
plaintiffs. Five separate multi-plaintiff lawsuits have been initi-
ated against the Company that involve more than one unrelated 
plaintiff: a multi-plaintiff lawsuit joining 29 unrelated claimants 
was filed in the Superior Court of California for the city and 
county of Los Angeles on April 4, 2013; a multi-plaintiff lawsuit 
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joining two unrelated claimants was filed in the Superior Court 
of California for the city and county of Los Angeles on April 4, 
2013; a multi-plaintiff lawsuit joining two claimants was filed in 
the United States District Court for the Central District of 
California on April 4, 2013; a multi-plaintiff lawsuit joining three 
unrelated claimants was filed in the Superior Court of California 
for the city and county of Los Angeles on April 29, 2013; and a 
multi-plaintiff lawsuit joining 21 unrelated claimants was filed in 
the Superior Court of California for the city and county of Los 
Angeles on July 15, 2013. Of the 44 lawsuits, 18 cases are 
pending in federal courts, including three in the U.S. District 
Court for the District of Minnesota, nine in the U.S. District 
Court for the Central District of California, one in the U.S. 
District Court for the District of South Carolina, one in the U.S. 
District Court for the Northern District of New York, one in the 
U.S. District Court for the Western District of New York, one in 
the U.S. District Court for the Middle District of Florida, one in 
the U.S. District Court for the Western District of Kentucky and 
one in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of West 
Virginia. The remaining 26 lawsuits are pending in state courts 
across the country, including seven in Minnesota, sixteen in 
California, one in Indiana, one in Georgia and one in Kentucky.

In November 2013, an amended claim was filed in a Canadian 
proposed class proceeding alleging that Riata® leads were 
prone to insulation abrasion and breach, failure to warn and 
conspiracy. The plaintiffs took no action between their 2008 fil-
ing and the amended claim they filed in November 2013. The 
Company has filed its statement of intent to defend in response 
to the amended claims, and the plaintiffs have not taken any 
further action.

Although some of the claimants in the aforementioned suits 
allege no specific injuries, the majority of the claimants allege 
bodily injuries as a result of surgical revision or removal and 
replacement of Riata® leads, or other complications, which they 
attribute to the leads. The majority of the claimants who seek 
recovery for implantation and/or surgical removal of Riata® 
leads are seeking compensatory damages in unspecified 
amounts, and declaratory judgments that the Company is liable 
to the claimants for any past, present and future evaluative 
monitoring, and corrective medical, surgical and incidental 
expenses and losses. Several claimants also seek punitive 
damages. The Company is responsible for legal costs incurred 
in defense of the Riata product liability claims including any 
potential settlements, judgments and other legal defense costs.

Silzone® Litigation and Insurance Receivables: The Company 
has been sued in various jurisdictions beginning in March 
2000 by some patients who received a heart valve product with 
Silzone® coating, which the Company stopped selling in 
January 2000. The Company’s outstanding Silzone cases con-
sist of one class action in Ontario and one individual case in 

Ontario. In June 2012, the Ontario Court ruled in the 
Company’s favor on all nine common class issues in a class 
action involving Silzone patients, and the case was dismissed. 
In September 2012, counsel for the class filed an appeal with 
the Court of Appeal for the Province of Ontario. The oral argu-
ment concerning the appeal was expected to be heard in 
November 2013, but that hearing date was adjourned and no 
new hearing date has been scheduled. The individual case in 
Ontario requests damages in excess of $1 million (claiming 
unspecified special damages, health care costs and interest). 
Based on the Company’s historical experience, the amount ulti-
mately paid, if any, often does not bear any relationship to the 
amount claimed. To the extent that the Company’s future 
Silzone costs (inclusive of settlements, judgments, legal fees 
and other related defense costs) exceed its remaining historical 
insurance coverage of approximately $10 million, the Company 
would be responsible for such costs.

The Company intends to vigorously defend against the claims 
that have been asserted. The Company has not recorded an 
expense related to any potential damages in connection with 
these product liability litigation matters because any potential 
loss is not probable or reasonably estimable. Other than dis-
closed above, the Company cannot reasonably estimate a loss or 
range of loss, if any, that may result from these litigation matters.

Patent and Other Intellectual  
Property Litigation
Volcano Corporation & LightLab Imaging Litigation: The 
Company’s subsidiary, LightLab Imaging, has pending litigation 
with Volcano Corporation (Volcano) and Axsun Technologies, 
Inc. (Axsun), a subsidiary of Volcano, in the Massachusetts 
state court and in state court in Delaware. LightLab Imaging 
makes and sells optical coherence tomography (OCT) imaging 
systems. Volcano is a LightLab Imaging competitor in medical 
imaging. Axsun makes and sells lasers and is a supplier of 
lasers to LightLab Imaging for use in OCT imaging systems.  
The lawsuits arise out of Volcano’s acquisition of Axsun in 
December 2008. Before Volcano acquired Axsun, LightLab 
Imaging and Axsun had worked together to develop a tunable 
laser for use in OCT imaging systems. While the laser was in 
development, LightLab Imaging and Axsun entered into an 
agreement pursuant to which Axsun agreed to sell its tunable 
lasers exclusively to LightLab in the field of human coronary 
artery imaging for a certain period of time.

After Volcano acquired Axsun in December 2008, LightLab 
Imaging sued Axsun and Volcano in Massachusetts, asserting a 
number of claims arising out of Volcano’s acquisition of Axsun. 
In January 2011, the Court ruled that Axsun’s and Volcano’s 
conduct constituted knowing and willful violations of a statute 
which prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or practices or acts of 
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unfair competition, entitling LightLab Imaging to double dam-
ages, and furthermore, that LightLab Imaging was entitled to 
recover attorneys’ fees. In February 2011, Volcano and Axsun 
were ordered to pay the Company for reimbursement of attor-
neys’ fees and double damages, which Volcano paid to the 
Company in July 2011. The Court also issued certain injunc-
tions and declaratory relief against Volcano. The Company has 
also appealed certain rulings relating to the trial court’s exclu-
sion of certain expert testimony and its refusal to enter perma-
nent injunctions. In January 2013, the Supreme Judicial Court 
for Massachusetts granted the Company’s request to bypass 
the intermediary appellate court and accepted the matter for its 
direct review. Oral argument occurred on December 2, 2013, 
and a decision is expected in 2014.

In May 2011, LightLab Imaging initiated a lawsuit against 
Volcano and Axsun in the Delaware state court. The suit seeks 
to enforce LightLab Imaging’s exclusive contract with Axsun, 
and also alleges claims to prevent Volcano from interfering with 
that contract and to bar Axsun and Volcano from using 
LightLab Imaging confidential information and trade secrets, 
and to prevent Volcano and Axsun from violating a 
Massachusetts statute prohibiting unfair methods of competi-
tion and unfair or deceptive acts or practices relating to 
LightLab Imaging’s tunable laser technology. In May 2012, the 
Court granted Volcano’s motion to stay the proceedings until 
Volcano provides notice of its intent to begin clinical trials or 
engage in other public activities with an OCT imaging system 
that uses a type of light source that is in dispute in the lawsuit. 
Volcano is under an order to provide such a notice at least 45 
days before beginning such trials or engaging in such activities. 
In April 2013, the Court denied a motion by the Company to lift 
the stay. On November 4, 2013 Volcano announced that it was 
discontinuing its OCT development program effective 
September 30, 2013. Accordingly, Volcano has filed a motion 
to dismiss without prejudice in the Delaware state court litiga-
tion. The Court has not ruled on Volcano’s motion.

Volcano Corporation & St. Jude Medical Patent Litigation: In 
July 2010, the Company filed a lawsuit in federal district court 
in Delaware against Volcano for patent infringement. In the 
suit, the Company asserted certain patents against Volcano and 
seeks injunctive relief and monetary damages. The infringed 
patents are part of the St. Jude Medical PressureWire® technol-
ogy platform, which was acquired as part of St. Jude Medical’s 
purchase of Radi Medical Systems in December 2008. On 
October 19, 2012 a jury ruled in favor of Volcano finding that 
certain Volcano patents did not infringe the Company’s patents 
and that certain St. Jude Medical patents were invalid. The 
Company filed a motion for judgment as a matter of law which 
the Court denied. The Company intends to appeal to the fed-
eral circuit court and raise challenges to various issues related 
to the trial that resulted in the October 19, 2012 jury decision. 

Volcano also filed counterclaims against the Company in this 
case, alleging certain St. Jude Medical patent claims are unen-
forceable and that certain St. Jude Medical products infringe 
certain Volcano patents. On October 25, 2012, a jury ruled that 
the Company did not infringe certain Volcano patents and the 
Court entered judgment on both October jury verdicts in 
January 2013. The parties are moving forward with other post-
trial proceedings.

On April 16, 2013, Volcano filed a lawsuit in federal district 
court in Delaware against the Company alleging that the 
Company is infringing two U.S. patents owned by Volcano 
which were issued that same day. The allegations relate to the 
Company’s PressureWire® technology (Fractional Flow Reserve) 
FFR Platforms, including ILUMIEN™ PCI Optimization System 
and Quantien™ Integrated FFR platforms. In its complaint, 
Volcano sought both injunctive relief and monetary damages. 
On January 29, 2014, the Court issued a claims construction 
ruling favorable to the Company. Based on that ruling, the par-
ties filed a stipulation with the Court on February 14, 2014, 
agreeing that the Company’s products do not infringe the two 
patents Volcano has asserted.

The Company has not recorded an expense related to any 
potential damages in connection with these litigation matter 
because any potential loss is not probable or reasonably esti-
mable. Other than disclosed above, the Company cannot rea-
sonably estimate a loss or range of loss, if any, that may result 
from these litigation matters.

Securities and Other Shareholder Litigation
March 2010 Securities Class Action Litigation: In March 
2010, a securities lawsuit seeking class action status was filed 
in federal district court in Minnesota against the Company and 
certain officers (collectively, the defendants) on behalf of pur-
chasers of St. Jude Medical common stock between April 22, 
2009 and October 6, 2009. The lawsuit relates to the 
Company’s earnings announcements for the first, second and 
third quarters of 2009, as well as a preliminary earnings 
release dated October 6, 2009. The complaint, which seeks 
unspecified damages and other relief as well as attorneys’ fees, 
alleges that the defendants failed to disclose that it was experi-
encing a slowdown in demand for its products and was not 
receiving anticipated orders for cardiac rhythm management 
devices. Class members allege that the defendant’s failure to 
disclose the above information resulted in the class purchasing 
St. Jude Medical stock at an artificially inflated price. In 
December 2011, the Court issued a decision denying a motion 
to dismiss filed by the defendants in October 2010.  
In October 2012, the Court granted plaintiffs’ motion to certify 
the case as a class action and the discovery phase of the case 
closed in September 2013. On October 15, 2013, the 
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defendants filed a motion for summary judgment. A hearing 
concerning that motion took place with the Court in January 
2014 and a ruling is expected later in 2014. Subject to the out-
come of this hearing, the trial of this class action matter is 
presently scheduled for October 2014. The defendants intend 
to continue to vigorously defend against the claims asserted in  
this lawsuit.

December 2012 Securities Class Action Litigation: On 
December 7, 2012, a securities class action lawsuit was filed in 
federal district court in Minnesota against the Company and an 
officer (collectively, the defendants) for alleged violations of the 
federal securities laws, on behalf of all purchasers of the pub-
licly traded securities of the defendants between October 17, 
2012 and November 20, 2012. The complaint, which seeks 
unspecified damages and other relief as well as attorneys’ fees, 
challenges the Company’s disclosures concerning its high volt-
age cardiac rhythm lead products during the purported class 
period. On December 10, 2012, a second securities class 
action lawsuit was filed in federal district court in Minnesota 
against the Company and certain officers for alleged violations 
of the federal securities laws, on behalf of all purchasers of the 
publicly traded securities of the Company between October 19, 
2011 and November 20, 2012. The second complaint pursues 
similar claims and seeks unspecified damages and other relief 
as well as attorneys’ fees. In March 2013, the Court consoli-
dated the two cases and appointed a lead counsel and lead 
plaintiff. In September 2013, the defendants filed a motion to 
dismiss the consolidated and amended complaint. Oral argu-
ment concerning this motion to dismiss occurred in January 
2014, and a ruling is expected later in 2014. The Company 
intends to vigorously defend against the claims asserted in  
this matter.

December 2012 Derivative Litigation: In December 2012, a 
shareholder derivative action was initiated in Minnesota state 
court in Ramsey County, on behalf of the Company, against 
members of St. Jude Medical’s Board of Directors as well as 
certain officers of the Company (collectively, the defendants). 
The plaintiffs in this action allege breach of fiduciary duty, 
waste of corporate assets and unjust enrichment. The claims 
center around and involve the Company’s high voltage cardiac 
rhythm lead products and related activities and events. No 
damages are sought against the Company. The defendants 
intend to vigorously defend against the claims asserted in this 
matter. In March 2013, the defendants filed a motion to dis-
miss the plaintiffs’ complaint. The matter was transferred to a 
new judge effective July 31, 2013 and at a scheduling confer-
ence in February 2014 the judge scheduled an oral hearing on 
the motion to dismiss for April 2014.

The Company has not recorded an expense related to any 
potential damages in connection with these securities and 
other shareholder litigation matters because any potential loss 
is not probable or reasonably estimable. The Company cannot 
reasonably estimate a loss or range of loss, if any, that may 
result from these matters.

Governmental Investigations
In March 2010, the Company received a Civil Investigative 
Demand (CID) from the Civil Division of the Department of 
Justice (DOJ). The CID requests documents and sets forth 
interrogatories related to communications by and within the 
Company on various indications for tachycardia implantable 
cardioverter defibrillator systems (ICDs) and a National 
Coverage Decision issued by Centers for Medicare and 
Medicaid Services. Similar requests were made of the 
Company’s major competitors. The Company provided its 
response to the DOJ in June 2010.

On September 20, 2012, the Office of Inspector General for the 
Department of Health and Human Services (OIG) issued a sub-
poena requiring the Company to produce certain documents 
related to payments made by the Company to healthcare pro-
fessionals practicing in California, Florida, and Arizona, as well 
as policies and procedures related to payments made by the 
Company to non-employee healthcare professionals. The 
Company has provided its response to the OIG.

The Company is cooperating with the two open investigations 
and is responding to these requests. However, the Company 
cannot predict when these investigations will be resolved, the 
outcome of these investigations or their impact on the 
Company. The Company has not recorded an expense related 
to any potential damages in connection with these governmen-
tal matters because any potential loss is not probable or rea-
sonably estimable. The Company cannot reasonably estimate a 
loss or range of loss, if any, that may result from these matters.

Regulatory Matters
In late September 2012, the FDA commenced an inspection 
of the Company’s Sylmar, California facility, and, following 
such inspection, issued eleven observations on a Form  
483, which the Company disclosed on a Form 8-K filed on 
October 24, 2012 along with an exhibit containing a redacted 
version of the Form 483. The FDA subsequently released its 
own redacted version of the 483 Letter on November 20, 2012. 
The redacted version of the Form 483 that was released by 
the FDA on November 20, 2012 and included in its website  
at that time is attached as Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 29, 
2013. In early November 2012, the Company provided written 
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responses to the FDA on the Form 483 detailing proposed cor-
rective actions and immediately initiated efforts to address the 
FDA’s inspectional observations. The Company subsequently 
received a warning letter dated January 10, 2013 from the 
FDA relating to these inspectional observations with respect to 
its Sylmar, California facility. The warning letter does not iden-
tify any specific concerns regarding the performance of, or 
indicate the need for any field or other action regarding, any 
particular St. Jude Medical product. In July 2013, the FDA 
inspected the Company’s Sylmar, California facility for progress 
made remediating the warning letter and Form 483 observa-
tions. No additional observations on Form 483 were issued fol-
lowing the July inspection. The Sylmar, California facility will 
continue to manufacture cardiac rhythm management devices 
while the Company works with the FDA to address its concerns.

The FDA inspected the Company’s Plano, Texas manufacturing 
facility at various times between March 5 and April 6, 2009. On 
April 6, 2009, the FDA issued a Form 483 identifying certain 
inspectional observations with current Good Manufacturing 
Practice (cGMP). Following the receipt of the Form 483, the 
Company provided written responses to the FDA detailing pro-
posed corrective actions and immediately initiated efforts to 
address the FDA’s inspectional observations. The Company 
subsequently received a warning letter dated June 26, 2009 
from the FDA relating to these inspectional observations with 
respect to its legacy Neuromodulation division’s Plano, Texas 
and Hackettstown, New Jersey facilities.

With respect to both of these warning letters, the FDA notes 
that it will not grant requests for exportation certificates to for-
eign governments or approve pre-market approval applications 
for Class III devices to which the quality system regulation devi-
ations are reasonably related until the violations have been cor-
rected. The Company is working cooperatively with the FDA to 
resolve all of its concerns.

Customer orders have not been and are not expected to be 
impacted while the Company works to resolve the FDA’s con-
cerns. The Company is working diligently to respond timely  
and fully to the FDA’s observations and requests. While the 
Company believes the issues raised by the FDA can be 
resolved without a material impact on the Company’s financial 
results, the FDA has recently been increasing its scrutiny of the 
medical device industry and raising the threshold for compli-
ance. The government is expected to continue to scrutinize the 
industry closely with inspections, and possibly enforcement 
actions, by the FDA or other agencies. The Company is regu-
larly monitoring, assessing and improving its internal compli-
ance systems and procedures to ensure that its activities are 
consistent with applicable laws, regulations and requirements, 
including those of the FDA.

Note 6
Shareholders’ Equity

Share Repurchases: On December 9, 2013, the Company’s 
Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program of up 
to $700 million of its outstanding common stock. The Company 
began repurchasing shares on December 11, 2013 and com-
pleted the repurchases under the program on January 17, 
2014, repurchasing 11.1 million shares for $700 million at an 
average repurchase price of $63.07 per share. From December 
11, 2013 through December 28, 2013, the Company repur-
chased 4.4 million shares for $266 million at an average repur-
chase price of $60.18 per share.

On November 29, 2012, the Company’s Board of Directors 
authorized a share repurchase program of up to $1.0 billion of 
its outstanding common stock. The Company began repur-
chasing shares on December 5, 2012 and completed the 
repurchases under the program on February 1, 2013, repur-
chasing 26.8 million shares for $1.0 billion at an average 
repurchase price of $37.27 per share. From December 5, 
2012 through December 29, 2012, the Company repurchased 
12.9 million shares for $458 million at an average repurchase 
price of $35.60 per share. From December 30, 2012 through 
February 1, 2013, the Company repurchased 13.9 million 
shares for $542 million at an average repurchase price of 
$38.83 per share.

On October 17, 2012, the Company’s Board of Directors autho-
rized a share repurchase program of up to $300 million of its 
outstanding common stock. The Company began repurchasing 
shares on October 19, 2012 and completed the repurchases 
under the program on November 6, 2012, repurchasing 7.7 
million shares for $300 million at an average repurchase price 
of $38.97 per share.

On December 12, 2011, the Company’s Board of Directors 
authorized a share repurchase program of up to $300 million 
of the Company’s outstanding common stock. The Company 
began repurchasing shares on January 27, 2012 and com-
pleted the repurchases under the program on February 8, 
2012, repurchasing 7.1 million shares for $300 million at an 
average repurchase price of $42.14 per share.

On August 2, 2011, the Company’s Board of Directors autho-
rized a share repurchase program of up to $500 million of the 
Company’s outstanding common stock. The Company com-
pleted the repurchases under the program on August 29, 
2011, repurchasing 11.7 million shares for $500 million at an 
average repurchase price of $42.79 per share.
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On October 15, 2010, the Company’s Board of Directors autho-
rized a share repurchase program of up to $600 million of the 
Company’s outstanding common stock. On October 21, 2010, 
the Company’s Board of Directors authorized an additional 
$300 million of share repurchases as part of this share repur-
chase program. The Company began repurchasing shares on 
November 18, 2010 and completed the repurchases under the 
programs on January 20, 2011, repurchasing a total of 22.0 
million shares for $900 million at an average repurchase price 
of $40.87 per share. From January 2, 2011 through January 
20, 2011, the Company repurchased 6.6 million shares for 
$275 million at an average repurchase price of $41.44 
per share.

Dividends: During 2013, the Company’s Board of Directors 
authorized four quarterly cash dividend payments of $0.25 per 
share paid on April 30, 2013, July 31, 2013, October 31, 2013 
and January 31, 2014. During 2012, the Company’s Board of 
Directors authorized four quarterly cash dividend payments of 
$0.23 per share paid on April 30, 2012, July 31, 2012, 
October 31, 2012 and January 31, 2013. During 2011, the 
Company’s Board of Directors authorized four quarterly cash 
dividend payments of $0.21 per share paid on April 29, 2011, 
July 29, 2011, October 31, 2011 and January 31, 2012.

On February 22, 2014, the Company’s Board of Directors 
authorized a cash dividend of $0.27 per share payable on April 
30, 2014 to shareholders of record as of March 31, 2014.

Note 7
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The table below presents the changes in each component of accumulated other comprehensive income, including other compre-
hensive income and the reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income into net earnings for fiscal years 2013, 
2012 and 2011 (in millions):

   Unrealized Unrealized Foreign Accumulated 
   Gain (Loss) On Gain (Loss) On Currency Other 
   Available-for-sale Derivative Translation Comprehensive 
   Securities Instruments Adjustment Income

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, at January 1, 2011  $ 15 $ – $ 69 $ 84

Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications   3 – (71) (68)

Amounts reclassified to net earnings from accumulated other comprehensive income – – – –

Other comprehensive income (loss)   3 – (71) (68)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, at December 31, 2011 18 – (2) 16

Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications   10 – 28 38

Amounts reclassified to net earnings from accumulated other comprehensive income (8) – – (8)

Other comprehensive income (loss)   2 – 28 30

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, at December 29, 2012 20 – 26 46

Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications   5 3 – 8
Amounts reclassified to net earnings from accumulated other comprehensive income (8) – – (8)

Other comprehensive income (loss)   (3) 3 – –

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, at December 28, 2013 $17 $3 $ 26 $ 46

The table below provides details about reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income and the line items 
impacted in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Earnings for fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011 (in millions):

   Amounts reclassified from accumulated  
   other comprehensive income

  2013 2012 2011 Statements of Earnings Classification

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities:
Gain on sale of available-for-sale securities  $13 $14 $ – Other expense, net

       (5) (6) – Income tax expense

       8 8 – Net earnings before noncontrolling interest

       $  8 $  8 $ – Net earnings attributable to St. Jude Medical, Inc.
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Note 8
Stock-Based Compensation

Stock Compensation Plans
The Company’s stock compensation plans provide for the issu-
ance of stock-based awards, such as stock options, restricted 
stock units and restricted stock awards, to directors, officers, 
employees and consultants. Since 2000, all stock option 
awards granted under these plans have an exercise price equal 
to the closing stock price on the date of grant, an eight-year 
contractual life and generally, vest annually over a four-year 
vesting term. Restricted stock units and restricted stock awards 
under these plans also generally vest annually over a four-year 
period. Restricted stock awards are considered issued and out-
standing at the grant date and have the same dividend and vot-
ing rights as other common stock. Directors can elect to 
receive half of their entire annual retainer in the form of a 
restricted stock award with a six-month vesting term. Restricted 
stock units are not issued and outstanding at the grant date; 
instead, upon vesting the recipient receives one share of the 
Company’s common stock for each vested restricted stock unit. 
At December 28, 2013, the Company had 15.7 million shares 
of common stock available for stock option grants under its 
stock compensation plans. The Company has the ability to 
grant a portion of the available shares in the form of restricted 
stock awards or units. Specifically, in lieu of granting up to 13.9 
million stock options under these plans, the Company may 
grant up to 6.2 million restricted stock awards or units (for cer-
tain grants of restricted stock units or awards, the number of 
shares available are reduced by 2.25 shares). Additionally, in 
lieu of granting up to 0.1 million stock options under these 
plans, the Company may grant up to 0.1 million restricted 
stock awards (for certain grants of restricted stock awards, the 
number of shares available are reduced by one share). The 
remaining 1.7 million shares of common stock are available 
only for stock option grants. At December 28, 2013, there was 
$149 million of total unrecognized stock-based compensation 
expense, adjusted for estimated forfeitures, which is expected 
to be recognized over a weighted average period of approxi-
mately 2.9 years and will be adjusted for any future changes in 
estimated forfeitures.

The Company also has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan 
(ESPP) that allows participating employees to purchase newly 
issued shares of the Company’s common stock at a discount 
through payroll deductions. The ESPP consists of a 12-month 
offering period whereby employees can purchase shares at 
85% of the market value at either the beginning of the offering 
period or the end of the offering period, whichever price is 
lower. Employees purchased 0.9 million shares each year in 

fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011. At December 28, 2013, 5.8 
million shares of common stock were available for future pur-
chases under the ESPP.

The Company’s total stock compensation expense for fiscal 
years 2013, 2012 and 2011 by income statement line item was 
as follows (in millions):

  2013 2012 2011

Selling, general and  
 administrative expense  $45 $49 $55

Research and development expense 15 15 15

Cost of sales   5 5 6

 Total stock compensation expense $65 $69 $76

Valuation Assumptions
The Company uses the Black-Scholes standard option pricing 
model (Black-Scholes model) to determine the fair value of 
stock options and ESPP purchase rights. The determination of 
the fair value of the awards on the date of grant using the 
Black-Scholes model is affected by the Company’s stock price 
as well as assumptions of other variables, including projected 
employee stock option exercise behaviors, risk-free interest 
rate, expected volatility of the Company’s stock price in future 
periods and expected dividend yield. The fair value of both 
restricted stock and restricted stock units is based on the 
Company’s closing stock price on the date of grant. The 
weighted average fair value of restricted stock awards granted 
during fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $42.26, $37.63 
and $49.77, respectively. The weighted average fair value of 
the restricted stock units granted during fiscal years 2013, 
2012 and 2011 was $59.04, $35.39 and $35.14, respectively. 
The weighted average fair value of ESPP purchase rights 
granted to employees during fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011 
was $13.06, $9.39 and $10.86, respectively.

The following table provides the weighted average fair value of 
stock options granted to employees during fiscal years 2013, 
2012 and 2011 and the related weighted average assumptions 
used in the Black-Scholes model:

  2013 2012 2011

Fair value of options granted  $13.83 $7.71 $9.17

Assumptions:

 Expected life (years)  5.4 5.4 5.5

 Risk-free interest rate  1.6% 0.7% 0.9%

 Volatility   28.6% 31.2% 33.9%

 Dividend yield   1.8% 2.5% 2.0%

Expected Life: The Company analyzes historical employee 
exercise and termination data to estimate the expected life 
assumption. Annually, the Company updates these assump-
tions unless circumstances would indicate a more frequent 
update is necessary.
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Risk-Free Interest Rate: The rate is based on the U.S. Treasury 
zero-coupon yield curve on the grant date for a maturity equal 
to or approximating the expected life of the options.

Volatility: The Company calculates its expected volatility 
assumption by blending the historical and implied volatility.  
The historical volatility is based on the daily closing prices of 
the Company’s common stock over a period equal to the 
expected term of the option. Market-based implied volatility  
is based on utilizing market data of actively traded options on 
the Company’s stock, from options at- or near-the-money, at a 
point in time as close to the grant date of the employee options 
as reasonably practical and with similar terms to the employee 
share option, or a remaining maturity of at least six months if 
no similar terms are available. The historical volatility of the 
Company’s common stock price over the expected term of the 
option is a strong indicator of the expected future volatility. In 
addition, implied volatility takes into consideration market 
expectations of how future volatility will differ from historical 
volatility. The Company does not believe that one estimate is 
more reliable than the other, and as a result, the Company uses 
an equal weighting of historical volatility and market-based 
implied volatility.

Dividend Yield: Beginning in fiscal year 2011, the Company 
began paying cash dividends. The Company’s dividend yield 
assumption is based on the expected annual dividend yield on 
the grant date.

Stock Compensation Activity
The following table summarizes stock option activity under all 
stock compensation plans during the fiscal year ended 
December 28, 2013:

   Weighted 
  Weighted Average Aggregate 
  Average Remaining Intrinsic 
 Options Exercise Contractual Value 
 (in millions) Price Term (in years) (in millions)

Outstanding at  
 December 29, 2012 28.2 $ 38.05

 Granted   2.7 59.16
 Exercised  (10.6) 39.83
 Canceled  (1.4) 40.05

Outstanding at  
 December 28, 2013 18.9 $39.94 5.3 $422

Vested and expected  
 to vest   18.2 $39.70 5.2 $409

Exercisable at  
 December 28, 2013 10.6 $37.07 4.1 $267

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding and 
options exercisable is based on the Company’s closing stock 
price on the last trading day of the fiscal year for in-the-money 
options. The aggregate intrinsic value represents the cumula-
tive difference between the fair market value of the underlying 

common stock and the option exercise prices. The total intrin-
sic value of options exercised during fiscal years 2013, 2012 
and 2011 was $125 million, $14 million and $96 million, 
respectively.

The following table summarizes activity for restricted stock 
awards and restricted stock units under all stock compensation 
plans during the fiscal year ended December 28, 2013:

   Weighted 
   Average 
  Restricted Stock Grant Date 
  (in millions) Fair Value

Unvested balance at December 29, 2012  1.6 $ 36.61

 Granted    0.7 58.32
 Vested    (0.5) 37.45
 Canceled   (0.2) 36.96

Unvested balance at December 28, 2013  1.6 $45.98

The total aggregate grant date fair value of restricted stock 
awards and restricted stock units vested during fiscal years 
2013, 2012 and 2011 was $18 million, $11 million and $7  
million, respectively.

Note 9
Purchased In-Process Research  
and Development (IPR&D) and  
Special Charges

IPR&D Charges
During 2011, the Company recorded IPR&D charges of  
$4 million in connection with the purchase of cardiac rhythm 
management-related intellectual property. As the related techno-
logical feasibility had not yet been reached and such technology 
had no future alternative use, the intellectual property asset 
purchase was expensed as IPR&D.

Special Charges
The Company recognizes certain transactions and events as 
special charges in its consolidated financial statements. These 
charges (such as restructuring charges, impairment charges 
and certain settlement or litigation charges) result from facts 
and circumstances that vary in frequency and impact on the 
Company’s results of operations. In order to enhance segment 
comparability and reflect management’s focus on the ongoing 
operations of the Company, special charges are not reflected in 
the individual reportable segments’ operating results.

2012 Business Realignment Plan: During 2012, the Company 
incurred charges of $185 million resulting from the realignment 
of its product divisions into two new operating divisions: 
Implantable Electronic Systems Division (combining its legacy 
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Cardiac Rhythm Management and Neuromodulation product 
divisions) and the Cardiovascular and Ablation Technologies 
Division (combining its legacy Cardiovascular and Atrial 
Fibrillation product divisions). In addition, the Company central-
ized certain support functions, including information technol-
ogy, human resources, legal, business development and certain 
marketing functions. The organizational changes are part of a 
comprehensive plan to accelerate the Company’s growth, 
reduce costs and leverage economies of scale. In connection 
with the realignment, the Company recognized $109 million of 
severance costs and other termination benefits after manage-
ment determined that such severance and benefit costs were 
probable and estimable, in accordance with ASC Topic 712, 
Nonretirement Postemployment Benefits (ASC Topic 712). The 
2012 business realignment plan reduced the Company’s work-
force by approximately 5%. The Company also recognized $17 
million of inventory write-offs associated with discontinued 
CATD product lines and $41 million of incremental depreciation 
charges and fixed asset write-offs, primarily associated with 
information technology assets no longer expected to be utilized 

or with a limited remaining useful life. Additionally, the 
Company recognized $18 million of other restructuring costs 
which included $7 million of contract termination costs and 
$11 million of other costs.

During 2013, the Company incurred additional charges totaling 
$220 million related to the realignment plan initiated during 
2012. The Company also recognized severance costs and other 
termination benefits of $75 million after management deter-
mined that such severance and benefit costs were probable 
and estimable, in accordance with ASC Topic 712. Additionally, 
we recorded $30 million of inventory write-offs primarily associ-
ated with discontinued CATD product lines, $13 million of fixed 
asset write-offs primarily related to information technology 
assets no longer expected to be utilized and $102 million of 
other restructuring costs. Of the $102 million in other restruc-
turing costs, $64 million was associated with distributor and 
other contract termination costs and office consolidation costs, 
including a $23 million charge related to the termination of a 
research agreement, and $38 million was associated with other 
costs, all as part of the Company’s continued integration efforts.

A summary of the activity related to the 2012 business realignment plan accrual is as follows (in millions):

  Employee  Fixed Other 
  Termination Inventory Asset Restructuring  
  Costs Charges Charges Costs Total

Balance at December 31, 2011  $    – $    – $    – $    – $      –

Cost of sales special charges  5 17 – 2 24

Special charges  104 – 41 16 161

Non-cash charges used  – (17) (41) (3) (61)

Cash payments  (52) – – (7) (59)

Foreign exchange rate impact  1 – – – 1

Balance at December 29, 2012  58 – – 8 66

Cost of sales special charges  – 30 – 5 35
Special charges  75 – 13 97 185
Non-cash charges used  – (30) (13) (4) (47)
Cash payments  (79) – – (73) (152)
Foreign exchange rate impact  – – – – –

Balance at December 28, 2013  $ 54 $   – $   – $ 33 $   87

2011 Restructuring Plan: During 2011, the Company incurred charges totaling $162 million related to restructuring actions to 
realign certain activities in the Company’s legacy cardiac rhythm management business and sales and selling support organiza-
tions. The restructuring actions included phasing out cardiac rhythm management manufacturing and R&D operations in Sweden, 
reductions in the Company’s workforce and rationalizing product lines. In connection with the staged phase-out of the manufac-
turing and R&D operations in Sweden, the Company began recognizing severance costs and other termination benefits for over 
650 employees in accordance with ASC Topic 420, Exit or Disposal Cost Obligations whereby certain employee termination costs 
are recognized over the employees’ remaining future service period. Additionally, during 2011, the Company recognized certain 
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severance costs for 550 employees after management deter-
mined that such severance and benefit costs were probable 
and estimable, in accordance with ASC Topic 712. The total 
charge for employee termination costs recognized during 2011 
was $82 million. Additionally, the Company recognized $20 
million of inventory obsolescence charges primarily associated 
with the rationalization of product lines across its business. The 
Company also recorded $26 million of impairment and incre-
mental depreciation charges, of which $12 million related to an 
impairment charge to write-down the Company’s manufactur-
ing facility in Sweden to its fair value. Additionally, the 
Company recognized $34 million of other restructuring charges 
primarily associated with the cardiac rhythm management 
restructuring actions ($13 million of pension settlement 
charges associated with the termination of Sweden’s defined 
benefit pension plan and $4 million of idle facility costs related 
to transitioning manufacturing operations out of Sweden) as 
well as $7 million of contract termination costs and $10 million 
of other costs.

During 2012, the Company incurred additional charges totaling 
$102 million related to the restructuring actions initiated during 
2011. The Company recognized severance costs and other ter-
mination benefits of $38 million for an additional 100 

employees after management determined that such severance 
and benefit costs were probable and estimable, in accordance 
with ASC Topic 712. The Company also recognized $13 million 
of inventory obsolescence charges primarily related with the 
rationalization of product lines in its IESD segment. Additionally, 
the Company recognized $51 million of other restructuring 
charges which included $37 million of restructuring related 
charges associated with the Company’s legacy cardiac rhythm 
management business and sales and selling support organiza-
tions (of which $13 million primarily related to idle facility costs 
in Sweden). The remaining charges included $8 million of con-
tract termination costs and $6 million of other costs.

During 2013, the Company recognized additional charges total-
ing $24 million related to the restructuring actions initiated 
during 2011. Of the $24 million recorded as special charges, 
the Company recognized severance costs and other termina-
tion benefits of $5 million after management determined that 
such severance and benefit costs were probable and estima-
ble, in accordance with ASC Topic 712. The Company also rec-
ognized $1 million of fixed write-offs and $18 million of other 
restructuring costs, primarily associated with idle facility costs 
in Sweden.

A summary of the activity related to the 2011 restructuring plan accrual is as follows (in millions):

  Employee  Fixed Other  
  Termination Inventory Asset Restructuring  
   Costs Charges Charges Costs Total

Balance at January 1, 2011  $    – $   – $   – $   – $     –

Cost of sales special charges  9 20 9 9 47

Special charges  73 – 17 25 115

Non-cash charges used  – (20) (26) (1) (47)

Cash payments  (27) – – (15) (42)

Foreign exchange rate impact  (1) – – – (1)

Balance at December 31, 2011  54 – – 18 72

Cost of sales special charges  11 13 – 20 44

Special charges  27 – – 31 58

Non-cash charges used  – (13) – (4) (17)

Cash payments  (68) – – (47) (115)

Foreign exchange rate impact  1 – – (1) –

Balance at December 29, 2012  25 – – 17 42

Cost of sales special charges  – – – – –
Special charges  5 – 1 18 24
Non-cash charges used  – – (1) – (1)
Cash payments  (21) – – (29) (50)
Foreign exchange rate impact  – – – – –

Balance at December 28, 2013  $   9 $   – $   – $   6 $  15
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Other Special Charges: 
Intangible Asset Impairment Charges – During 2013, the 
Company recognized impairment charges of $29 million  
to write-down certain CATD indefinite-lived tradename and 
IPR&D assets to fair value. The impairments were due primarily 
to the Company’s revised expectations, including an increase in 
the cost and length of time to bring the related products to 
market through U.S. regulatory approval. During 2012, the 
Company recognized a $23 million impairment charge for cer-
tain developed technology intangible assets, as the Company’s 
updated expectations for the future cash flows of the related 
neuromodulation product lines decreased, ultimately resulting 
in the related assets’ fair value falling below carrying value. 
Additionally, the Company discontinued certain CATD product 
lines and recognized $8 million of impairment charges to fully 
impair the related developed technology intangible assets. 
During 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company also recognized 
$13 million, $2 million and $52 million, respectively, of impair-
ments primarily associated with customer relationship intangi-
ble assets recognized in connection with legacy acquisitions 
involved in the distribution of the Company’s products. Due to 
the changing dynamics of the U.S. healthcare market, specifi-
cally as it relates to hospital purchasing practices, the 
Company determined that these intangible assets had no future 
discrete cash flows and were fully impaired.

Settlement Charges – During 2013, the Company agreed to 
settle a dispute on licensed technology associated with certain 
CATD product lines. In connection with the settlement, which 
resolved all disputed claims, the Company recognized a $22 
million settlement expense. During 2012, the Company agreed 
to settle a dispute on licensed technology for the Company’s 
Angio-Seal™ vascular closure devices. In connection with this 
settlement, which resolved all disputed claims and included a 
fully-paid perpetual license, the Company recognized a $28 
million settlement expense which it classified as a special 
charge and also recognized a $12 million licensed technology 
intangible asset to be amortized over the technology’s remain-
ing patent life. During 2011, the Company recognized a $4 mil-
lion legal settlement charge after reaching an agreement with 
the Office of Inspector General of the Department of Health 
and Human Services to settle a previously disclosed investiga-
tion initiated in December 2008 related to allegations that the 
Company failed to properly apply certain warranty credits.

Litigation Charges – During 2013, the Company recognized 
$28 million of litigation charges for future probable and estima-
ble legal costs related to outstanding matters associated with 

the Company’s IESD field actions. Previously during 2012, the 
Company also recognized $16 million of litigation charges for 
future probable and estimable legal costs related to these same 
IESD field actions.

Field Action Charges – During 2013, the Company recognized 
special charges of $10 million, which was recorded to cost of 
sales, for additional costs related to the voluntary field action 
initiated in late 2012 associated with certain neuromodulation 
implantable pulse generator charging systems. During 2012, 
the Company recognized special charges of $27 million, of 
which $25 million was charged to cost of sales, for costs pri-
marily related to the neuromodulation 2012 field action.

Note 10
Other Expense, Net

The Company’s other expense, net consisted of the following 
(in millions):

  2013 2012 2011

Interest income   $   (5) $ (5) $ (4)

Interest expense   81 73 70

Other      191 27 30

 Other expense, net   $267 $95 $96

During 2013, the Company redeemed the full $700 million 
principal amount of the 2014 Senior Notes and the full $500 
million principal amount of the 2019 Senior Notes. In connec-
tion with the redemption of these notes, prior to their sched-
uled maturities, the Company recognized a $161 million debt 
retirement charge to other expense primarily associated with 
make-whole redemption payments and the write-off of unamor-
tized debt issuance costs (see Note 4). Additionally, in connec-
tion with the initial February 2013 consolidation of 
CardioMEMS, the Company recognized a $29 million loss asso-
ciated with a fair value remeasurement adjustment to other 
expense to adjust the carrying value of its equity investment 
and fixed price purchase option (see Note 2).

The Company classifies realized gains or losses from the sale of 
investments to other income or expense. The Company recog-
nized $13 million and $14 million of realized gains during 2013 
and 2012, respectively, associated with the sale of available-
for-sale securities. No realized gains or losses were recognized 
during 2011.
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Note 11
Income Taxes

The Company’s earnings before income taxes as generated from 
its U.S. and international operations are as follows (in millions):

  2013 2012 2011

U.S.      $ (17) $   316 $   502

International   801 689 517

Earnings before income taxes and  
 noncontrolling interest  $784 $1,005 $1,019

Income tax expense consisted of the following (in millions):

  2013 2012 2011

Current:

 U.S. federal   $ 101 $236 $180

 U.S. state and other  7 16 13

 International   108 78 65

  Total current   216 330 258

Deferred    (124) (77) (65)

Income tax expense   $   92 $253 $193

Deferred income taxes result from temporary differences 
between the amount of assets and liabilities recognized for 
financial reporting and tax purposes. The components of 
deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows (in millions):

   2013 2012

Deferred income tax assets:

 Net operating and capital loss carryforwards  $   402 $ 236

 Tax credit carryforwards   75 70

 Inventories    136 148

 Stock-based compensation   47 78

 Compensation and benefits   123 113

 R&D expenditures, capitalized for tax  112 –

 Accrued liabilities and other   130 133

         1,025 778

 Less: valuation allowance   (368) (228)

  Deferred income tax assets   657 550

Deferred income tax liabilities:

 Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities  (11) (12)

 Property, plant and equipment   (189) (204)

 Intangible assets    (352) (307)

  Deferred income tax liabilities   (552) (523)

Net deferred income tax assets (liabilities)  $   105 $   27

At December 28, 2013, the Company had U.S. federal net 
operating loss carryforwards, the tax effect of which was $22 
million and U.S. tax credit carryforwards, the tax effect of which 
was $4 million that will expire from 2017 through 2032 if not 
utilized. The Company also has state tax carryforwards, the tax 

effect of which was $71 million, that have an unlimited carry-
forward period. These amounts are subject to annual usage 
limitations. In addition, the Company had foreign tax net oper-
ating loss carryforwards, the tax effect of which was $380 mil-
lion as of December 28, 2013. These tax attributes have an 
unlimited carryforward period.

The Company establishes valuation allowances for deferred tax 
assets when, after consideration of all positive and negative evi-
dence, it is considered more-likely-than-not that a portion of 
the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company’s val-
uation allowances of $368 million and $228 million at 
December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012, respectively, 
reduce the carrying value of deferred tax assets associated with 
certain net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.

A reconciliation of the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate to 
the Company’s effective income tax rate is as follows:

  2013 2012 2011

U.S. federal statutory tax rate  35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

Increase (decrease) in tax rate  
 resulting from:

U.S. state income taxes, net of  
 federal tax benefit   0.6 0.5 1.2

International taxes at lower rates  (13.6) (12.1) (11.6)

Tax benefits from domestic  
 manufacturer’s deduction  (1.9) (2.2) (2.0)

Research and development credits  (4.6) (1.1) (2.7)

Puerto Rico excise tax  (3.0) (1.8) (1.7)

Tax settlements   (1.9) 4.6 –

Noncontrolling interest  3.6 – –

Other      (2.5) 2.3 0.8

Effective income tax rate  11.7% 25.2% 19.0%

The Company’s effective income tax rate is favorably impacted 
by tax incentive grants, which result in Puerto Rico and Costa 
Rica earnings being partially tax exempt through the year 2023.

The Company has not recorded U.S. deferred income taxes on 
approximately $3.6 billion of its non-U.S. subsidiaries’ undis-
tributed earnings because such amounts are intended to be 
reinvested outside the United States indefinitely. If these earn-
ings were repatriated to the United States, the Company would 
be required to accrue and pay U.S. federal income taxes and 
foreign withholding taxes, as adjusted for foreign tax credits. 
Determination of the amount of any unrecognized deferred 
income tax liability on these earnings is not practicable.

The Company recognizes all income tax liabilities in accor-
dance with ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, including liabilities 
for unrecognized tax benefits that require application of 
accounting estimates that are subject to the inherent uncer-
tainties associated with the tax audit process, and therefore 
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include certain contingencies. The Company recognizes inter-
est and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax 
expense. The Company recognized interest and penalties, net 
of tax benefit, of $2 million, $22 million and $1 million during 
fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Company’s 
accrued liability for gross interest and penalties was $37 mil-
lion, $69 million and $35 million at December 28, 2013, 
December 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.

The following table summarizes the activity related to the 
Company’s unrecognized tax benefits (in millions):

  2013 2012 2011

Balance at beginning of year  $314 $205 $163

Increases related to current year  
 tax positions   74 38 33

Increases related to prior year  
 tax positions   33 90 16

Reductions related to prior year  
 tax positions   (16) (18) (1)

Reductions related to  
 settlements / payments  (90) (1) (2)

Expiration of the statute of limitations  
 for the assessment of taxes  – – (4)

Balance at end of year  $315 $314 $205

The Company is subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as 
income tax of multiple state and foreign jurisdictions. The 
Company has substantially concluded all material U.S. federal, 
state, foreign and local income tax matters for all tax years 
through 2004. The U.S. Internal Revenue Service (IRS) is cur-
rently auditing the Company’s 2008 and 2009 tax returns and 
an audit report is expected to be issued in 2014. The Company 
does not expect its unrecognized tax benefits to change signifi-
cantly over the next 12 months.

Note 12
Retirement Plans

Defined Contribution Plans: The Company has a 401(k) profit 
sharing plan that provides retirement benefits to substantially 
all full-time U.S. employees. Eligible employees may contribute 
a percentage of their annual compensation, subject to IRS lim-
itations, with the Company matching a portion of the employ-
ees’ contributions at the discretion of the Company’s Board of 
Directors. In addition, the Company has defined contribution 
programs for employees in certain countries outside the United 
States. Company contributions under all defined contribution 
plans totaled $26 million, $26 million and $23 million in 2013, 
2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Company also has a non-qualified deferred compensation 
plan that provides certain officers and employees the ability to 
defer a portion of their compensation until a later date. The 
deferred amounts and earnings thereon are payable to partici-
pants, or designated beneficiaries, at specified future dates 
upon retirement, death or termination from the Company. The 
deferred compensation liability, which is classified as other lia-
bilities, was approximately $282 million and $234 million at 
December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012, respectively.

Defined Benefit Plans: The Company has funded and 
unfunded defined benefit plans for employees in certain coun-
tries outside the United States. The Company had an accrued 
liability totaling $17 million and $16 million at December 28, 
2013 and December 29, 2012, respectively, which approxi-
mated the actuarial calculated unfunded liability. The amount 
of funded plan assets and the amount of pension expense was 
not material. In connection with the legacy cardiac rhythm 
management restructuring actions (see Note 9), the Company 
elected to terminate its defined benefit pension plan in Sweden 
and made a lump sum settlement payment of $31 million 
during the fourth quarter of 2011 and recognized a pension 
settlement charge of $13 million.

Note 13
Fair Value Measurements and 
Financial Instruments

The fair value measurement accounting standard, codified in 
ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement (ASC Topic 820), pro-
vides a framework for measuring fair value and defines fair 
value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or 
paid to transfer a liability. Fair value is a market-based mea-
surement that should be determined using assumptions that 
market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. 
The standard establishes a valuation hierarchy for inputs used 
in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable 
inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requir-
ing that the most observable inputs be used when available. 
Observable inputs are inputs market participants would use in 
valuing the asset or liability developed based on independent 
market data sources. Unobservable inputs are inputs that 
reflect the Company’s assumptions about the factors market 
participants would use in valuing the asset or liability developed 
based upon the best information available. The valuation hier-
archy is composed of three categories. The categorization 
within the valuation hierarchy is based on the lowest level of 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
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The categories within the valuation hierarchy are described  
as follows:

•  Level 1 – Inputs to the fair value measurement are quoted 
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

•  Level 2 – Inputs to the fair value measurement include 
quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, 
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in 
markets that are not active, and inputs other than quoted 
prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly or indirectly.

•  Level 3 – Inputs to the fair value measurement are unobserv-
able inputs or valuation techniques.

Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at 
Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
The fair value measurement standard applies to certain finan-
cial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis (each reporting period). These financial assets 
and liabilities include money-market securities, trading market-
able securities, available-for-sale marketable securities and 
derivative instruments. The Company continues to record these 
items at fair value on a recurring basis and the fair value mea-
surements are applied using ASC Topic 820. The Company 
does not have any material nonfinancial assets or liabilities that 
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. A summary of 
the valuation methodologies used for the respective financial 
assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis 
is as follows:

Money-Market Securities: The Company’s money-market 
securities include funds that are traded in active markets and 
are recorded at fair value based upon the quoted market 
prices. The Company classifies these securities as level 1.

Trading Securities: The Company’s trading securities include 
publicly-traded mutual funds that are traded in active markets 
and are recorded at fair value based upon quoted market 
prices of the net asset values of the funds. The Company  
classifies these securities as level 1.

Available-For-Sale Securities: The Company’s available-for-
sale securities include publicly-traded equity securities that are 
traded in active markets and are recorded at fair value based 
upon the closing stock prices. The Company classifies these 
securities as level 1.

Derivative Instruments: The Company’s derivative instruments 
consist of foreign currency exchange contracts and interest 
rate swap contracts. The Company classifies these instruments 
as level 2 as the fair value is determined using inputs other 
than observable quoted market prices. These inputs include 
spot and forward foreign currency exchange rates and interest 
rates that the Company obtains from standard market data pro-
viders. The fair value of the Company’s outstanding foreign cur-
rency exchange contracts was not material at December 28, 
2013 or December 29, 2012.

Contingent Consideration: In connection with certain business 
combinations or purchases of intellectual property the 
Company may agree to provide future contingent consideration 
payments. Payment of the additional consideration is generally 
contingent on the acquired company reaching certain perfor-
mance milestones, including attaining specified revenue levels, 
achieving product development targets or receiving regulatory 
approvals to market products. Contingent consideration is rec-
ognized on the acquisition date at the estimated fair value of 
the contingent milestone payment(s). The acquisition date fair 
value is measured based on the consideration expected to be 
transferred (probability-weighted), discounted back to present 
value. The discount rate used is determined at the time of 
measurement in accordance with accepted valuation methods. 
The fair value of the contingent consideration is remeasured to 
its estimated fair value at each reporting period with the 
change in fair value recognized in selling, general and adminis-
trative expense in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of 
Earnings. The Company measures the liability on a recurring 
basis using Level 3 inputs including projected revenues or cash 
flows, growth rates, discount rates, probabilities of payment 
and projected payment dates. Projected revenues are based on 
the Company’s most recent internal operating budgets and 
long-term strategic plans. Increases or decreases to any of the 
inputs may result in significantly higher or lower fair value 
measurements.
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A summary of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012 is 
as follows (in millions):

     Significant 
    Quoted Prices  Other  Significant 
    In Active  Observable Unobservable 
 Balance Sheet    Markets  Inputs  Inputs 
 Classification  December 28, 2013 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets
Money-market securities Cash and cash equivalents  $   875 $   875 $ – $     –
Available-for-sale securities Other current assets  35 35 – –
Trading securities Other assets  279 279 – –

 Total assets   1,189 1,189 – –

Liabilities
Contingent consideration Other liabilities  195 – – 195

 Total liabilities   $   195 $       – $ – $195

     Significant 
    Quoted Prices  Other  Significant 
    In Active  Observable  Unobservable 
 Balance Sheet   Markets  Inputs  Inputs 
 Classification  December 29, 2012 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets
Money-market securities Cash and cash equivalents  $   964 $   964 $ – $ –

Available-for-sale securities Other current assets  41 41 – –

Trading securities Other assets  231 231 – –

 Total assets   $1,236 $1,236 $ – $ –

The recurring Level 3 fair value measurements of our contingent consideration liability include the following significant unobserv-
able inputs (in millions):

       Fair Value as of     
Contingent Consideration Liability  December 28, 2013  Valuation Technique Unobservable Input Range

Endosense regulatory-based milestone  $139  Probability Weighted   
         Discounted Cash Flow Discount Rate 1.15% – 1.59%

          Probability of Payment 90%

          Projected Year of Payment 2014

Nanostim regulatory-based milestone  56  Probability Weighted   
         Discounted Cash Flow Discount Rate 5.00%

          Probability of Payment 100%

          Projected Years of Three  
          Annual Payments 2016, 2017, 2018

Total contingent consideration liability  $195
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Additionally, the following table provides a reconciliation of the 
beginning and ending balances of the Company’s contingent 
consideration liability associated with its Endosense acquisition 
subsequent to August 19, 2013 and its Nanostim acquisition 
subsequent to October 11, 2013, as of December 28, 2013  
(in millions):

  Endosense Nanostim Total

Balance as of December 29, 2012  $     – $   – $     –

Purchase price contingent  
 consideration   132 56 188
Change in fair value of  
 contingent consideration  1 – 1
Foreign currency translation  6 – 6

Balance as of December 28, 2013 $139 $56 $195

The Company also had $498 million and $230 million of cash 
equivalents invested in short-term deposits and interest and 
non-interest bearing bank accounts at December 28, 2013 and 
December 29, 2012, respectively.

Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at 
Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis
The fair value measurement standard also applies to certain 
nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair 
value on a nonrecurring basis. A summary of the valuation 
methodologies used for the respective nonfinancial assets  
and liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis  
is as follows:

Long-Lived Assets: The Company reviews the carrying amount 
of its long-lived assets other than goodwill and indefinite-lived 
intangible assets for potential impairment whenever events or 
changes in circumstance include a significant decrease in mar-
ket price, a significant adverse change in the extent or manner 
in which an asset is being used or a significant adverse change 
in the legal or business climate. The Company measures the 
fair value of its long-lived assets, such as its definite-lived 
intangible assets and property, plant and equipment using 
independent appraisals, market models and discounted cash 
flow models. A discounted cash flow model requires inputs to a 
present value cash flow calculation including a risk-adjusted 
discount rate, operating budgets, long-term strategic plans and 
remaining useful lives of the asset or asset group. If the carry-
ing value of the Company’s long-lived assets (excluding good-
will and indefinite-lived intangible assets) exceeds the related 
undiscounted future cash flows, the carrying value is written 
down to the fair value in the period identified.

The Company also reviews the carrying value of its goodwill 
and indefinite-lived intangible assets at least annually to deter-
mine if any adverse conditions exist that would indicate a 
potential impairment by considering qualitative factors such as 
macroeconomic conditions, industry and market consider-
ations, cost factors, financial performance, entity specific 
events, changes in net assets and project-based performance 
toward regulatory approvals. During 2013, the Company per-
formed a qualitative assessment of its indefinite-lived intangible 
assets by considering many of the above factors and subse-
quently determined that a quantitative impairment analysis was 
further necessary for certain CATD indefinite-lived tradename 
and IPR&D assets. The Company utilized a discounted cash 
flow model for each individual asset level under scrutiny and 
recognized an impairment charge of $29 million to write-down 
the related assets to their estimated fair value of $50 million. 
The impairments were due primarily to the Company’s revised 
expectations, including an increase in the cost and length of 
time to bring the related products to market through U.S. regu-
latory approval. The fair value measurements of these intangi-
ble assets are considered Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy 
due to the use of unobservable inputs used to measure fair 
value, including the terminal growth rate, royalty rate, discount 
rate and projected future cash flows.

During 2012, the Company determined that certain neuromod-
ulation purchased technology intangible assets were impaired 
and recognized a $23 million impairment charge to write-down 
the intangible assets to their estimated fair value of $3 million. 
The Company also determined that certain purchased technol-
ogy intangible assets in the Company’s CATD segment were 
fully impaired as the related product lines were discontinued 
and recognized an $8 million impairment charge as these 
intangible assets had no discrete future cash flows. The fair 
value measurements of both of these intangible assets are con-
sidered Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of 
unobservable inputs to measure fair value, including the termi-
nal growth rate, royalty rate, discount rate and projected future 
cash flows.

During 2011, the Company initiated restructuring actions 
resulting in the planned future closure of its cardiac rhythm 
management manufacturing facility in Sweden, resulting in the 
recognition of a $12 million impairment charge to write-down 
the facility to its estimated fair value of $13 million. The fair 
value measurement of the facility is considered Level 2 in the 
fair value hierarchy due to the use of observable inputs, specifi-
cally comparable third party sale prices for similar facilities.
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During 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company recognized $13 
million, $2 million and $52 million, respectively, of intangible 
asset impairments primarily associated with customer relation-
ship intangible assets acquired in connection with legacy 
acquisitions of businesses involved in the distribution of the 
Company’s products. Due to the changing dynamics of the U.S. 
healthcare market, specifically as it relates to hospital purchas-
ing practices, the Company determined that these intangible 
assets had no future discrete cash flows and were fully 
impaired. Refer to Note 9 for further details of these charges.

Cost Method Investments: The Company also holds invest-
ments in equity securities that are accounted for as cost 
method investments, which are classified as other assets and 
measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. The carrying 
value of these investments approximated $69 million and $151 
million at December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012, 
respectively. The fair value of the Company’s cost method 
investments is not estimated if there are no identified events or 
changes in circumstances that may have a significant adverse 
effect on the fair value of these investments. When measured 
on a nonrecurring basis, the Company’s cost method invest-
ments are considered Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due to 
the use of unobservable inputs to measure fair value.

Fair Value Measurements of Other  
Financial Instruments
The aggregate fair value of the Company’s fixed-rate senior 
notes at December 28, 2013 (measured using quoted prices in 
active markets) was $2,236 million compared to the aggregate 
carrying value of $2,304 million (inclusive of the terminated 
interest rate swap). The fair value of the Company’s vari-
able-rate debt obligations at December 28, 2013 approximated 
their aggregate $1,276 million carrying value due to the vari-
able interest rate and short-term nature of these instruments.

Note 14
Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company follows the provisions of ASC Topic 815 in 
accounting for and disclosing derivative instruments and hedg-
ing activities. All derivative financial instruments are recognized 

on the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in the fair value of 
derivatives are recognized in net earnings or other comprehen-
sive income depending on whether the derivative is designated 
as part of a qualifying hedge transaction. Derivative assets and 
derivative liabilities are classified as other current assets, other 
assets, other current liabilities or other liabilities based on the 
gain or loss position of the contract and the contract matu-
rity date.

Foreign Currency Forward Contracts
The Company hedges a portion of its foreign currency 
exchange rate risk through the use of forward exchange con-
tracts. The Company uses forward exchange contracts to man-
age foreign currency exposures related to intercompany 
receivables and payables arising from intercompany purchases 
of manufactured products. These forward contracts are not 
designated as qualifying hedging relationships under ASC Topic 
815. The Company measures its foreign currency exchange 
contracts at fair value on a recurring basis. The fair value of its 
outstanding contracts was immaterial as of December 28, 2013 
and December 29, 2012. During fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 
2011 the net amount of gains (losses) the Company recorded 
to other expense, net for its forward currency exchange con-
tracts not designated as hedging instruments under ASC Topic 
815 were net gains of $15 million and $7 million, and a net 
loss of $3 million, respectively. These net gains (losses) were 
almost entirely offset by corresponding net (losses) gains on 
the foreign currency exposures being managed. The Company 
does not enter into contracts for trading or speculative pur-
poses. The Company’s policy is to enter into hedging contracts 
with major financial institutions that have at least an “A” (or 
equivalent) credit rating.

Interest Rate Swap
In prior periods, the Company has chosen to hedge the fair 
value of certain debt obligations through the use of interest rate 
swap contracts. For interest rate swap contracts that are desig-
nated and qualify as fair value hedges, changes in the value of 
the fair value hedge are recognized as an asset or liability, as 
applicable, offsetting the changes in the fair value of the 
hedged debt instrument. When outstanding, the Company’s 
swap contracts are recorded on the consolidated balance 
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sheets as a component of other current assets, other assets, 
other accrued expenses or other liabilities based on the gain or 
loss position of the contract and the contract maturity date. 
Additionally, any payments made or received under the swap 
contracts are accrued and recognized as interest expense. In 
June 2012, the Company terminated the interest rate swap it 
had entered into concurrent with the March 2010 issuance of 
the 2016 Senior Notes and received a cash payment of $24 
million. The gain from terminating the interest rate swap agree-
ment has been reflected as an increase to the carrying value of 
the debt and is being amortized as a reduction of interest 
expense resulting in a net average interest rate of 1.3% that will 
be recognized over the remaining term of the 2016 
Senior Notes.

Interest Rate Contracts
During the first quarter of 2013, the Company entered into and 
settled treasury rate lock agreements in anticipation of issuing 
the $900 million principal amount of 2023 Senior Notes and 
the $700 million principal amount of 2043 Senior Notes. Prior 
to the issuance of the senior notes, the Company was subject 
to changes in treasury benchmark interest rates, and therefore 
locked into fixed-rate coupons to hedge against the interest 
rate fluctuations. The Company designated the treasury rate 
lock agreements as cash flow hedges under ASC Topic 815. 
Upon settlement, the $3 million gain was recognized as a com-
ponent of other comprehensive income, and will be recognized 
as a reduction to interest expense over the life of the senior 
notes. The amount of hedge ineffectiveness was immaterial.

Note 15
Segment and Geographic Information

Segment Information: In August 2012, the Company 
announced the realignment of its product divisions into two 
new business units (or divisions): the Implantable Electronic 
Systems Division (combining its legacy Cardiac Rhythm 
Management and Neuromodulation product divisions) and the 
Cardiovascular and Ablation Technologies Division (combining 
its legacy Cardiovascular and Atrial Fibrillation product divi-
sions). In addition, the Company centralized certain support 
functions, including information technology, human resources, 
legal, business development and certain marketing functions. 

The organizational changes were part of a comprehensive plan 
to accelerate its growth, reduce costs and leverage economies 
of scale. The Company began reporting under the new organi-
zational structure as of the beginning of fiscal year 2013. Prior 
period amounts in the following tables have been recast to con-
form to the Company’s new reportable segment structure.

The Company’s principal products in each business unit are as 
follows: Implantable Electronic Systems Division (IESD) – 
tachycardia implantable cardioverter defibrillator systems 
(ICDs), bradycardia pacemaker systems (pacemakers) and 
neurostimulation products (spinal cord and deep brain stimula-
tion devices); and Cardiovascular and Ablation Technologies 
Division (CATD) – vascular products (vascular closure prod-
ucts, pressure measurement guidewires, optical coherence 
tomography (OCT) imaging products, vascular plugs and other 
vascular accessories), structural heart products (heart valve 
replacement and repair products and structural heart defect 
devices) and AF products (EP introducers and catheters, 
advanced cardiac mapping, navigation and recording systems 
and ablation systems).

Net sales of the Company’s reportable segments include 
end-customer revenues from the sale of products they each 
develop and manufacture or distribute. The costs included in 
each of the reportable segments’ operating results include the 
direct costs of the products sold to customers and operating 
expenses managed by each of the reportable segments. 
Certain expenses managed by the Company’s selling and cor-
porate functions, including all stock-based compensation 
expense, impairment charges, certain acquisition-related 
charges, IPR&D charges, excise tax expense, special charges 
and centralized support groups’ operating expenses are not 
recorded in the IESD and CATD reportable segments. As a 
result, reportable segment operating profit is not representative 
of the operating profit of the products in these reportable seg-
ments. Additionally, certain assets are managed by the 
Company’s selling and corporate functions, principally includ-
ing trade receivables, inventory, cash and cash equivalents, 
certain marketable securities and deferred income taxes. For 
management reporting purposes, the Company does not com-
pile capital expenditures by reportable segment; therefore, this 
information has not been presented, as it is impracticable to 
do so.
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The following table presents net sales and operating profit by 
reportable segment (in millions):

 IESD CATD Other Total

Fiscal Year 2013
Net sales   $3,209 $2,292 $        – $  5,501
Operating profit  2,138 1,349 (2,436) 1,051
Depreciation and  
 amortization expense 80 89 128 297
Total assets  2,855 3,273 4,120 10,248

Fiscal Year 2012
Net sales   $ 3,277 $ 2,226 $         – $   5,503

Operating profit  2,274 1,326 (2,500) 1,100

Depreciation and  
 amortization expense 73 91 120 284

Total assets  2,320 2,967 3,984 9,271

Fiscal Year 2011
Net sales   $ 3,453 $ 2,159 $         – $   5,612

Operating profit  2,240 1,211 (2,336) 1,115

Depreciation and  
 amortization expense 87 84 125 296

Total assets  2,394 3,086 3,638 9,118

Geographic Information: The Company markets and sells its 
products primarily through a direct sales force. The principal 
geographic markets for the Company’s products are the United 
States, Europe, Japan and Asia Pacific. The Company attri-
butes net sales to geographic markets based on the location  
of the customer.

Net sales by significant geographic market based on customer 
location for the respective fiscal years were as follows (in 
millions):

Net Sales  2013 2012 2011

United States   $2,596 $2,594 $2,648

International

 Europe    1,473 1,432 1,559

 Japan     567 665 641

 Asia Pacific   490 456 416

 Other     375 356 348

        2,905 2,909 2,964

        $5,501 $5,503 $5,612

The amounts for long-lived assets by significant geographic 
market include net property, plant and equipment by physical 
location of the asset as follows (in millions):

 December 28, December 29, December 31,  
Long-Lived Assets 2013 2012 2011

United States  $1,045 $1,036 $1,007

International

 Europe   73 82 84

 Japan    28 32 31

 Asia Pacific  75 82 81

 Other    189 193 185

       365 389 381

       $1,410 $1,425 $1,388
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Note 16
Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)
(in millions, except per share amounts)   First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

Fiscal Year 2013:
Net sales    $1,338 $1,403 $1,338 $1,422
Gross profit   961 1,021 953 992
Net earnings attributable to St. Jude Medical, Inc.(a)   223(b) 115(c) 262(d) 123(e)

Basic net earnings per share   $  0.78 $  0.41 $  0.91 $  0.42
Diluted net earnings per share   $  0.78 $  0.40 $  0.90 $  0.42
Cash dividends declared per share   $  0.25 $  0.25 $  0.25 $  0.25

Fiscal Year 2012:
Net sales    $ 1,395 $ 1,410 $ 1,326 $ 1,372

Gross profit   1,014 1,027 971 953

Net earnings attributable to St. Jude Medical, Inc.(f)   212(g) 244 176(h) 120(i)

Basic net earnings per share   $   0.67 $   0.78 $   0.56 $   0.39

Diluted net earnings per share   $   0.67 $   0.78 $   0.56 $   0.39

Cash dividends declared per share   $   0.23 $   0.23 $   0.23 $   0.23

(a)  Restructuring and realignment activities related to previously announced actions as the Company continues to integrate its product divisions and centralize certain support functions 
resulted in after-tax special charges of $32 million for the first quarter, $34 million for the second quarter, $13 million for the third quarter and $97 million for the fourth quarter of 2013.

(b)  Includes after-tax acquisition-related charges of $29 million to adjust the carrying value of the Company’s pre-existing CardioMEMS equity investment and fixed price purchase 
option to fair value and a $21 million income tax benefit related to extending the 2012 federal research and development tax credit, retroactive to the beginning of our 2012 tax year.

(c)  Includes $101 million of after-tax debt retirement costs primarily associated with the make-whole redemption payments and the write-off of unamortized debt issuance costs, 
$14 million of after-tax special charges related to a license dispute settlement charge, $8 million related to after-tax special charges associated with intangible asset impairment 
charges and $3 million of after-tax acquisition-related costs.

(d)  Includes a $15 million income tax benefit related to the settlement of domestic tax audits and $2 million of after-tax charges associated with acquisition-related costs.
(e)  Includes $25 million of after-tax special charges associated with IESD litigation and field action costs, $19 million of after-tax special charges related to intangible asset impairment 

charges, $15 million of after-tax acquisition-related costs and a $15 million income tax expense charge related to prior year uncertain tax positions in foreign jurisdictions.
(f)  Restructuring and realignment activities resulted in after-tax special charges of $29 million for the first quarter, $27 million for the second quarter, $66 million for the third 

quarter and $75 million for the fourth quarter of 2012.
(g)  Includes after-tax special charges of $25 million related to a license dispute settlement charge.
(h)  Includes after-tax special charges of $15 million for intangible asset impairment charges.
(i)  Includes after-tax special charges of $27 million related to IESD litigation and field action costs and after-tax special charges of $11 million for intangible asset impairment 

charges and CATD inventory write-offs associated with discontinued product lines. Additionally, the Company recognized $46 million of additional income tax expense related to a 
settlement reserve for certain prior year tax positions.
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The graph compares the cumulative total shareholder returns for St. Jude Medical common stock for the last five fiscal years with the Standard & Poor’s 500 Health Care 
Equipment Index and the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index weighted by market value at each measurement point. The comparison assumes that $100 was invested on  
December 31, 2008, in St. Jude Medical common stock and in each of these Standard & Poor’s indexes and assumes the reinvestment of any dividends.
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Investor Information

Stock Transfer Agent
Requests concerning the transfer or exchange of shares, lost 
stock certificates, duplicate mailings or change of address 
should be directed to the Company’s Transfer Agent at:

Wells Fargo Shareowner Services 
1110 Centre Pointe Curve, Suite 101 
Mendota Heights, MN 55120 
1 800 468 9716 
www.shareowneronline.com

Annual Meeting of Shareholders
The annual meeting of shareholders will be held at  
8:30 a.m. Central Daylight Time on Thursday, May 1, 2014,  
at the Minnesota History Center, 345 Kellogg Boulevard West,  
St. Paul, Minnesota, 55102.

Investor Contact
To obtain information about the Company, call the  
Investor Relations (IR) Department at 1 800 328 9634,  
visit St. Jude Medical’s website, sjm.com, or write to:

Investor Relations 
St. Jude Medical, Inc. 
One St. Jude Medical Drive 
St. Paul, Minnesota 55117

The IR section on St. Jude Medical’s website includes all SEC 
Filings, a list of analysts who cover the Company, webcasts and 
presentations, financial information and a calendar of upcom-
ing earnings announcements and IR events.

Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan (DRIP)
St. Jude Medical, Inc.’s transfer agent, Wells Fargo Shareowner 
Services, administers the Company’s Shareowner Service Plus 
PlanSM (the “Plan”). The Plan provides registered shareholders 
the ability to reinvest their dividends in additional shares of  
St. Jude Medical (STJ) common stock. Shareholders that own 
their shares in “street” name are not eligible to participate in 
this feature of the Plan and should contact their bank or broker 

to determine if their bank or broker offers any similar plan.  
The Plan offers a variety of other flexible services and features, 
in some cases available to non-STJ shareholders, including 
direct stock purchase, the ability to sign up for telephone and 
online transaction privileges and a variety of other features. 
Please direct inquiries concerning the Plan to Wells Fargo 
Shareowner Services.

Company Stock Splits
2:1 on 6/15/79, 3/12/80, 9/30/86, 3/15/89, 4/30/90, 6/28/02 
and 11/22/04. 3:2 on 11/16/95.

Stock Exchange Listings
New York Stock Exchange 
Symbol: STJ

Cash dividends declared were $0.25 per share, $0.23 per 
share and $0.21 per share each quarter during fiscal years 
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Prior to 2011, the 
Company had not declared or paid any cash dividends since 
1994. The range of high and low prices per share for the 
Company’s common stock for fiscal years 2013 and 2012 is set 
forth below. As of February 21, 2014, the Company had 1,939 
shareholders of record.
  Fiscal Year 
  2013  2012

Quarter High Low High Low

First     $43.23 $35.32 $44.80 $34.23

Second    $47.45 $39.79 $44.10 $34.82

Third     $54.36 $45.38 $43.31 $35.57

Fourth    $63.15 $51.79 $43.76 $30.25

Trademarks
Unless otherwise noted, ™ indicates that the name is a trade-
mark of, or licensed to, St. Jude Medical or one of its subsidiar-
ies. ST. JUDE MEDICAL and the nine-squares symbol are 
trademarks and services marks of St. Jude Medical, Inc. and  
its related companies.

© 2014 St. Jude Medical, Inc. All Rights Reserved.
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Governance and Nominating  
Committee Members:  
John W. Brown, Chairperson  
Stuart M. Essig, Ph.D. 
Wendy L. Yarno

 
Audit Committee Members:  
Michael A. Rocca, Chairperson  
Richard R. Devenuti 
Stefan K. Widensohler

 
Compensation Committee Members:  
Stuart M. Essig, Ph.D., Chairperson 
Barbara B. Hill  
Wendy L. Yarno

Barbara B. Hill
Operating Partner,  
Moelis Capital Partners,  
a private equity firm, 
New York City, New York  
Chief Executive Officer (retired),  
Value Options, Inc.,  
a privately owned, managed 
behavioral health company

Director since 2007

Michael A. Rocca
Former Senior Vice President  
and Chief Financial Officer,  
Mallinckrodt, Inc.,  
a pharmaceutical and  
medical device manufacturer,  
St. Louis, Missouri

Director since 2004

Daniel J. Starks
Chairman, President and  
Chief Executive Officer
St. Jude Medical, Inc.,  
St. Paul, Minnesota

Director since 1996

John W. Brown
Chairman Emeritus,  
Stryker Corporation,  
an orthopedic device and  
medical technology company,  
Kalamazoo, Michigan

Director since 2005

Richard R. Devenuti
President,  
EMC Information Intelligence 
Group, EMC Corporation,  
developer and provider of 
information infrastructure 
technology and solutions,
Pleasanton, California

Director since 2001

Stuart M. Essig, Ph.D.
Chairman of the Board of Directors,  
Integra LifeSciences Holdings 
Corporation,  
a medical device company,  
Plainsboro, New Jersey

Director since 1999

Board of Directors

Wendy L. Yarno 
Former Chief Marketing  
Officer (retired) 
Merck & Co., Inc., 
a pharmaceutical company

Director since 2002

Stefan K. Widensohler
President and Chief Executive  
Officer of KRAUTH Medical Group,  
a European distributor of medical  
devices and services

Director since 2013
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